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The Premier Business
The Premier People
The Premier Society
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A holistic approach to business management is the belief
that everythingis related to everything else
and also a part of one another.
Premier Group of Companies endeavors to achieve a balance
between business, people and society at large.
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Summary of Financial Data

(staes / Unit : @119 / Million Baht)
2556 / 2013 2655 / 2012 2554 / 2011
Usulgelma
/ Restated
Joan1vN1sIdu / Financial Data

Auninedan / Total Assets 2,317.86 2,198.51 682.94
WilAusaN / Total Liabilities 1,535.46 1,951.17 621.58
&'Qum@\‘iéaﬂﬁu |/ Shareholders’ Equity 782.40 247.34 61.36
s¢/l@aNNNIsUNE AL LITNNT / Sale and Service Revenues 1,5609.78 1,301.96 896.59
91¢/1#39% / Total Revenues 1,520.33 1,340.04 915.24
fnlsudu / Gross Profit 552.99 404.99 278.90
Anlsdwmiutl / Profit for the year 149.69 72.92 36.73
Fnarinladudins (%) / Gross Profi Margin (%) 36.63 31.11 31.11
dnannleqrasiasalisan(%) / Net Profit Margin (%) 9.85 5.44 4.01
dnsuanaLuUENau (%) / Return on Equity (%) 29.07 47.24 66.01
FRINARDLUNUANNAUNTNE (%) / Return on Assets (%) 6.63 5.06 6.33
ﬁﬂi@m%ﬁi@ﬁju (U1%) / Earnings per Share (Baht) 0.45* 0.39 0.22
Ruihinasiesiis (U1m) / Dividend per Share (Baht) 0.05%* - -

*Alsgnisauilunilsdauiiiuresgiounsen
*Earnings per share is profit attributable to equity holders of the Company.

i szqgunniznasunsLFEEla Ui 24 nuniug 2557 SuReysR hauen s eduiunalszanil 2556 saiitsequgiariuludud 24 e
2557 Tugmsiuas 0.05 1

**On February 24, 2014, the Board of Directors’ resolution to propose the distribution of dividend for the year 2013 to the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on April 24, 2014 at the rate 0.05 Baht per share.

Annual Report 2013
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“To be leading Thai corporation doing in water conservation, modern building materials and clean energy businesses that
enhances society, promotes organization and motivates staff to achieve sustainable success and harmony.”

Mission
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® To deliver quality products and services.

® To search and develop innovative water conservation, environmental, building materials and clean energy products
for quality of life, social and environment.

® To expand into the AEC markets and other potential countries.

® To foster mutual prosperity of staff, the organization and society.

® To promote collaboration between specialized teams to maximize efficiency.

® To act in a moral and ethical manner and uphold Thai tradition.

® To operate under the anti-corruption policy.
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Message From Board of Directors

During the first and second quarters of 2013, the construction
industry expanded steadily with the main contributing factor being the
infrastructure investment policies that led to the expansion of the city into
the suburbs. The investment by the public sector in the real estate business
grew rapidly. This can be seen from the number of new real estate
investment projects along the sky train routes and along the extended
transportation network, especially the condominium constructions projects
launched and sold that increased steadily from 2012. In addition, after the
flood in 2011 the government has a policy to invest in water management
and most of the population has moved their place of residence to avoid
flooding by moving out of the city into the provinces. This has led to the
rapid growth of the housing development business in the provinces. The
industrial factories also made improvements to their facilities and there were
investment expansions that continued from 2012. Furthermore, there are
some strict legal issues that have supported the significant growth of the
water storage system products, namely the government policy for building
safety that requires installation of water storage systems for protection
against fires in various types of buildings. However, in the third and fourth
quarters of the year the expansion of the industry has started to decline
due to the adjustment of the minimum wage that caused labour shortage
and stricter bank lending, which resulted in the slowing down of various
projects. Nevertheless, in 2013 the construction industry on the whole
showed a more positive trend than the other industries.

From the factors mentioned above, it is apparent that the growth
and expansion of the construction industry has affected the business
operations of the Company positively in all areas, both the building materials
and the wastewater treatment systems. As a result, in 2013 the Company
had grown and its operating results showed an increase in profit from
2012. Revenue from sales for 2013 was 1,123.63 million Baht, which is a
growth from 2012 of 6.86 per cent. Gross profit margin in 2013 was 33.12
per cent, which is higher than the 31.86 per cent in 2012. Net profit was
92.39 million Baht, which increased by 22.35 million Baht from 2012. For
its market expansion plan for the construction business, the Company has
started to expand its market into neighbouring countries, especially the
CLMA group (Cambodia, Laos PDR, Myanmar and Vietnam), in preparation
for the opening of the ASEAN Economic Community (AEC) in 2015. The
Company still has plans to continue to expand and maintain its domestic
market as well.

As for the clean energy business in which the Company has
invested in Infinite Green Co., Ltd. for the construction of 3 solar power
plants with production capacity of 5 MW each, totaling 15 MW, for
sale under the power purchase agreement with the Provincial Electricity

Authority, the construction of all 3 plants have been completed. The first

plant commenced commercial operation in December 2010 and the other
two plants commenced commercial operation in April 2013, which is in
accordance with the planned schedule and budget. This resulted in the
operating results of Infinite Green Co., Ltd. in 2013 showing net profit of
66.5 million Baht and the company having a total electricity production
capacity of 19,125,541 kWh. Total revenue was 219,996,166 Baht. The
operation of the renewable energy business has allowed the Company to
extend its building materials business by opening the market for products
for the solar power systems installed on rooftops (solar rooftop systems)
and to enhance the capability of its environmental business for which the
Company has been a leader for over 38 years. This also assists in the building
of the marketing and sales team to better cover the real estate market.

For the investment in Premier Home Appliance Co., Ltd. that
operates as a distributor of electrical appliances with energy-saving features
under the brand “MIRAGE”, in 2013 there was an expansion of the dealer
network, both domestically and internationally, that received satisfactory
acceptance, especially from the AEC markets. In addition, for the benefit
of competition on the market and to reduce product costs, the Company
has developed its product distribution system to be quicker and to have
more comprehensive access to all areas.

In creating value for society, the Company focuses on all segments
and emphasizes on caring for the environment and conservation of nature,
especially in regards to water and clean energy, in order to sustainably
create a better quality of life for people in society. The Company adheres
to the core value of the Premier Group that is committed to jointly create
harmonious alignment of success for its business, people and society.
The Company has continuously participated in the CSR-DIW project of
the Department of Industrial Works, Ministry of Industry and received the
CSR-DIW Continuous and CSR-DIW Advance awards. In addition, the electric
from the solar power plant of clean energy business, which produced in
2013, can reduce carbon emission by 10,317 tons, which is equivalent to
planting 70,285 trees or over 351 rai of afforested land.

Premier Products Public Co., Ltd. remains committed and focused
on good corporate governance, adherence to moral principles, transparent
business management under the principles of good governance, committed
management, dedication to performing duties at fullest capacity, and
improvement of every aspect of operation in order to build the confidence
of the shareholders, investors and all stakeholders.

The Board of Directors would like to extend its gratitude to all
parties involved, including its customers, trade partners, business alliances,
shareholders and employees, for their continuous support of the operations
of the Company.

Directors of
Premier Products Public Co., Ltd.

Annual Report 2013
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Board of Directors
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Mr. Suradej Boonyawatana . Mr. Chaiyavat Nitayaporn
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1981UNTIUNITAIRALILNY Independent Director and and Member of the Audit Committee
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and ® 6. U1ELAansd nﬁ’ﬂﬁ’uﬁ:
Chairman of Remuneration Committee Mr. Ekkarat Kladpan
® 2. uAAng Waugalsad NITUNTUALNITNNTEAANNS
Mrs. Duangthip Eamrungroj Director and Managing Director
N97UN19 LAZNITUNITANADLILNU e7. u’]EIﬂ?VI‘a“a‘ﬁ‘lj ﬁuqussmﬁ'
Director and Member of Remuneration Committee Mr. Paritud Bhandhubanyong
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Miss Chnida Suwanjutha Independent Director and and Member of the Audit Committee
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N9IUN1TANAALUNL Mrs. Walairat Pongjitt
Independent Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and N934N19/Director
Member of Remuneration Committee
® 4. uuRAT LaTReLag

Mrs. Pensri Dettingeng
N734N19/Director
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Mr. Suradej Boonyawatana .
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Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of Remuneration Committee
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Mr. Ekkarat Kladpan
NITUNITUALNIINNNTLAANT

Director and Managing Director
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Mr. Montol Hunsakunarom
HT8NIINNTEAANT ANENIRAT R/
MeNaniuTiTanieaia

Assistant Managing Director—-Marketing/
Sales for Building Material Products Unit
UNAINUFUT UIRNAL

Miss Nattaya Nuanplub
HE08NIINNITHAANIT AN8N1TEY
Assistant Managing Director—Finance Unit
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Management Team

WEgIAnG Adas

Mr. Surasak Passorn
HT98NIINNITEAANT ANENIRAR/
PIUNAAA UFNANUAZDA
Assistant Managing Director—-Marketing/
Sales for Clean Energy Products Unit
WIEWTRUS TN

Mr. Pornsun Chutep

0le.

T98nssuNITEAANT ANEIIUNINENTYARALAZIZLILNY
Assistant Managing Director-Human Resources and Systems Unit

welinsde wiglsshng

Mr. Natthachai Puangpradith
HTqenssunI9gannis anelesenu
Assistant Managing Director—Factory Unit
UNELAT LNANG VAT e

Mr. Decha Kaewparuehaschai
HiaenssunsEAAnIT @a18nnIRaneY
NS UL RN

Assistant Managing Director—Marketing/
Sales for Environmental Products Unit
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Details of Directors and Executives
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Age 63 Years
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[} ﬂ?‘ﬂgq_,l’]ﬁl?‘ Industrial Technology, Eastern Washington State University,
USA.
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N391N13 U3EN nassnwilles A

® 2547 - {laqtiu
® 2547 - {laqtiu
® 2548 - flaqtiu

® NN, 2556- 11aqifu

® n.gl. 2556 - 1aqiiu
o ilaqify
o ilaqify

e ulszant 2556
DELLIVANL 2090
15 wWalles Insdnd andm wunaw

Mr. Suradej Boonyawatana

lsza1ungsunis pazdszanuia I uinnuEwng
MNLASUNITURAIAT : 22 RIUNAN 2555
UsE81UNTTNNITAIADULNY
TUNLATUNTWENAS | 22 NNAMWUE 2556

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Date of Appointment : 22 August 2012
Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Date of Appointment : 22 February 2013

Education

® Bachelor’s degree of Industrial Technology, Eastern Washington State
University, U.S.A.

Training from Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

® Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Course, Class 19/2004

® Training on Finance for Non-Finance Director (FND) Course, Class 12/2004

® Training on Director Certification Program (DCP) Course, Class 97/2007

® Training on Role of the Nomination and Governance Committee (RNG)
Course, Class 1/2011

® Training on Role of the Compensation Committee (RCC) Course, Class 15/2012

Percentage of Shareholding (%) : 1.97%

Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None

Experiences over the Past 5 Years

® 1999 - Present Chief Executive Officer of the Environmental Business,

Premier Group of Companies

® 2004 - Present

® 2004 - Present

® 2005 — Present

® 2008 - 2012

Director, Premier Fission Capital Company Limited
Director, Premier Home Appliance Company Limited
Director, Premier Technology Public Company Limited
Chief Executive Officer, Premier Products Company
Limited

® 2011 — Present Director, Infinite Green Company Limited

® May 2012 = Aug. 2012 Chairman, Premier Products Company Limited
® Aug. 2012 - Present  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Premier Products Public Company Limited
® Feb. 2013 — Present Chairman of Remuneration Committee ,
Premier Products Public Company Limited

® Sep. 2013 - Present  Director, PP Wind Energy Company Limited

® Present Director, Companies in the Premier Group
of Companies
® Present Director, Kulthorn Premier Company Limited
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Mrs. Duangthip Eamrungroj

Age 58 Years

Director

Date of Appointment : 22 August 2012
Member of Remuneration Committee

, Date of Appointment : 22 February 2013
ACUICTNIVMISANUN Education
® Executive Master Degree in Consulting and Coaching for Change (CCC), ® Executive Master Degree in Consulting and Coaching for Change (CCC),
INSEAD, France INSEAD, France
e 1Brynin U?‘Mﬁﬁqiﬁ@ UNINLNARFIINANAET ® Master’s degree of Business Administration, Thammasat University
® ﬁryfywm? AANITUAAAT ﬂW’)mm‘IﬁuMﬁmmﬁﬁl ® Bachelor’s degree of Mechanical Engineering, Chulalongkorn University
® Diploma in Clinical Organizational Psychology, INSEAD, France ® Diploma in Clinical Organizational Psychology, INSEAD, France
msausu01naU'muai\>|a§uamJunssumsu§t‘fnTna (10D) Training from Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)
(] Mﬁﬂ@m Director Accreditation Program (DAP) @luﬁ 22 1 2547 ® Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Course, Class 22/2004
dodoumsdoRuluusun (%) : lifl Percentage of Shareholding (%) : None
ADWAUWUSNIVASOUASIS:KIOWUSKIS : Taid Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None
Us:aunisairinvufus:e: 5 U doukdav Experiences over the Past 5 Years
® 2535 - {faqifu n39:n17 U3 wWailef maluladl ads @undw) @ 1992 - Present Director, Premier Technology Public Company Limited
® 2539 - 2555 n79unNT U wWadlled Twesnd andm ® 1996 - 2012 Director, Premier Products Company Limited
® 2544 - flaqifu A731ANT U3EM Whias Bumeslned anfn @ 2001 - Present Director, Premier Enterprise Public Company Limited
(HuNTid) ® 2004 - Present Director, Premier Fission Capital Company Limited

® 2547 - flaqifu n79MNNT U Wil Wadu waltlnea andn ® 2004 - Present Director, Premier Home Appliance Company Limited
® 2547 - flaqifu N931N"7 L3EN WaHes Tas LL@W;wmmvawfﬁﬁm ® 2007 - Present Director, Premier Marketing Public Company Limited
® 2550 - faq1iu N93UN1T L3N Wale S anfifmke AfA (WWN11) @ Aug. 2012 — Present Director, Premier Products Public Company Limited
® 4.0 2555 - laqiiy n3suNg WEEn Wades Twednd annm (e ® 2012 - Present Director, Infinite Green Company Limited

® 2555 - {aqifu N371NNT LT AUALN N3w A1fdm ® Feb. 2013 - Present  Member of Remuneration Committee, Premier Products
® N, 2656- faqiiiy NIsuMTATRaLIMY 13 Willas Twednd Anrin Public Company Limited

(HuNTid) ® Sep. 2013 - Present Director, PP Wind Energy Company Limited
® N1, 2566 - {1Aq1Ty NIIUNTT L3EN AN Fus 1Wwwefa a1rin ® Present Director, Companies in the Premier Group of Companies
o flaqiiu n3suNg W lunguiddnaides ® Present Group Corporate Director, Corporate Affairs,
o laqifiy geuaenistugy aneuativany Premier Group of Companies

A e A a s
NQANLITEN WILNET

\ ? j
Annual Report 2013 ] ]
Premier Products Public Company Limited
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Mr. Ekkarat Kladpan
Age b5 Years
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Director and Managing Director
Date of Appointment : 22 August 2012

12

AR ATNMYMSANUY

@ Styny 53 IANTINANART NMANENRBNBRIANART
MsausuMNaLNALELIaSUaMUUNSsUNsUSEning (10D)

® 1ANgm3 Director Certification Program (DCP) @uﬁ 151 T 2854
dadounsdioRuluusun (%) : laidl
AWAUWUSNVASOUASISIKIONUSKIS : hldl
Uszaumsadrinvnufus:e: 5 U doukdo

® 2550 — 2555 NITUNT UAT NITUNITEAANS

U3 wWallas wednd anrim

NITUNIT UAT NITUNITEAANIS

U5 wWallaf wasnd anfin (W)

® n.o. 2556 - ffaqifiy  NITHNNT UTEM AR Aus 1EuuefA Qe
® 1 1. 2567 - flaqiiu N9sNnTe L3 Wale S tnednd a1 (v

® 4.A. 2555 — 9.A. 2556

e ulszant 2556
DELLIVANL 2090
15 wWalles Insdnd andm wunaw

Education
® Bachelor’s Degree of Civil Engineering, Kasetsart University
Training from Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
® Training on Director Certification Program (DCP) Course, Class 151/2011
Percentage of Shareholding (%) : None
Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None
Experiences over the Past 5 Years
® 2007 - 2012 Director and Managing Director,
Premier Products Company Limited
® Aug. 2012 - Dec.2013 Director and Managing Director,
Premier Products Public Company Limited
® Sep. 2013 - Present Director, PP Wind Energy Company Limited
® 1 Jan. 2014 - Present Director, Premier Products Public Company Limited
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Mrs. Pensri Dettingeng
Age 57 Years

Director

Date of Appointment :
' 22 August 2012

AUDCTNIVMISANUN

@ Sryoynes TTyd wvnanandamuaAtum
mMsausuNaunALELIaSUaMUUNssUN1suSEning (10D)

® %ANgA3 Director Accreditation Program (DAP) §ufl 1061j 2556

[ Mﬁﬂ@[ﬂi Anti-Corruption : The Practical Guide (ACPG) ;'uﬁ 7 1 2556
dadounisiioRuluusin (%) : 1l
ADWAUWUSNIVASBUASIS:KIOWUSKIS : Taid
Us:aunisadrivufus:e: 5 U goukdo

® 2539 - 2555 neTuNe Ui Wadlas Tnsdnd dvdn

@ 2552 - flaqtiy  nIsung L3 wales Redu undlnea Qarin
® 2552 - 1laq1iu neTuNg UEEm wailes Tan uennanauend anrin
® a.n. 2555 - Taqiil n9suns LW wWailled Tnednd Andm (o)
® n.¢. 2566 - f1aqifu NITuNIT L3N AR Tud WuWeFA Qrin

o ilaqiiu n3sung WsEn lunquudmnaies

o {aqifiy geuranisenqla ansatiuayy 2
naNLsENNILHeS

Education

® Bachelor’s degree of Accounting, Ramkhamhaeng University

Training from Thai Institute of Directors (I0OD)

® Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Course, Class 106/2013

® Training on Anti-Corruption : The Practical Guide (ACPG) Course, Class
7/2013

Percentage of Shareholding (%) : None

Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None

Experiences over the Past 5 Years

® 1996 - 2012

® 2009 - Present

® 2009 - Present

® Aug. 2012 - Present

® Sep. 2013 - Present

® Present

Director, Premier Products Company Limited
Director, Premier Fission Capital Company Limited
Director, Premier Home Appliance Company Limited
Director, Premier Products Public Company Limited
Director, PP Wind Energy Company Limited
Director, Companies in the Premier Group of Companies
® Present Senior Corporate Director, Corporate Affairs 2,
Premier Group of Companies

unvolasad wovdad
8¢ 51 1

nN5INNNS .
UNTASUNITUAIA :
22 R94MNAN 2555

Mrs. Walairat Pongjitt
Age 51 Years

Director

Date of Appointment :
22 August 2012

AR ATNIVYMSANUY

o fryaynv neLEvnegananiAenTy annTul AR RuLEIIANERT

o Sryrysis UIMNsgana A121NNIRULATNNIEUIANT
NMNANENRETNNATUI

mMseusuNaUNALELIaSUaMUUNssUNsUSEning (10D)

® %ANgA3 Director Accreditation Program (DAP) §uii 106 T| 2556

dagdoumsdioRuluusuin (%) : 133l

A WAUWUSNVASOUASIS:KIWRUSKIS : 1iifl

Us:aunisadrivnufus:e: 5 U goukdv

® 2539 - 2555 neruNe Ui Wadllas Tnsdnd <

@ 2552 - flaqiiy  nIsNNg UM walHes Redu undlnea Qarin

® 2552 - 1laq1iy nesuNg UsEm walles Tax wenwanaueud anrin

® 4.0, 2555 - tlaqiiy  nesunng 13En wales Twednd Qnnim ()

® 2555 - 1laq1iy NIINNTT UTEN BUAtin naw arin

® ng. 2656 - flaqis  nasunng L3N WA Aus Wwwada Aiin

o ilaqifu n33ung WsEn lunquuddvnailes

o {aqifi geunenisenqla anaatiuany 3
naNLSENWaLH S

Education

® Master of Public Administrative, National Institute of Development
Administration (NIDA)

® Bachelor’s degree of Business Administrative (Banking & Finance),
Ramkhamhaeng University

Training from Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

® Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Course, Class 106/2013

Percentage of Shareholding (%) : None

Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None

Experiences over the Past 5 Years

® 1996 - 2012

® 2009 - Present

® 2009 - Present

® Aug. 2012 - Present

® 2012 - Present

® Sep.2013 - Present

® Present

Director, Premier Products Company Limited
Director, Premier Fission Capital Company Limited
Director, Premier Home Appliance Company Limited
Director, Premier Products Public Company Limited
Director, Infinite Green Company Limited

Director, PP Wind Energy Company Limited
Director, Companies in the Premier Group of Companies
® Present Senior Corporate Director, Corporate Affairs 3,
Premier Group of Companies

Annual Report 2013
Premier Products Public Company Limited
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Miss Chnida Suwanjutha
Age 72 Years

AMRAINMYMSANUY

o f5rynynIn 13msgena 412101981 annTulnidaimuLETINANans

@ Post Graduate for Advance Studies in Economic & Social Studies, The Victoria
University of Manchester England

e 1Boynyes Toydindin annananduassuans

@ 1BynyAT WIAERTURA uunAnendusIsuAEARS

o Brynyinsnandsilasiumaeondns wangnenistlasiuemennndng
nAfgiaNenTy U 37 Anendetlesiuteandns

o faautinyTfueynyn wansiduw 1495

MsausuMNaLNALELIaSUaMUUNSsSUNsUSENing (10D)

® UANgM3 Director Accreditation Program (DAP) @uﬁ 97 1 2555

doadoumsiioRuluusun (%) : ludl

ADWAUWUSNIVASDUASIS:KIOWUSKIS : Tilfl

Uszaunisairinoulus:e: 5 U dourav

® 2544 — 2553 HAnnmauny Araninddunisiloguay

N19ANITNINUILINANATN NITNINLAFITH

Juseflszuan dszanaanindduniatonn

WATNNIANTENINLIITINANAN NIENTNEYRDTTY

MBEnsan TN NeWauLszdniniw

lusgnanag (@us) dineu .

N79uNN9 TUADIZNIINNNIAAFNNATINADLUAE

UsLIlunaY WNINeNaes A aIundn

Usz8IUNITUNIT AYNITUNITANANTUNIATUANITR

wevfretunsiiowdufasuiydiuayyn

AT TniToyd

NITUNIIENIADIN A1TIN1TRULATNITEYT

AN N,

AMENITNNIIAdaULae U ydn Eens

NINATINING

@ L8l 2555 - 6.A. 2555 NITNNITBATLUALUILHIUNTINNIIATIAAAY

13 Waldes nednd anra

® 4.p. 2555 - a9 N99UN19RATLUAZUILEIUNTINNIIATIAADL

13 Wales wednd danda (i)

NITUNNIAIRALILNL 11580 Wales Twadnd anria

(HuN11)

® 1.A. 2556 - 111l NFINNTRATLUAZUILEIUNTINNIIATIAADL

v Wil s @umeslned anfda Wuaw

ALUA AnetTnyd Inendamaluladdena

® 2544 - {aqiiu
® 2545 - 2550
® 2547 - {laqiiu

® 2550 - 2554

® 2550 - {Jaqiiu

® 25571 - 2554

® NN, 2556- faqiiu

o {aq1iu

e ulszant 2556
DELLIVANL 2090
15 wWalles Insdnd andm wunaw

nss;ums?zm:ua:ﬂszmunssumsmmqmu
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TUNLATUNISUBANAT : 22 NUMWUS 2556

Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
Date of Appointment : 22 August 2012

Member of Remuneration Committee

Date of Appointment : 22 February 2013

Education

® Master of Business Administration (Finance), National Institute of
Development Administrative (NIDA)

® Post Graduate for Advance Studies in Economic & Social Studies, The Victoria
University of Manchester, England

® Bachelor’s degree of Accounting, Thammasat University

® Bachelor’s degree of Commerce, Thammasat University

® Fellowship of The National Defence College, National Defence Course for
The Joint State-Private, class 37, National Defence College, Thailand

® Certified Public Accountant No. 1495

Training from Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

® Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Course, Class 97/2012

Percentage of Shareholding (%) : None

Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None

Experiences over the Past 5 Years

® 2001 - 2010 Associate Judge, The Central Intellectual Property

and International Trade Court, Ministry of Justice

® 2001 — Present Conciliator, The Central Intellectual Property and

International Trade Court, Ministry of Justice

® 2002 - 2007 Advisor, Thailand Innovative Administration Consultancy

Institute, Office of the Civil Service Commission

® 2004 - Present Committee of Monitoring and Evaluation,

Suan Dusit Rajabhat University

® 2007 - 2011 Chairman, Subcommittee consideration of the

applicant for registration as a CPA, Federation of

Accounting Professions

® 2007 — Present Quialified Person Committee of Financial and Accountant,

Office of the Civil Service Commission

® 2008 - 2011 Committee Bureau of Tax Auditing Standards,

The Revenue Department

® Apr. 2012 = Aug. 2012 Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit

Committee, Premier Products Company Limited

® Aug. 2012 - Present Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit

Committee, Premier Products Public Company Limited

® Feb. 2013 — Present  Member of Remuneration Committee, Premier Products

Public Company Limited

® Dec. 2013 — Present Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit

Committee, Premier Enterprise Public Company Limited

® Present Dean, Faculty of Accountancy, Siam Technology College
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Mr. Chaiyavat Nitayaporn
Age 63 Years

AUDCATNIVASANUN

o Sryryeis Adenans Qnaensniumianenae
MsausuNaUnALEvIaSUaMUUNssUNsUSEning (10D)
(] Mﬁﬂqm Director Accreditation Program (DAP) a;u'ﬁ 97 1] 2555
dodoumsfioRuluusydn (%) : 0.02%
ADWAUWUSNIVASDUASIS:KIOWUSKIS : Tiid
Uszaumsadrivufus:e: 5 U doukdvo

® 2552 - 2555 MRENINALNNT AT9qsanendt

® 2554 - f1aq1Ti N9suNINUINEINEINEINENAY A uRITUAME
27179 AE
nIsNNETILEN 9 EsN95aNeNaY AnudTng
1391989 ENAE

® 138l 2555 - .. 2555  NITUNTRATTUATNITNNIATIAALL
U3En Willes ednd d1iin
NITNNNIBATLUAZNITNNNINTIAADL
UTEn Wales ednd Anrim (T

® 2555 - laqifu

® 4.A. 2555 - 1laqifiy

ﬂﬁ‘a‘?\lﬂ’]igﬂ‘a‘xLLﬂSJ]‘J‘iNﬂ”I‘EGI‘J’J"’]ﬂﬂ‘U
o i vas 1 = a
'auw"l,mummmm 1 22 A9UNAN 2555

Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee
Date of Appointment : 22 August 2012

Education
® Bachelor’s degree of Law, Chulalongkorn University

Training from Thai Institute of Directors (I0OD)

® Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Course, Class 97/2012
Percentage of Shareholding (%) : 0.02%

Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None
Experiences over the Past 5 Years

® 2009 - 2012

® 2011 - Present

Advisor to the Headmaster, Vajiravudh College
Member of Boarding Houses Advisory Board,
Vajiravudh College

® 2012 - Present Member of Academic Advisory Board, Vajiravudh
College

® Apr. 2012 = Aug. 2012 Independent Director and Member of the Audit

Committee, Premier Products Company Limited

® Aug. 2012 - Present Independent Director and Member of the Audit

Committee, Premier Products Public Company Limited

Annual Report 2013
Premier Products Public Company Limited
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Mr. Paritud Bhandhubanyong

Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee
Date of Appointment : 22 August 2012

16

ANDATNMONSANUN
[} IE‘QJQ;I’]L’;M Doctor of Metallurgical Engineering winanendalaien
Uszmeitgiu

o Bryaynn wilaeAans (13n19990a) NuaNeNALssINAans

o Gryeyain FAINIsNANAnT (gRa1unng) QRnaInsaiuvnanende

® oyny1si3 AANIsNAART (@AAIINE) NAINTAINNIANLNAE

MsausuMNaALELIESUEMUUNSSUMSUSENIng (10D)

® 1angM3 Director Accreditation Program (DAP) guﬁ 71 1 2551

® 1angm3 Director Certification Program (DCP) :;uﬁ 105 T 2551

® vdngms Audit Committee Program (ACP) §ufl 36 1 2554

® 1aANgM3 Role of the Compensation Committee (RCC) guﬁ 13 1 2564

dagdumsiioRulusun (%) : Ll

ADWAUWUSNIOASOUASISKIRUSKIS : Ldl

Us:aumsadrinoufus:e: 5 U Joukdvo

® 2540 - flaquiu nesunsBasy 13 Wales walulad ania monaw

® 2542 - 2550 ffgnunenng guidinalulatlavzuasianuieni

® 2551 - flaqifu fiinwgenuanis driinauimuanenAaniuay
walulaguviennA .

® 2553 - flaqiiu fawnenis annandasumnalulad (Ine-dgy)

® (3.8l 2555 - /.0, 2555 NITNNNTBATIUAZNITNNNIATIAGEL

131 Waille§ tnedind Arim

NITUNNIBATZUAZNITNNNINIIAGEL

151 Widles§ twedind Qi (W)

® 4.A. 2555 - flaqiiu

e ulszant 2556
QEMLLITANL 2990
15 wWalles Inednd andm wunaw

Education

® Doctorate of Metallurgical Engineering, University of Tokyo, Japan

® Master’s degree of Business Administration, Thammasat University

® Master’s degree of Industrial Engineering, Chulalongkorn University

® Bachelor’s degree of Industrial Engineering, Chulalongkorn University

Training from Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

® Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Course, Class 71/2008

® Training on Director Certification Program (DCP) Course, Class 105/2008

® Training on Audit Committee Program (ACP) Course, Class 36/2011

® Training on Role of the Compensation Committee (RCC) Course, Class 13/2011

Percentage of Shareholding (%) : None

Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None

Experiences over the Past 5 Years

® 1997 - Present Independent Director,

Premier Technology Public Company Limited

® 1999 - 2007 Executive Director,

National Metal and Materials Technology Center

® 2008 - Present Advisor to the President, National Science and Technology

Development Agency.

® 2010 - Present Executive Director, Technology Promotion Association (Thailand-Japan)

® Apr. 2012 = Aug. 2012 Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee,
Premier Products Company Limited

® Aug. 2012 - Present  Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee,

Premier Products Public Company Limited
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1 NUNAN 2556

Mr. Montol Hunsakunarom
Age 42 Years

Assistant Managing Director —
Marketing/Sales for Building
Material Products Unit

Date of Appointment :

1 March 2013

AUDCTNIVASANUN

] lﬁ‘iyﬂ_lwﬂw U?W]?Q?ﬁ‘ﬂ Texas A&M University Commerce, U.S.A.
o Sryryes 13wnsgana QnasnIaumaIne A
MsausUINAUNAUALIaSUaNUUNSSUMSUSENIng (10D)
® 1angm3 Director Certification Program (DCP) $14 182 T 2556
dodoumsdoRuluusun (%) : lidl
ADWAUWUSNIVASDUASIS:KIOWUSKIS : Tiid
Uszaumsadrinvufus:e: 5 U doukdv

® 2547 - 2555
® 2555 — 2556

= o

sestlsynaiung U3 1ea 1 Guad 4da
gannasluny
131 FRavmda Sumefuduiun manns 41da
® 1A 2556 - 5.A. 2556 HTAENIINNNIEAANIT ANENITAANA/UE
HanAMIIdanNaaing
1380 Walles Insdnd anfie (v
@ 1 1A, 2557 — 11Aq1iu nasunIfdANIs
1380 Walles Insdnd anfie (v

Education
® Master of Business Administration, Texas A&M University Commerce,
U.SA.
® Bachelor’s degree of Business Administration, Chulalongkorn University
Training from Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
® Training on Director Certification Program (DCP) Course, Class 182/2013
Percentage of Shareholding (%) : None
Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None
Experiences over the Past 5 Years
® 2004 - 2012 Vice President, S.B. Realty Company Limited
® 2012 - 2013 General Manager,
Result Plus International Trading Company Limited
® Mar. 2013 - Dec. 2013 Assistant Managing Director-Marketing/Sales for
Building Material Products Unit,
Premier Products Public Company Limited
® 1 Jan. 2014 - Present Managing Director,
Premier Products Public Company Limited
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1 HQuneu 2555

Mr. Decha Kaewparuehaschai
Age 46 Years

Assistant Managing Director —
Marketing/Sales for Environmental
Products Unit

Date of Appointment :

1 June 2012

A ATNYMISANUN

e Faynnin timegana aontuinidiaimuisunsaans

® 1Sy sid AAINTINANERT (AAIANIG) NWNANYIATTRULNY
dadounsdioRuluusun (%) : laidl
AWAUWUSNVASOUASISKIOWUSKIS : Laldl
Uszaunisairinoulus:e: 5 U oukav

® 2548 - 2555 gaaniseenisnann/ang

1im Wil s wasind anrn
giaensInnnsgannis aen1snana/ane
HARTUTIAIUIAR DN

13m Waldes wesnd e (unw)

® 2555 - flaqiiu

Education

® Master of Business Administration, National Institute of Development
Administration (NIDA)

® Bachelor’s degree of Industrial Engineering, Khon Kaen University

Percentage of Shareholding (%) : None

Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None

Experiences over the Past 5 Years

® 2005 - 2012 Department Manager-Marketing/Sales,

Premier Products Company Limited

® 2012 — Present Assistant Managing Director-Marketing/Sales for

Environmental Products Unit,

Premier Products Public Company Limited

Annual Report 2013
Premier Products Public Company Limited
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1 {uneu 2556

Mr. Surasak Passorn

Age 43 Years

Assistant Managing Director —
Marketing/Sales for Clean
Energy Products Unit

Date of Appointment :

1 June 2013

AMRAINMYMSANUY

o 1f5tynynIn 13u9gana (MBA - Finance) ¥n1ananatdadudty (ABAC)
® 1Boyny 67 FAINITHANART (QRAINNTT) NMINENRETBUI

o sznadlaring

C.P.K.(Certified Purchasing Knowledge)

C.P.S. (Certified Purchasing Specialist)

Financial Management for Executive by Chulalongkorn University

Professional Property Valuation by Agency for Real Estate Affair
doadoumsiioRuluusun (%) : laifl
ADWAUWUSNIVASDUASIS:KIWUSKIS : Tilf
Us:aunisairnvufus:e: 5 U doukav ‘
® 2551 - 2554 ffapnslasanig s wiies Wedu ueilTines anrin
® 2555 - §l.p. 2556 fAnnnslasannseandAanasy

1390 Walles Aodu wadtlnea anin

® Liel. 2556 — W.A. 2556 AaAN1erhenananm/anenaR s AN INAWNL
1390 Walles Inednd anfm (W)
H198n33:n1954AN1e a18n19nan/ang
NARAUTINANUAZRA
1390 Walles Inednd anfm (W)

® il.el. 2556 - flaqiiu

Education
® Master of Business Administration (Finance), Assumption University of
Thailand (ABAC)
® Bachelor’s degree of Industrial Engineering, Khon Kaen University
® Certificate
C.P.K. (Certified Purchasing Knowledge)
C.P.S. (Certified Purchasing Specialist)
Financial Management for Executive by Chulalongkorn University
Professional Property Valuation by Agency for Real Estate Affair
Percentage of Shareholding (%) : None
Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None
Experiences over the Past 5 Years
® 2008 - 2011 Project Manager,
Premier Fission Capital Company Limited
® 2012 - Mar. 2013 Project Engineering Manager,
Premier Fission Capital Company Limited
® Apr. 2013 — May 2013 Department Manager-Marketing/Sales
for Renewable Energy Products,
Premier Products Public Company Limited
® Jun. 2013 - Present  Assistant Managing Director-Marketing/Sales
for Clean Energy Products Unit,

Premier Products Public Company Limited
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Mr. Natthachai Puangpradith
Age 47 Years

Assistant Managing Director —
Factory Unit

Date of Appointment :

1 June 2012
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Education

® Master of Business Administration, National Institute of Development
Administration (NIDA)

® Bachelor’s Degree of Mechanical Engineering, Khon Kaen University

Percentage of Shareholding (%) : None

Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None

Experiences over the Past 5 Years

® 2007 - 2010  Kabinburi Factory Manager,
Premier Products Company Limited
® 2010 - 2011 Project & Business Development Manager,
Premier Products Company Limited
® 2011 - 2012  Department Manager-Marketing/Sales for Building

Material Products,
Premier Products Company Limited

® 2012 - Present Assistant Managing Director-Factory Unit,
Premier Products Public Company Limited
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Miss Nattaya Nuanplub
Age 51 Years

Assistant Managing Director —
Finance Unit

Date of Appointment :

1 May 2007
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Education

® Bachelor of Accounting, Faculty of Economics, Kasetsart University
® Certified Public Account No. 3828

Percentage of Shareholding (%) : None

Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None
Experiences over the Past 5 Years

® 2007 - 2012 Assistant Managing Director-Support Unit,
Premier Products Company Limited

® 2012 - Present Assistant Managing Director-Finance Unit,

Premier Products Public Company Limited
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Mr. Pornsun Chutep

Age 55 Years

Assistant Managing Director —
Human Resources and Systems Unit
Date of Appointment :

1 June 2013
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Education
® Master of Political Science, Ramkhamhaeng University
® Bachelor’s degree of Political Science, Ramkhamhaeng University
Percentage of Shareholding (%) : None
Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None
Experiences over the Past 5 Years
® 2008 - May 2013  Department Manager-Human Resources and
Administration, Premier Products Company Limited
® June 2013 - Present Assistant Managing Director-Human Resources
and Systems Unit,
Premier Products Public Company Limited

Annual Report 2013
Premier Products Public Company Limited
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Mr. Teerapol Juthapornpong
Age 49 Years

Company Secretary

Date of Appointment :

10 August 2012
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Education

® Master’s of Business Administration, Thammasat University

® Graduate Diploma in Business Law, Thammasat University

® Barrister at Law, Institute of Legal Education of Thai Bar Association
® Bachelor’s degree of Laws, Ramkhamhaeng University

Training from Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

® Training on Company Secretary Program (CSP) Course, class 6/2004
Percentage of Shareholding (%) : None

Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None
Experiences over the Past 5 Years

@ 1985 - 1992 Legal Advisor, DKSH (Thailand) Limited
® 1992 - 2001 Lawyer, PBS Law Limited
® 2001 - 2002 Partner, Natee International Law Ofce Limited

® 2002 - Present Corporate Director, Legal and Corporate Registration,

Premier Group of Companies
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Mr. Akapun Nuanmuang
Age 50 Years

Internal Auditor

Date of Appointment :

16 May 2012
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® Business Continuity Managing Disruption Related Risk in Compliance with
ISO 31000
® Application of Risk Management International Standard 1SO 31000 : 2009
and Risk Assessment Techniques IEC 31010 : 2009
® Integrated Risk Management ISO 31000 - 2009 / COSO - ERM
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Education

® Master’s Degree of Business Administration, Burapa University

® Mini MBA Chulalongkorn University

® Higher Graduate Diploma in Auditing, Chulalongkorn University

® Bachelor’s Degree of Business Administration,
(Accounting) Ramkhamhaeng University

Training

® Business Continuity Managing Disruption Related Risk in Compliance with
ISO 31000

® Application of Risk Management International Standard 1SO 31000 : 2009
and Risk Assessment Techniques IEC 31010 : 2009

® Integrated Risk Management ISO 31000 - 2009 / COSO - ERM

Percentage of Shareholding (%) : None

Relationship with Company’s Executive (s) : None

Experiences over the Past 5 Years

® 1995 - 2012 Department Manager, Internal Audit Office,

Premier Capital (2000) Company Limited

Premier Enterprise Public Company Limited

Premier LMS Company Limited

Premier Global Capital Company Limited

® 2012 - Present Corporate Director, Internal Audit Office,

Premier Fission Capital Company Limited
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Organization Chart

ACU:NSSUNISUSYN
Board of Directors

Us:sUISKUNAUSKIS
Chief Executive Officer

NSSUNMSKWYAMS
Managing Director

W88NSSUNISWIONS W¥8NSSUNSKWYONS W¥UNSSUNMSIWIANTS
dngnsaana/ungwaanoun dgNsaanQ/UngWannoun d9NISOaNQ/UYWAONTUN
dvnnaaay Jaqniadasv wavvug:ona
Assistant Managing Director Assistant Managing Director Assistant Managing Director
Marketing/Sales for Marketing/Sales for Building Marketing/Sales for Clean
Environmental Products Unit Material Products Unit Energy Products Unit
W¥UNSSUNMSWIANTS WEIUNSSUNISWOONTS W88NSSUNSWOONS
a']EJTS\)\)’]U d19NISIvu aw\nuns‘wmnsqnna
Assistant Managing Director Assistant Managing Director 11a:S:uuUvIU
Factory Unit Finance Unit Assistant Managing Director

Human Resources and
systems Unit
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Premier Products Public Company Limited



S18BOUSUNIUNEUUSUNWSITYS

1. uden wWaidles Hedu waltlnaa in (PFC) 1. Premier Fission Capital Co., Ltd. (PFC)
2. U3 wWiidled 1aunasined S10m (uvnew) (PE) 2. Premier Enterprise PCL. (PE)
3. usHM wWales uaLlilnaa (2000) 1im (PC2000) 3. Premier Capital (2000) Co., Ltd. (PC2000)
4, U3t wWhdled Aumad At $1in (PIL) 4. Premier Inter Leasing Co., Ltd. (PIL)
5. 136 wales TusAlAasisa anm (PB) 5. Premier Brokerage Co., Ltd. (PB)
6. UFEM WAeS uaslduad S10n (PLMS) 6. Premier LMS Co., Ltd. (PLMS)
7. U3t Wailes anfifinRe $10m () (PM) 7. Premier Marketing PCL. (PM)
8. UsEM #.1aa.ym 41 (PMF) 8. P.M. Food Co., Ltd. (PMF)
9. USEM WaNes LLﬂuﬁﬂ ﬁuﬁﬂﬂ“‘; NNA (PCI) 9. Premier Canning Industry Co., Ltd. (PCI)
10. U5 WaeS Tsidu Twsend ann (PFP)  10. Premier Frozen Products Co., Ltd. (PFP)
11. U3t WaleS wialulat Snm (V) (PT)  11. Premier Technology PCL. (PT)
12. 131 menlls paniamed FaANd A (DCS)  12. Datapro Computer Systems Co., Ltd. (DCS)
13. USHN WaLlES Nawmas A nm (PMC)  13. Premier Motors Co., Ltd. (PMC)
14. U3 WaeS winstia 4 (PMB)  14. Premier Metro Bus Co., Ltd. (PMB)
15. U3HN WaLES Fasnd waum lawad e (PRH)  15. Premier Resort & Hotel Co., Ltd. (PRH)
16. UFHN 518 LFDINA INA (RYH)  16. Raya Heritage Co., Ltd. (RYH)
17. U3t Fugdiaas anm (SHR)  17. Sea Harrier Co., Ltd. (SHR)
18. USHN LESWILNLS Anm (SP)  18. Seri Premier Co., Ltd. (SP)
19. U wythwiad ann (MS)  19. Moo Ban Seri Co., Ltd. (MS)
20. L3EY 163 NEaNNRSAA Taane S1im (SPH)  20. Seri Properties Holding Co., Ltd. (SPH)
21. 13 wadles Tnawda watilnaa s (PGCAP)  21. Premier Global Capital Co., Ltd. (PGCAP)
22. 15HN §9EgY NA (SRS)  22. Sarasuk Co., Ltd. (SRS)
23. L3HN Wadlas finla nm (PTDO)  23. Premier TDO Co., Ltd. (PTDO)
24. L5HN AAALATY 5 aNA (LQ5)  24. Liquidation 5 Co., Ltd. (LQ5)
25. 1540 wWiles win Tnsand annm (P-PET)  25. Premier Pet Products Co., Ltd. (P-PET)
26. L3HN NAAIAS LA 3R (Seto)  26. Seto Restaurant Co., Ltd. (Seto)
27. UFHN gluﬁ‘lw?tﬁiléﬂaﬁﬂ 1NM (PSC)  27. Premier Sukhumvit Center Co., Ltd. (PSC)
28. L5H 183 waRLINg A1nn (SA)  28. Seri Assets Co., Ltd. (SA)
29. 15N WHLleS Aamasiuiin NaLnasa Ann (PAM)  29. Premier Alternative Motors Co., Ltd. (PAM)
30. L3HN WaLas LLNHLLV\IF\L@@?« NA (PMN)  30. Premier Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (PMN)
31, 13t AnfiiSea Aha $1nm (IME)  31. Imperial Eagle Co., Ltd. (IME)
32. UM WaLHeS unauuas (PPlanner)  32. Premier Planner Co., Ltd. (PPlanner)
33. 131 Wales @@ nm (PCE)  33. Premier CE Co., Ltd. (PCE)
34. U5HN waaida Anm (LPCE)  34. LPCE Co., Ltd. (LPCE)
35. 158 WaeS aunsaRsAIRas Alasaileun (PID)  35. Premier Infrastructure Development Co., Ltd. (PID)
36. USHN L@W1H anA (SNE)  36. Senanee Co., Ltd. (SNE)
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Nature of Business
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Environmental Products , Building Materials and Industrial Support Products
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Energy-saving Electrical Appliances Clean Energy Business
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& Significant Changes and Major Developments
Premier Products Public Co., Ltd. was incorporated on
December 2, 1975 under the name Premier Products Co., Ltd.
to operate as a manufacturer and distributor of environmental
products. The Company began with the manufacture and distribution
of wastewater treatment products under the “SATS” brand with
technology from Matsushita Electric Works Ltd. of Japan, which
made it the first and only company in Thailand to manufacture and
sell to general consumers. The Company was continuously successful
in marketing these products, which made them known and popular
among the general public and was the origin of why wastewater
treatment tanks are called “SATS tanks” up until the present day.
Subsequently, the Company expanded the scope of its business
to cover the environmental products that comprise wastewater
treatment and water storage systems, as well as building materials
and industrial support products. Presently, the Company is consid-
ered one of the leading companies in the environmental products
business for its wastewater treatment and water storage systems
and is also a leader in the manufacture and distribution of building
materials and industrial support products. The Company has a head office
located at Premier Place Building, No. 2 Soi Premier 2, Srinakarin Road,
Nong Bon Sub-district, Prawet District, Bangkok and a factory with
an area of approximately 46 rai located in the Kabinburi Industrial Zone,
Tambol Nong Ki, Amphur Kabinburi, Prachinburi Province.
To expand its investment into the environmentally-friendly
business and to create stability in terms of revenue for the Company
in the long term:

® In May 2011, the Company jointly invested in the solar power

business by purchasing the ordinary shares of Infinite Green Co., Ltd.
(IGC) equal to 25.01% of its registered capital of 247 million Baht.
In 2012, the Company made additional investments in IGC and
as at September 26, 2012, the Company held 66.64% of IGC’s
shares, which made it a subsidiary company. As at December 31,
2013, the Company’s held 75.60% of IGC’s registered capital of
600 million Baht.

@® In December 2011, the Company purchased 9,997 ordinary
shares or 99.97% of the registered capital of Premier Home Appliance
Co., Ltd (PHA). PHA operates as a distributor of electrical appliances
with energy-saving features.

@ On August 22, 2012, the Company converted into a public
company limited and increased its registered capital from 217.50
million Baht to 300 million Baht through the issuance of 82.50 million
capital increase ordinary shares with a par value of 1 Baht per share.

® In September 2013, the Company established PP Wind
Energy Co., Ltd. (PPW) to study the feasibility of entering into the wind
power plant business with a registered capital of 1 million Baht. The
Company holds 99,997 shares or 99.99% of the registered capital of
PPW. In December 2013, the shareholders’” meeting of PPW approved the
increase of its registered capital by another 34 million Baht with the Board

of Directors to gradually increase capital according to its needs for funds.

Shareholding Structure of the Group of Companies
Shareholding structure of Premier Products Public Co., Ltd. and
its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2013
The Company has 3 subsidiaries and the details of their

business operation are as follows:

Premier Products Public
Co., Ltd.

| 99.97 %

Premier Home Appliance
Co., Ltd. (PHA)

® Premier Home Appliance Co., Ltd. (PHA)

PHA operates as a distributor of electrical appliances with
energy-saving features under the brand “MIRAGE”, which is its own
brand. PHA’s distribution is made through over 300 customers that are
electrical appliance stores nationwide and in countries in the ASEAN
Economic Community (AEC).

@ Infinite Green Co., Ltd (IGC)

IGC is a producer of electricity from solar power that is clas-
sified as a Very Small Power Producer (VSPP) with a power purchase
agreement with the Provincial Electricity Authority (PEA) and is supported

| 75.60 %

Infinite Green
Co., Ltd (IGQ)

| 99.99 %

PP Wind Energy
Co., Ltd. (PPW)

by the renewable energy support program of the Energy Policy and
Planning Office, Ministry of Energy. IGC’s main income is derived from
electricity sale and the additional tariff (Adder) granted by the PEA.

@ PP Wind Energy Co., Ltd. (PPW)

PPW was established with the objective of studying the
feasibility of conducting the wind power plant business, which is a
business that is in line with the business of the clean energy group
and will help to increase the potential for business expansion of

the Company. PPW is now in the process of studying the feasibility .

of the business.

Annual Report 2013
Premier Products Public Company Limited
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Nature of Business

Income Structure

Consolidated Income .Operated By :

Share-holding %

1. Environmental products The Company

2. Building materials and The Company

industrial support products

3. Energy-saving electrical PHA
appliances
4. Clean energy business* IGC

Sales and Service Income
. #
Other income

Total Income

gR.L7

75.60

2012
2013 Restated 2011

Milion Bahti 9% iMilion Banti % iMilion Bahti %
717.49 i 47.19 ; 682.29 5091 i 623.27 | 68.10
405.34 26,67 | 369.25 i27.56 { 273.32 i 29.86
166.95 { 10.98 { 190.61 | 14.23 - -
220.00 i 1447 i 59.81 i 4.46 - -
1,609.78: 99.31 {1,301.96} 97.16  896.59 i 97.96
1055 : 069 i 38.08 { 2.84 : 1865 : 2.04
£1,520.33i100.00: 1,340.04 :100.00 915.24 100.00

Remarks : * Sales and service income for the clean energy business includes the additional tariff (Adder).

# Other income consists of rental income, interest income, gain on guarantee obligations, etc.

The business of the Company and its subsidiaries is divided into 4 product groups as follows:

ﬁ Environmental Products Group and
Building Materials and Industrial
Support Products Group

e Characteristics of the Products or Services
Environmental Products Group

The products in the Environmental Products Group can be
divided into the following types:

Wastewater treatment system

At present, the raw material generally used in the manufac-
ture of wastewater treatment tanks consists of two types, namely,
fiberglass and polyethylene. The Company is a leader in the
manufacture and distribution of wastewater treatment systems
made from berglass. The Company produces wastewater treatment
products under many of its own brands, such as SATS, AEROWHEEL,
AEROMAX, ECO-TANK, AEROTOL, etc. that are popular and
widely accepted in terms of quality, durability and number of varieties
of products that can fully meet the different needs of the various

customer groups. The Company manufactures both the aerobic and

anaerobic wastewater treatment tanks and its wastewater treatment

system can be divided by usage into 2 types as follow:

- Wastewater treatment system for houses, such as SATS and
ECO-TANKS, BIOTOL and P.P. grease trap.

- Wastewater treatment system for medium to large build-
ings and factories, namely, AEROTOL, AEROWHEEL, AEROMAX and
SUPERSATS tanks and P.P. grease trap.

Wastewater treatment equipment, namely, Tsurumi waste
water pump and Tsurumi, Air Pure and Fuchs aerators.

Water storage system. The Company is a manufacturer
and distributor of water storage tanks made from fiberglass and
polyethylene under the brand “PP”, which can be divided into
two types by size as follows:

- Water storage tanks for general use with capacities ranging
from 500-4,000 litres suitable for houses and buildings, and

- Large water storage tanks with capacities ranging from 5,000-
100,000 litres suitable for buildings or factories.

In 2013, the Company has introduced a new product the Smart

Tank that was launched at the end of the year, which is now starting

Annual Report 2013
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to be used in housing projects of many leading property developers.
In addition, the Company has developed the reuse water system under
the brand MAXFiL, which is a water filtration system that is appropriate
for use in medium to large buildings, as well as industrial factories that
use large amounts of water. Treated wastewater can be passed through
this water filtration system for reuse, which will to help reduce the cost
to the building owners and also promote conservation of the global
environment together with building a good corporate image.

\Wastewater treatment system monitoring and maintenance
services

The Company provides fully comprehensive design, advisory and
maintenance services for small to large wastewater treatment systems
for various types of buildings. The Company focuses on analyzing the
cause of the system’s malfunction and the provision of effective repair
for the customers. In addition, the Company provides repair services
for all types of wastewater treatment equipment to general customers.
The types of services provided are as follows:

- Services for small wastewater treatment systems

- Services for large wastewater treatment system

- Repair services for wastewater treatment system equipment.

This is supplemented by the reuse water system, which allows
treated wastewater to be brought back for reuse according to usage
type as well.

Building Materials and Industrial Support
Product Group

The Company operates as a manufacturer and distributor of
building materials and industrial support products made from glass
reinforced cement, fiberglass reinforced plastic, acrylic and forged steel,
as well as products made to customer requirements and products for
project work. The types of products can be divided as follows:

Precast lightweight wall panels

Noise barrier systems

Decorative moldings

Metal roofing and sidings for buildings and factories

Bathtubs and bathroom accessories

Chemical corrosion resistant pipes, tanks and fittings.

In 2013, the Company expanded its business by adding new
products as follows:

Solar power system installed on roofs (solar rooftop system)
where the Company is the designer, installer, and system integrator. The
Company is also an importer of major equipment for the solar rooftop
system, such as solar inverters that convert the variable direct current
output into a utility frequency alternating current and solar PV modules,
for design and installation of solar rooftop systems of appropriate
sizes for maximum efficiency and suitable for customers’ needs. Elec-
tricity from the solar rooftop system is clean, environmentally friendly
energy, which is consistent with the Company’s main policy for busi-

ness operations.

e Marketing and Competition
Competitive Strategy

The business operations of the Company rely mainly on confidence
in the quality of its products and services. Its accomplishments over
more than 38 years are testimony of the good quality of the products
and services it provides to its customers. This has helped the Com-
pany to continuously win the trust of its customers in product quality,
on-time deliveries and quality of after-sale services. The Company has
the following competitive strategies:

(1) Product quality

(2) Product cost management

(3) Product pricing

(4) Marketing promotions

(5) On-time deliveries of products and services

(6) Provision of pre-sale and after-sale services.

(7) Continuous development and introduction of new products
into the market

(8) Development of distribution channels.

Target Customer Group

As the Company’s products are mainly composed of products
related to the wastewater treatment and water storage systems
and products used in buildings and industrial factories, therefore, the
Company’s customer groups consist mostly of customers in the real
estate and industrial businesses. The Company’s customers can be
divided into 4 main groups, namely:

(1) Residential buildings/housing estates

(2) Industrial factories

(3) Large buildings

(4) Infrastructure projects.

The largest target customer group is the large buildings
group followed by the industrial factories group, the residential
building/housing estates group and the infrastructure projects group,
respectively.

The Company has a policy to expand exports to the ASEAN
Economic Community (AEC) markets and other potential countries as it
recognizes the opportunity from increased awareness of these countries
of environmental problems, especially increased water pollution.
Sales and Distribution Channels

The Company’s distribution channel in the country can be
divided into two channels, which are:

(1) Sales to project owners, contractors and general customers

The Company emphasizes on sales to project owners,
including housing estate development projects and various factory
building construction projects, or direct sales through contractors
or architects who determine the types of products to be used in the

projects. The direct sales strategy consists of the use of salespersons,

the setting up of sales offices and organization of exhibitions/printed

media/website of the Company.

Annual Report 2013
Premier Products Public Company Limited

v

29



30

(2) N9INERIUANUANULNE A nFunngana tuLlseina
FaunuagaesidEmaziuituanedagieadslulssma
L1 iﬂuiammi‘w UYDN93 Xugenninaveaand suna
?mmmﬂﬂmweuj mu‘wﬂumqmwwmmummammm
mmLmumumwmmwumwmuwuﬁmmﬂumwm@m
19U u@ﬂmﬂumwgm%\immmwmﬂﬂmmLmumuma
Tusnaszimadnaae AeilL3EnANNI RN ARLABN AN
Amdne IagiansunaInnIsnLiiugsnaedannaaiaay
szl ARdnan N ALlaRA
IIUDTUUOCIH"IKnSSU

mnmﬂﬂuﬂ@uN@mnmmwLLﬂmuLLMmummmu
‘Emﬁmmmﬂﬁiﬂ@mﬂ@mmmmwa sieludaurasadeisunsne
Lw'ammqmm N1INIRTE WATRMAINNTIN A3 auIn
1091 2556 ﬁﬁqmm?m?tyLﬁuimiﬁmwmij@m?ﬂammi
raulafifaufineaisuazidlagaamineunniuseiinsann
‘]J 2666 fUNN3BNAR9095NANUARAT IUA9AImTR 8N
mﬁan@wmmmmmm‘lmnmmm’wl‘mmu Faai v dou
”Lumwamqﬂ WntloyniaruiasanIuaInnlunig
FrszviimasnAni ey mﬂuﬁmmmmqmmiﬂ@famuma
wwﬂmﬂmmﬁ”@@mm @nmmimmmqwmqmm\mmum
‘wmm@ﬁmmemwmﬂmmmﬁiﬂqmm fNraudaureenina
adanTuNNINgAae

fam\ﬂ,snmu ﬂmmm’mmmqmmqmuﬂgumﬂmq
sennsidadsulinaainasuudsaninvenafetasiuda
fulaun u‘L‘ﬂmmrmﬁ‘lumummﬂmfammmmmmimmﬂu
”L‘vimvuumimmL‘W@ﬂ@\mu@mnﬂummimvmmmﬂ fids
m@ium@mnmmmmuummmmmﬂqummumm
ND:NSIIIVIU
nauwamnrumwaa\)uaoaau

ummmﬂwuﬂummmm@mmemmmﬂuﬂau
@mnmfmLwammemuimﬂumwmmmimLi.l“‘iﬂulmqmu
TaLdeN AN INaBINARsWl anlifsnnsliuEnsAsTLaeAs
Fasjatulunainnannsz A e s LI guEaL
adesuninddszinnsne] wu druin peuln nasnau
NEuINUGAAINNTIN

z%wﬁummma‘zﬁmmﬂﬁuwNmmmmiuﬂmmumm
ﬂ@ummmmmmmau mmum'}fgmmmwuslﬂ@meﬂu
Vg 7 wmmmwum Lummnmﬁﬁiﬂ%mmimmww
ﬂ’]TLLﬂQﬂIuW@QV}ﬂuNNﬂm‘”V}UEl’ﬂﬂ’]iﬁldi"]ﬂ’]"ﬂ’]?;l mm%mmnu
mu‘mumimmm‘uumnu‘fﬂmﬂmiﬂmmmwum 300 LN
intlszine wsifeuanelun1sss AN s uLA A
Idfane mwmumimmummnmmwmmmwm”m\memm
‘wﬂumm\mﬂ’mmuimLmvum@ﬂ’ﬂﬂmmﬂuﬂ 2555
nauwaonmnoaanaaswlla OCIEnKﬂSSU

N@mnmwﬂuﬂ@uum@uLﬂmmwmw ngulsaany
gravnssnuazinsnsanansnglinaresniaiy iy soluin
gz (us Tnelutl 2556 ﬁmi?mﬁﬁwmiﬁmu
gravnssusiesliudeluianningminvianlug ludanedl

iwmuﬂjgéﬂ 2556
1310 wWidles Inednd anfn (Wunaw

2554 LL@;‘iﬂ’]i‘?lf—‘_l’]f—‘Jﬂ']i‘@W!uﬁIﬁi’aLdﬂd}uﬂ 2555 i lALEN
ANAaINslduaIALarHTuANaugLl ieuarianuans
il fifluduounnn udaziiguaaduduaunin usigné
ﬂi%m‘ii\mumu%mLuuﬂmmwmmumLL@“mmmmm
fiflaunmuaznsssiam mmw”l,mmLuumamfﬂmu‘iﬂmﬂ
AANANIAABAN mimummiqmﬂ@mn@ﬂmn@mmﬂu
SuauNny
daulasenisauansisglinagesniaigiviuunld

= Axy

mmnmmmwmﬂmmu i idain wazszunfudes i
Lamlunaniaae sin s Een duludadonilifngas
menuLLm‘L‘uumiﬂamwmnummmiwhmuqmemaﬂ
e LummnmmmmﬁLmuwmwmmm Rnmald
990139 ‘memumuwuam @mﬂmmmumuwmmmuummi
‘me\muwmﬂmﬁumi}m\imiﬂ@mw fanasansfinTuae
mfammﬂslumgmu
} AVFUNARA A TZUUNAR AN A e ndaauLgaanine

fiRnsaLU A ﬁmm"ﬁﬁuvl,aimmﬂﬂﬂL‘fimmnﬁﬂi”ﬂ'aumi
mu“lmm”mLuuﬂqi‘mﬁiﬂWﬂu‘l}mqmiw”lmummumuu
mﬂuimmﬂmﬁumiﬂ/\lﬁwmmmﬁ mmvmumwmmm@u
@ﬂmmﬁL@ﬂmu‘wmmaﬂivmﬂmﬂ’l,umﬂwammwwmw
@mmvl,%lﬁwmfmmimﬁ@wum”famﬂmmﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂ%ﬂium
mmu@mqmﬂmumu‘muwmmum@Lwaq@ﬂmmumimw
AMANHIRA TN AN TaIAY
® NSVAKIWAONUTIKSDUSNNS

13 AulaunenITN@n 2 AnasAe )

1)”mm§m§uﬁﬁmm§m W GALnTUNALeN Laz
ﬁqﬂqﬁmﬂﬂlﬁmmmﬁn

2) m@mmumﬁw@ﬁum@ﬂm S mmummmm”mm
mmummmmmm%m faldansiad Lmvmmﬂ@um@mmm
Tannioaiauazgaainssy Inedlesnuuan 1 Lmqm\mwmm
fangaaunssundunfis damdntlsaus

mﬂu‘iﬂmﬂumimLuuﬁimﬂummwwhﬁmmmaﬁm
maﬂmmwmmmum muumwmﬂummmﬂmﬂumamurfm
mmmwm@\mmmumLmemma Tmﬂuiﬁmﬂmmmsﬁmmmu
RILTEN mmmumuﬂmmw 37171 9TEZANNIAE dalae
ﬂﬂmmm@mﬂ‘luﬂumﬁ Lmemmmmumqmﬂmimmmm
L:m?'mmmh;mﬂ v e fildnanduiadulanda (GRO)
willunnsdegadngau dhemsuazdnondnvesissnazinig
ﬂi%ﬁmﬂ\iLLmumw@mLﬂuﬂi”@ﬂumﬂmﬂmm‘wmmmmm
mmmﬂmmammmﬂﬂmm fana sy BT Bunny
qmmuwmmvmmummm

”Lumwumu‘iﬂmﬂmmﬁL@@ﬂmmwmmmmmuuu
a’jm@muum‘lummwmmmmumwuw auddanay
TRAUUAE mmmwmmqmamummmumsmmmumnmwm
LL@Jmemﬁﬂummwmwmmmi @ﬂmmumaﬂmuuum
mwmmmmwmmmamuemmj 6 1w uanannigadilyl
mmimqqmﬂuLmeJsvmummuﬂimfaumﬂmgmuuw
Trgau e liiuladnaun naesinghunisEndsaadenals

©

©3>°



(2) Sales through dealers

For domestic sales, the Company’s dealers are building ma-
terials retail stores in the country like Home Mart, Boonthavorn and
Siam Global House, together with other building materials retail stores
both in Bangkok and upcountry. The dealers have a long-term good
relationship with the Company. In addition, the Company also sells to
overseas dealers. The Company selects its dealers based on whether
their building materials and plumbing equipment sales business has
good growth potential.

Industry Trend

As these product groups are volatile and are directly affected
by the real estate business, including residential, commercial and
industrial properties, in the first half of 2013 they continued to grow
in line with the increasing number of condominium constructions and
sales launches that continued on from 2012 and the expansion of
the housing estate business in the provinces, as well as the tourism
business that resulted in the building of new hotels and resorts. In
the second half of the year, there was the problem of rising concern
regarding household debt repayment ability making banks stricter
on their lending that lead to a slowdown coupled with the political
crisis that further hindered the growth of various businesses, including
the real estate business.

Nevertheless, there are some strict legal issues that have
supported the significant growth of the water storage system products,
which are the government policy for building safety that requires
installation of water storage systems for protection against fires in
various types of buildings that has helped to increase the sales of
water storage tanks.

Competition
Environmental Products Group

The Company is considered a leading manufacturer and
distributor in the environmental products group as it has the advantage
of its reputation and quality of product, as well as the provision of
comprehensive services. The Company focuses on marketing to middle
and upper level property development projects of different types, such
as housing and condominiums, through to industrial factories.

The market competition in the environmental products group
is similar to the previous year that is high resulting from the fierce
competition in the real estate business that affected the pricing of
products. At the same time, production cost has risen due to the
government’s policy to raise minimum wage to 300 Baht nationwide.
However, with the management of costs and expenses coupled with
the delivery of products of quality and on-time there was still growth
and profit as in 2012.

Building Materials and Industrial Support Products
Group
The target customers for this product group are industrial

factories and public infrastructure projects, such as electric trains,

bridges, etc. In 2013, the increase in number of industrial factories
requiring renovation due to the major flooding in late 2011 and the
continuous investment expansion in 2012 resulted in the high demand
for metal roofing and sidings, chemical corrosion resistant pipes
and tanks. Despite a large number of competitors, most customers
who are factories emphasize on product quality and installation service
that is high quality and on time. The Company has operated under
such policy all along and thus has increasingly gained the trust of this
customer group.

The government infrastructure projects have been increasingly
using the precast products, such as the lightweight wall panels and
noise barrier systems, and with only a few manufacturers on the market,
the Company’s share of the work has increased. The trend is similar
in building construction and decoration where there is increasing use
of precast lightweight wall panels as they can be formed into various
shapes and are quick to install requiring less manual labour, which helps
to reduce problems related to labour cost and the need for skilled labour
in the construction projects. This has resulted in an increase in sales
for this product group.

For the solar power systems installed on roofs, there is relatively
low competition as most operators target projects that have received
support under the government’s power purchase policy while the
Company targets customers in the private sector. The main objectives of
these customers in using the products is to help reduce the electricity
bill for their buildings, both at present and in the future when the
electricity bill will rise dramatically higher in line with the rising cost of
fuel, and to create a positive image for their building.

e Procurement of Products or Services

The Company has a policy to manufacture 2 types of products,
namely,

1) standard products, such as small water storage tanks and
small wastewater treatment tanks.

2) products made to customer orders, such as large water
storage tanks, large wastewater treatment tanks, chemical corrosion
resistant tanks and products in the building materials and industrial
support products group. The Company has a factory in the Kabinburi
Industrial Zone, Prachinburi Province.

From its business operations policy that places importance on
the quality of products, the Company emphasizes on quality control
of the raw materials from time of procurement. The Company’s raw
materials procurement policy focuses on quality, price and delivery time.
The Company normally purchases its raw materials locally but some raw
materials must be imported from overseas, such as fiberglass used in
the production of glass reinforced cement (GRC). In the purchase of
raw materials, the Company’s sales and production departments hold

regular weekly production planning meetings to closely monitor its raw

materials requirements. As a result, the Company consistently had an .

appropriate amount of raw materials for production.

Annual Report 2013
Premier Products Public Company Limited

v

31



32

mmﬁmmwmwwmmmi musluﬂﬂ@uu 13w laifinnsda
GnmmamumnmdwmmﬁlmwLﬂumw@m” 30 209EBATIN
mim&ﬁmmm‘u mmmmmumnﬂﬂumwuaumm@m
‘ﬂ‘ﬂﬂU?i&f%@ﬁNﬁi‘ﬂ“]ﬁLLuﬂ‘lmﬂu 5 afia 1un 1) 15du 2) laudn
3) wHUWANIALY 4) a2ATAA 5) WinnaraAnlnaeiau

{ nduwaoncurinSoviBTWWhRDAUALUE
Us:Kgawavou

® ANUOUWAONTUNKSOUSNNS

putiunislaetissmeian (PHA) Tag PHA Wlugdnanuing
N@mnmmLmﬂ\ﬂﬁﬂ,ﬁ/\lﬁmummmuumﬂimmwmmu nald
AIAUE “MIRAGE” Taeiltansusimemiing fail

wriin guauda gudlad
Lfﬁu mﬂmwﬁu'w’

mnmmi@u mmu

PLAANF NN LIAINL
e N1saanaQlia:NSIyvYIU
ﬂaUnSﬂ'\SIIU\)UU

N@mnmwm@ﬂﬂWWﬁ wmmmumﬂimmwmmu

mmmwummmqmummmmmwﬁm Tner PHA Hnagnd
Tunsugedugil

ANUATUNINYDIRUAN

AIUNITIALITNIVAINTTTE

AW UNTRININNNTAARN LN

nauIdnKkung

v 2B eV

NARS 89 PHA 1senausne@manes wiannodasl

fuvuuﬂ@mﬂmLﬁwmammumﬂi nauNTWIITE LW 511
Frian Fugrazaante S1uenvns Ananans Taausu aedm
NISOKUNYIIa:EoLYNIVNISOANQ

PHA 218@UARNUF LA LNUAIULNY d1unfunng
e sz § mummmumumﬂ (Traditional Trade) %Lﬂu
Saaraald i nueieafiu Seisuaundn 300 v
sz saunegsnadUanasialusl (Modemn Trade) 16iun Power
Buy yananil PHA S5 wnusmnhaluraatlssmanAsEgia
aTew 1w dszmaans dszmaduymn s
nuoliugaaIKNSSL

LLmTumm@mmummLm‘a\fl%”IWﬁWﬂimamwawm
S ldufuinedharaiiios Tmﬂuﬁ@@mumuumnmmﬁ
ANNUNWAYINIWAINY 20 T & fefinnseanunmsnig fil

(1) nAeAusasnguuie THun wau. nsdadinnig
BUINHWAIIU W.A. 2550 Lmzmiﬁmummmgm%uﬁw LAy
AANUTLANTNINNAIY

(2) MAnsaTLAYLLAZALETH fidndny Ae nslHEw

>
a s

famuuumamLﬂmmaﬂivummwmmuwmmf««]wmumfaﬂa‘vmu
1@ (Standard Offer Program 138 SOP) mmwvmummmw
PR asL asTiAnnanann (Market Transformation)

iwmuﬂjgéﬂ 2556
1310 wWidles Inednd anfn (Wunaw

uaznnAnssuaeflindenu Inamsieiuldfneainuang
ﬂi‘”@%ﬁﬂ’]WW@N’]u‘ﬂ@\‘i@ﬂm‘mLm“ﬂ\ﬂﬂJLLZ\I”@’]@’W

ANNUHURUENENATI I 20 T nafglatvuanagng
LL@”NWB‘]?H’]?B‘]N"] ‘Vl'&’]ﬁtﬂ‘ﬂ‘l&ﬂ?"’ﬂ@ﬂﬁ%ﬂ

ﬂ@ﬂ‘ﬂﬁm’]uﬂ’]ﬂ_l\‘iﬂ‘i_lﬂ']?;lﬂgi‘“’n_lf;lllLL@“’N’WI@‘TI’]?LW@
AduAYUL TN TULAY mhiﬂﬁﬂummmmumLuumﬂm
mehimﬂwummmuummiﬂa‘vumwmmumﬂw AN
wlaungmanantazidutladauinuasdananfondng ol
“MIRAGE”
AND:NISIIVIU

nanS At A AflauandRssudandeany
ﬁmmrﬂw’fumﬁqmq%ummmmmvmm o tlaquiu Hejua
ANUIUNIN 1ur51mmmm1ﬂﬂﬁmmLm\i‘[mﬂmq Af 'Lli“i:f‘V]
Fuiu Bumefaa ( ﬂivmﬁim) 3779 (SANDEN) wenanniléia
HeuaedAny mﬂﬂuj IauA U3Em Fanef dsumdlne | arin
@) (SINGER) Snwinenaaadldiniinluaideuuaziazes
E WA T aw el
° n1550n1w§c1ﬁruﬁn§au§ms

PHA mmmummnmmmhﬂaymﬂ wumﬂummmm
LLawimmmﬁmﬁmmwwmLm@m@m@mwmmﬂumm@m
mmnmmLm'aﬂﬂ%lﬁmuﬂmmwmwm NEANAINTU
Aansnly OEM (Original Equipment Manufacturer) na19Ae &,JJNEWI
AzuanAUANNNLFRIIEUAY “MIRAGE” Tiun PHA Tnsi{an
wanunLssm teun

- 13 wnlefia uanlawend laasiau (Wszwndlne)
e Audniinen Tiun fugidu gudude uazfuging

-139 laweef Aarvisnea wannanauwend Wszmnelne)
$niin Fudinan Tdun Al

G mwmmﬂaymmmm@m Wifuguanyn 3
e LL@Wﬂuﬂuﬂ’]iﬁ/\‘lﬁJ@[ﬁW}ﬂ 2 ey LW@MNN@MLQMMW
WaluNIFAUNTRRAL N9 NUHLNAR mefﬁmmimwmm
faunnIndnaLBIMaNan LS usTaTaan T AN Tas T A
Aavihell Faths PHA Aagnansailesiunanui@enannnnatumnu
2OIFUNULAR IFat1eH s AnEn W

Tuaunnssud seiuadum mmﬁmumm@mmq Wl
AETREL M 1umﬁuﬂi AUAUAN muu@uim LAZIZEZIIAINNT
Fudsziu mmuaﬂﬂumummnmim@iﬂ wasisruunzden
sziRAudiedndedasvasioautsyiy

{ ssholwwawavviuaana

® ANUUYOVWAONIUNKSDUSNS
stunslagzEmeen (GC) Tag IGC Anfiugsialuin
WA ULAIRTIRE Lﬁummmiﬂﬁwmwmmuummmrymsm
@mmiuﬂi”mmm@mMWn@ﬂﬁumL@ﬂmﬂ (VSPP) Tmeidl
zi“mmﬂsmsuwiﬂﬁﬁﬂumﬂ%lﬁ%hummm (n7in.) Tmmmm
mmiﬂmmmmwm@wmmﬂmivxlﬁ’w Lazdouiinaaniuie



In terms of the policy for selection of raw material suppliers,
the suppliers must register with the Company and the quality of the
raw materials is tested by the Company to ensure that they are of
the required standard. In addition, the raw materials are evaluated and
re-tested every six months and site visits are made to evaluate the work
place of the raw material suppliers so as to ensure that the quality of
the raw materials are still of the standard required by the Company.
Presently, the Company does not purchase from any single supplier
in excess of 30 percent of the total raw materials purchase. The main
raw materials used in the Company’s manufacturing process can be
classified into five types, namely 1) resin 2) fiberglass 3) cold-rolled steel
sheet 4) acrylic and 5) polyethylene plastic pellets.

& Energy-saving Electrical Appliances
Group

e Characteristics of the Products or Services
This business is operated by the subsidiary PHA. PHA is a
distributor of electrical appliances with energy-saving features under the
“MIRAGE” brand. Products distributed include:
Beverage coolers, chest freezers and wine coolers
Art door refrigerators
Hot & cold water dispensers
Floor standing gas cooker with oven
e Marketing and Competition
Competitive Strategy
There is a lot of competition in term of quality and price in the
electrical appliances market with energy-saving features. PHA, therefore,
has the competitive strategies as follows:
Product quality
Provision of after-sale services
Development of distribution channels
Target Customer Group
PHA’s products consist of commercial products hence its target
customers are commercial enterprises, such as retail stores, convenience
stores, restaurants, hotels and resorts.
Sales and Distribution Channels
PHA sells its products through retail stores. Domestic sales is
made through traditional trade outlets comprising electrical appliances
stores and stores selling cooling equipment of which there are more than
300 stores nationwide and modern trade outlets, such as Power
Buy. In addition, PHA has distribution agents in the ASEAN Economic
Community (AEC) markets, such as Laos, Cambodia, etc.
Industry Trend
Continuous growth is expected for the energy-saving electrical
appliances industry with the supporting factor being the government’s

20-year Energy Efficiency Development Plan with the following measures:

(1) Mandatory measures are the enforcement of the Energy
Conservation Promotion Act B.E. 2550 (2007), the establishment of
the Minimum Energy Performance Standards (MEPS), and energy
efficiency labeling.

(2) The major supportive and promotional measure is the
Standard Offer Program (SOP) or funding for the amount of energy
saving achieved that can be proven or assessed. Emphasis is also
placed on measures that will bring about market transformation and
energy consumers’ behavioral change, by enforcing energy efficiency
labeling for equipment, appliances and buildings.

Under the 20-year Energy Efficiency Development Plan, the
government has formulated various important strategies and measures
consisting of mandatory requirements via rules, regulations and
standards to encourage the public and energy consumers in all sectors
to emphasize on the use of electrical appliances with energy-saving
features. Such policy will be a positive factor with positive effects for
“MIRAGE” products.

Competition

There is intense competition amongst the energy-saving
electrical appliances in terms of both quality and price. At present, there
is a large number of competitors in the electrical appliance market and
PHA’s direct competitor is Sanden Intercool (Thailand) Public Co., Ltd.
(SANDEN). In addition, PHA has another main competitor, namely Singer
Thailand Public Co., Ltd. (SINGER) that distributes home appliances and
commercial electrical appliances.

e Procurement of Products or Services

PHA purchases its products from domestic manufacturers with
expertise and reliable quality standard over the long-term in the production
of energy-saving electrical appliances in the form of Original Equipment
Manufacturers (OEM). These manufacturers produce products under
the “MIRAGE” brand for the company. PHA’s main manufacturers are:

- Panasonic Appliances Cold Chain (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
manufactures beverage coolers, chest freezers and wine coolers.

- Haier Electrical Appliances (Thailand) Co., Ltd. manufactures
refrigerators.

Normally, PHA will send production orders to the manufacturers
every 3 months and reconfirmed the orders every 2 months in
order to provide the manufacturers time to secure the raw materials,
plan production and manufacture the products timeously. With contract
manufacturing, PHA can confirm the purchase price for one year
ahead thus allowing it to effectively prevent any risk from fluctuating
production costs.

As for product warranty, the manufacturers have agreed to
be responsible. The warranty terms and period depend on the type
of product purchased by the customers and there is a product history

system for use in referencing the warranty period.
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& Clean Energy Business

e Characteristics of the Products or Services

This business is operated by the subsidiary (IGC). IGC operates
a solar power business producing electricity from solar power and
is classified as a Very Small Power Producer (VSPP). It has a power
purchase agreement with the Provincial Electricity Authority (PEA) and
its main source of income is from electricity sale and an
additional tariff (adder) of 8 Baht per unit for a period of 10 years for
the 3 power plants as from the commercial operation date (COD).
All three solar power plants in Saraburi Province have now commenced
commercial operation.

- Power Plant 1 located in Tambol Tha Maprang commenced
commercial operation on 27 December 2010.

- Power Plant 2 located in Tambol Cham Phak Phaeo
commenced commercial operation on 26 April 2013.

- Power Plant 3 located in Tambol Huai Haeng commenced
commercial operation on 26 April 2013.

All three power plants have a power purchase agreement to sell
electricity to the Provincial Electricity Authority, totaling 15 megawatts.

In addition, IGC has been granted the promotional privileges
under the Investment Promotion Act B.E. 2520 approved by the Board of
Investment for all 3 of its power plants. The important privileges include:

(1) Exemption from corporate income tax on net income from
the promoted activity for a period of 8 years, commencing from the
date of the first earning of operating income.

(2) A 50 per cent reduction of corporate income tax on net
income from the promoted activity for a period of 5 years after the
corporate income tax exemption period as mentioned in (1) ends.

e Marketing and Competition

The solar power business is a business where the operators
have electricity sales agreement with the government sector, which must
purchase all the electricity generated but not exceeding the contract
amount. Therefore, there is no competition with other companies.
As for the industry trend at present, solar power is another source
of renewable energy that has received no less attention than the
other types of renewable energy. As solar power is clean energy
and the intensity of solar radiation in Thailand promotes the production

of electricity, the private sector is at present beginning to increasingly

see the importance and commercial benefits of the use of solar power.
This can be seen from the continuously increasing installations of
solar cells in Thailand. From such installations, solar power has
increased from 4,224 kilowatt (KW) in 2003 to 100,691 KW in 2011,
or a growth of 42.24 percent. This shows that the construction of solar
power plants have received significant interest from the business sector
over the past few years.

In 2010, the Ministry of Energy announced the implementation
of the Thailand Power Development Plan 2010-2030 (PDP 2010), which
forecast that power demand will rise from the estimated 170,000
megawatt hour (MWh) in 2012 to 350,000 MWh in 2030, which is a
compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 3.87 percent. Therefore, the
electricity generating industry is likely to grow steadily in the future.
In addition, the PDP 2010 has set a policy to increase electricity
generation from renewable energy by resources, which are solar,
wind, hydro, biomass and other resources. The proportion of electricity
generation from solar power is expected to rise continuously from 2.18
percent in 2011 to 19.26 percent of the total generating capacity in the
years 2012-2021 and to 26.11 percent of the total generating capacity
in the years 2012-2030. Therefore, the solar power industry is likely to
grow steadily in the future.

e Procurement of Products or Services

Procurement of raw materials is as follows:

1. For area and location, IGC will select a location for the
project around Saraburi Province, which is one area with the highest
radiation intensity in the country, adjacent to a main road near to the
connecting point to PEA’s grid. The location must be on high ground
with no history of flooding and a natural disaster protection system
that is of standard as this will affect the investment return and payback
period of the project.

2. In procuring equipment used in the construction of a solar
power plant, the main components are the solar cell panels and the
inverters for which the suppliers have provided lifetime warranties of
25 and 10 years, respectively. The suppliers have also guaranteed the
performance of the solar cell panels, with efficiency guaranteed at 90
per cent for the first 10 years and 80 per cent for the years thereafter
until the 25th year.
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Risk Factors

& Operational Risk

e Environmental Products Group and Building
Materials and Industrial Support Products Group
Risk of dependence on the condition of the real estate
industry

As the Company’s core product groups, which are the
environmental products group and the building materials and
industrial support products group, grow in line with the growth of
the real estate industry, demand and pricing of such products thus
depend on the condition of the real estate industry as a whole.

However, the Company has diversied the risk by having a
wider variety of customer groups. It has expanded its industrial
customer market and its overseas market. It has also launched
new products onto the market, such as the water recycling
system and the solar rooftop system. Additionally, the Company
has a policy to diversify its revenue source by expanding into
new businesses in order to reduce its dependence on revenues
from its core product lines that are at risk from the condition of
the real estate industry. The Company has invested in the solar
power business operated by IGC and the energy-saving electrical
appliances distribution business operated by PHA.

Risk from alternative products and change in consumer
preferences

At present, the manufacture of water storage tanks for use
and consumption and wastewater treatment tanks for residential
use is more varied. Although in the past the water storage tanks and
wastewater treatment tanks were produced mainly from fiberglass,
developments in the manufacturing process have now allowed
the use of polyethylene as a replacement. Therefore, should the
consumers have a change in preference and have an increasing
demand for such alternative products, then the Company’s overall
performance will be affected.

However, the factors of quality and selling price are still
the main factors that make the customers consider using each
type of product. In order to meet the needs of the customers
and to reduce the risk from alternative products, the Company
has a policy to continuously develop its manufacturing process
and develop new product designs onto the market, as well as
increase the variety of products.

e Energy-saving Electrical Appliances Group
Risk of reliance on a few manufacturers

PHA operates by hiring manufacturers to produce electrical
appliances with energy-saving features, which it distributes under
the “MIRAGE” brand. Therefore, PHA may be exposed to the risk
of reliance on a few manufacturers of such products. Presently,
PHA has hired Panasonic Appliances Cold Chain (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
(PAPCTH) for the manufacture of beverage coolers, chest freezers
and wine coolers and Haier Electrical Appliances (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
(HAIER) for the manufacture of refrigerators. However, PHA is
aware of the risk in operating this business and has already
contacted other manufacturers in case that PAPCTH and HAIER
are unable to manufacture the products for PHA.

Risk of competition

PHA operates as a distributor of electrical appliances with
energy-saving features with distribution made through electrical
appliance stores. At present, there are more operators importing
cheap products from foreign countries and this has affected the
market share and operating results of the company.

However, PHA has plans to develop more than 300 dealer
stores nationwide to increase their capability and to build good
relationships with these dealer stores by emphasizing on provision
of product quality and good services. In addition, PHA has plans to
expand its markets into the ASEAN Economic Community (AEC)
countries, such as Laos, Cambodia and Myanmar.

e Clean Energy Business Group
Risk from ability to generate electricity

Currently, the overall operating efciency of the whole
system is at approximately 80 percent. Should any error occurs
or should any equipment in any stage of the electricity production
process malfunctions, the overall operating efciency will drop.
This will affect the amount of electricity produced and cause
revenue to decline.

However, IGC has a management system and has
personnel with knowledge and expertise. It also has experts from
the equipment suppliers stationed at the power plants to provide
technical advice in the maintenance and improvement of the
efciency of the power plants. Software systems have also been
installed that can help to analyze the performance efciency of the

electricity production system and immediately report any problem
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with the solar panels or other devices in the production system.
In addition, the various equipments have efciency and useful life
guarantees from their manufacturers.

Risk from the counterparty of the power purchase
agreement

At present, IGC has started to provide capacity on demand
(COD) from all 3 of its solar power plants as follows:

Power Plant 1 located in Tambol Tha Maprang commenced
commercial operation on 27 December 2010.

Power Plant 2 located in Tambol Cham Phak Phaeo
commenced commercial operation on 26 April 2013.

Power Plant 3 located in Tambol Huai Haeng commenced
commercial operation on 26 April 2013.

IGC has the Provincial Electricity Authority (PEA) as its
counterparty in the power purchase agreement and may be at risk
in the sales of electricity to the PEA in case the power purchase
agreement was cancelled. However, such risks would not occur
if IGC does not violate such agreement with the PEA.

Risk of natural disasters that may affect the returns
from the business

The operation of the solar power business depends mainly
on the quality and intensity of the radiation. Therefore, IGC may
be exposed to risk from natural disasters that could affect the
returns from the business as natural disasters cannot be predicted.
However, IGC has planned for the prevention of this problem by
selecting locations for the prevention of flooding, which IGC has

analyzed geographically and selected locations with the least risk.

In addition, each of the power plants produces electricity separately
and each has a different distribution point. Hence, in the case that
any of the power plants was damaged due to an unexpected event
it will not affect the other power plants. In addition, IGC has set
plans for handling natural disasters and has taken out business
interruption insurance coverage to ensure business continuity in
case of any damage that may occur.

& Financial Risks

Risk from foreign exchange rate

The Company is vulnerable to risks from the exchange
rate of foreign currencies as the Company has revenues from
the export of products made from Glass Reinforced Cement
(GRC) and other products for sale overseas. At the same time,
it also continuously purchases some raw materials for use in
manufacturing from overseas.

From the Company having both revenues and expenses in
foreign currencies, this can be used to offset each other (natural
hedge) and helps to reduce the risk of exchange rate actuations.
Additionally, the Company has sufficient foreign exchange forward
contract facilities from financial institutions and, if necessary, may
enter into foreign exchange forward contracts. Thus from its risk
management policy, the Company will be able to reduce the

risks from foreign exchange by another level with such method.

F
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General Information and Other Important Information

{  General Information

® Company Name : Premier Products Public Company Limited (The Company)
Type of Business : Manufacturer and distributor of environmental products related to waste water treatment

and water storage systems, construction materials and industrial products.

Head Office : No. 2 Premier Place, Soi Premier 2, Srinakarin Road, Nong Bon, Prawet,
Bangkok. 10250

Registration Number : 0107555000309

Home Page : www.premier-products.co.th

Telephone : 0-2301-2100-1

Facsimile : 0-2398-1301

Registered Capital : 300,000,000 Baht

Issued Ordinary Shares : 300,000,000 Shares

Over 10% of shares held by the Company

® Company Name : Premier Home Appliance Company Limited (PHA)

Type of Business : Trading of energy-saving electrical appliances

Head Office : No. 1, Premier Corporate Park, Soi Premier 2, Srinakarin Road, Nong Bon, Prawet,
Bangkok 10250

Registration Number : 0105547029580

Home Page : -

Telephone : 0-2301-1000

Facsimile : 0-2301-1722

Registered Capital : 1,000,000 Baht

Issued Ordinary Shares : 10,000 Shares

Shares held by the Company : 9,997 Shares

® Company Name : Infinite Green Company Limited (IGC)

Type of Business : Producer and distributor of electricity from solar power which is classified as a Very Small Power
Producer (VSPP)

Head Office : 133/1 Moo 4 Tambol Tamaprang, Amphur Kang Koi, Saraburi 18110

Registration Number : 0105551131521

Home Page : -

Telephone : 036-247-200

Facsimile : 036-247-203

Registered Capital : 600,000,000 Baht

Issued Ordinary Shares : 60,000,000 Shares

Shares held by the Company : 45,358,983 Shares

W
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® Company Name : PP Wind Energy Company Limited (PPW)

Type of Business : Producer and distributor of electricity from wind power

Head Office : No. 2 Premier Place, Soi Premier 2, Srinakarin Road,
Nong Bon, Prawet, Bangkok. 10250

Registration Number : 0105556141117

Home Page : -

Telephone : 0-2301-1586

Facsimile : 0-2301-2491

Registered Capital : 1,000,000 Baht

Issued Ordinary Shares : 100,000 Shares

Shares held by the Company : 99,997 Shares

ﬁ, Other important information

1) Securities Registrar Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building
No.62, Ratchadaphisek Road, Khlong Toey, Bangkok 10110
Tel: 0-2229-2800
Fax: 0-2359-1259
Call Center: 0-2229-2888

2) Debenture Holders’ Representations - None -

3) Auditors 2013 Mrs. Chonlaros Suntiasvaraporn CPA Registration No. 4523 or
Miss Supannee Triyanantakul CPA Registration No. 4498 or
Mr. Khitsada Lerdwana CPA Registration No. 4958
Ernst & Young Office Ltd.
33rd Floor, Lake Ratchada Office Complex, 193/136-137, New Ratchadaphisek Road, Bangkok 10110
Tel: 0-2264-0777, 0-2261-9190
Fax: 0-2264-0789-90, 0-2661-9192

4) Financial Advisors - None -

5) Legal Advisors - None -

6) Consultant or Manager Management and Business Consulting Contract
under Management Contract Premier Fission Capital Co., Ltd.

No. 1, Premier Corporate Park, Soi Premier 2, Srinakarin Road,
Nong Bon, Prawet, Bangkok 10250

Tel: 0-2301-1000

Fax: 0-2398-2350
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Securities information and Shareholders

qL Registered capital and Paid-up capital

The Company has registered capital and paid-up capital in the amount of Baht 300,000,000 divided into 300 million ordinary shares

with a par value of Baht 1 per share
{_ Shareholders

(a) Top Ten Major Shareholders
Details of the top 10 shareholders whose names are shown in the shareholder register as at December 31th, 2013

are as follows:

Name : Number of Shares : Percentage of Shareholding
1. Premier Fission Capital Co., Ltd.* 177,417,820 59.14
2. CIMB Thai Bank Public Co., Ltd. 15,079,690 5.03
3. United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Co., Ltd. 7,876,520 2.63
4. Mrs. Supannee Boonyawatana 5,903,900 1.97
5. Bangkok Bank Public Co., Ltd. H 5,671,975 H 1.89
6. Mr. Vasan Anurakwongsri 5,000,000 1.67
7. Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Thai) Public Co., Ltd. 3,967,350 1.32
8. Mr. Charan Raveesangsoon 2,190,000 0.73
9. Mrs. Thanita Thittayanont 1,900,000 0.63
10. Ms. Uraiwan Saelee 1,890,000 0.63
Total 226,897,255 75.64

Remark : * Includes 100,015 shares held by Mrs. Vimolthip Phongsathorn

(b) Proportion of Minor Shareholders (Free Float) equal 33.85%
(c) Major shareholders who are related persons participating in the Company’s management are as follows:

Name Type of Business Related Persons

.....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

1. Premier Fission Capital Co., Ltd. Business management service and investment Mr. Suradej Boonyawatana
: Mrs. Duangthip Eamrungroj
Mrs. Pensri Dettingeng
Mrs. Walairat Pongjitt

: are co-directors

{. The issuance of other securities - None -

. b
L y
\w
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Dividend Payment Policy

The Company and its subsidiaries have policies to pay dividends The resolution of the Board of Directors to pay dividend
to the shareholders at a rate of not less than 50% of net profit after ~ must be approved by the shareholders’ meeting, except for interim
income tax and deduction of legal reserves. However, such dividend  dividend payment which the Board has the authority to authorize
policies may be changed depending on the companies’ investment  such payments prior to reporting to the shareholders at the next

plans, necessities and appropriateness in the future. meeting.

Structure of Management

&, Board of Directors

as at December 31, 2013, the Board of Directors consisted of 8 directors as follows:

Meetings/ 5 Attendance/
Name Position Attendance Total Meetings
(times) (times)
Mr.Suradej Boonyawatana Chairman/Chairman of 3/4 11
Remuneration Committee
Mrs. Duangthip Eamrungroj Director/Member of 4/4 11
Remuneration Committee
Mr. Ekkarat Kladpan Director 4/4 11
Mrs. Pensri Dettingeng Director 4/4 11
Mrs. Walairat Pongjitt Director 3/4 11
Miss Chnida Suwanjutha Independent Director/ 4/4 11
Chairman of the Audit Committee/
Member of Remuneration Committee
Mr. Chaiyavat Nitayaporn Independent Director/ 4/4 11
Member of the Audit Committee
Mr.Paritud Bhandhubanyong Independent Director/ 4/4 /1

Member of the Audit Committee

Remark : Mr. Teerapol Juthapornpong served as the Secretary of the Board of Directors and Corporate Secretary.
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The Authorized Directors

The authorized directors are Mr. Suradej Boonyawatana,
Mrs. Duangthip Eamrungroj, Mr. Ekkarat Kladpan, Mrs. Pensri Dettingeng
and Mrs. Walairat Pongjitt, with any two directors of the five directors
signing jointly with the Company’s seal affixed.

Term of the Board of Directors

At every annual general meeting of shareholders, one-third
of the directors must resign. If one-third is not a round number, the
number closest thereto shall be the applicable number. The directors
to vacate office within the first and second year following company
registration shall draw lots. In subsequent years, the directors serving
the longest shall resign. The directors who vacate office are eligible
for re-election.

Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the
Board of Directors

(1) Administer the corporate affairs in compliance with all
relevant laws and regulations, the Company’s objectives and Articles of
Association, including the resolutions of the shareholders’ meetings,
except for issues where the approval of the shareholders’ meeting is
required prior to implementation, such as issues that by law requires the
resolution of the shareholders’ meeting, related transactions, acquisition or
sale of substantial assets according to the criteria of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand or as determined by other government agencies, etc.

(2) Consider and approve major issues, such as policies, plans
and budgets, structure of administration, authority of the management,
corporate governance policies, and other issues as prescribed by the
Stock Exchange of Thailand or by law.

(3) Supervise the management to act in accordance with
the approved policies, plans and budgets.

(4) Appoint a qualified person who does not possess the
prohibited characteristics as specified in the Public Company Limited
Act B.E. 2535 (1992), including any amendments thereof, and the
securities and exchange laws, as well as relevant notifications,
regulations and/or rules, to replace a director who has vacated office
by any reason other than retirement by rotation.

(5) Appoint an Audit Committee and other sub-committees.

(6) Install reliable accounting, financial reporting and financial
audit systems, as well as oversee the establishment of efficient and
effective internal control and internal audit systems.

(7) Ensure that the Company has a comprehensive risk
management system and process, with effective reporting and
monitoring.

(8) Report on the execution of the Board of Directors’
responsibilities in the preparation of the financial statements, which
is to be presented together with the report from the independent
auditor in the annual report.

(9) Protect fairly the benefits of the major shareholders and
minority shareholders according to their rights, provide equitable
treatment of shareholders and other stakeholders with consideration
for the avoidance of conflict of interest, and ensure operational
transparency and the disclosure of sufficient and accurate information.

(10) The following transactions can be undertaken only after
approval from the shareholders’ meeting has been granted. It is
prescribed that in a transaction where a director or any other person
who may have a conflict, vested interest or other conflicts of
interests with the Company or its subsidiaries (if any) the director is not
eligible to vote on the transaction.

(a) Transactions that by law require the resolution of the
shareholders” meeting.

(b) Transactions in which directors have an interest and
are required by law or SET‘s requirements to be approved by the
shareholders’ meeting.

(11) The Board of Directors may delegate one or more director(s)
or any other person to carry out particular activities on behalf of the
Board. However, this delegation excludes the authorization or
sub-authorization of director(s) or appointee(s) in the approval of
transactions in which they or any other persons many have conflict,
vested interest or an interest in any other manner that conflicts
with the interests of the Company or its subsidiaries. Approval from
the shareholders’ meeting is required for related transactions and the
acquisition or sales of substantial assets of the Company as stipulated
by the requirement of the Capital Market Supervisory Board.
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Executives

as at December 31, 2013, the management team consisted of 8 members as follows:

Name

Position

1. Mr. Suradej Boonyawatana
Mr. Ekkarat Kladpan

Mr. Montol Hunsakunarom
Mr. Decha Kaewparuehaschai
Mr. Surasak Passorn

Mr. Natthachai Puangpradith
Miss Nattaya Nuanplub

© N o o kW

Mr. Pornsun Chutep

Chief Executive Officer

Managing Director

Assistant Managing Director - Marketing/Sales For Building Material Products Unit
Assistant Managing Director - Marketing/Sales For Environmental Products Unit
Assistant Managing Director - Marketing/Sales For Clean Energy Products Unit
Assistant Managing Director - Factory Unit

Assistant Managing Director - Finance Unit

Assistant Managing Director - Human Resources and Systems Unit

Remark : On 1 January 2014, the Company appointed Mr. Monthol Hunsakunarom as the Managing Director replacing Mr. Ekkarat Kladpan

who retired.

Authorities and Responsibilities of the Chief
Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer has the authority and duty to
manage the affairs of the Company as assigned by the Board of
Directors, which includes the following matters and businesses:

(1) Consider the policies, plans and budgets, structure of
administration and scope of authorities of the Company for proposal to
the Board of Directors for endorsement.

(2) Supervise and monitor the Company’s operations to be
in accordance with the approved policies, plans and budgets.

(3) Have the power to execute and approve all expenditures
within the scope prescribed by the Company’s authority manual.

(4) Perform any other duties assigned by the Board of
Directors and/or the Audit Committee.

Authorities and Responsibilities of the Managing
Director

The Managing Director has the authority and duty to manage
the affairs of the Company as assigned by the Board of Directors,
which includes the following matters and businesses:

(1) Administer and/or manage the Company’s daily activities.

(2) Prepare policies, plans and budgets, structure of administration
and various management authorities of the Company for approval by
the Chief Executive Officer before proposal to the Board of Directors
for endorsement.

(3) Operate and manage the Company’s businesses in

accordance with the approved policies, plans and budgets.

(4) Supervise and monitor that the Company’s business
operation is in compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

(5) Have the power to execute and approve all expenditures
within the scope prescribed by the Company’s authority manual.

(6) Develop the quality and effectiveness of the organization
and personnel continuously.

(7) Act as the Company’s authorized person in effectively
administering its businesses and affairs to achieve the intentions of
its objectives, rules, policies, regulations, requirements, orders,
resolution of the shareholders’ meeting and/or resolution of the Board
of Directors’ meeting.

(8) Monitor and maintain the good image of the organization.

(9) Perform any other duties assigned by the Chief Executive
Officer, Board of Directors and/or Audit Committee.

However, the Managing Director’s administrative power,
including the delegation of such authority to other persons as
deemed appropriate, excludes the administrative power or authorization
that empowers the Managing Director or the appointee to
approve any transaction in which he/she or related persons may have
conflict, vested interested or an interest in any other manner that
conflicts with the interests of the Company or its subsidiaries,
or any other transaction not carried out under normal business
practice of the Company. The approval of such transactions must
be proposed for consideration and approval from the Board of
Directors’ meeting and/or the shareholders’ meeting as stipulated

in the Articles of Association or by any relevant law.
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{ Company Secretary

The Company has ruled to appoint the Company Secretary to
be responsible for arrangement of the Board of Directors Meeting and
the Shareholders Meeting and support the direction of the Company’s
activity being in line with the corporate governance principle. The Board
of Directors will appoint a qualified person to be the Company Secretary
which shall have the qualification and responsibility as follows:
Qualification

1) Having basic knowledge of the laws and regulations issued
be relevant authorities under the law governing public company and
security and security exchange.

2) Having knowledge and understanding in the principle and
the action to be done for the corporate governance.

3) Having knowledge in the businesses of the Company and
having communication skill, which will be a supported tool for the
efficiency performance of the Company Secretary.
Responsibility

The main responsibility of the Company Secretary is to support
the Board of Directors for the relating laws and regulations, and will be
included with the following responsibility;

1) Arrange for the meeting of the Board of Directors and any
committee appointed by the Board of directors and the meeting of the
shareholders which shall be in line with the laws and the Company’s
Articles of Association, the Charter of the Board or Committee and the

corporate governance principle.

2) Inform the resolution or policy of the Board of Directors or
the Shareholders to the relevant executive and follow up, through the
Managing Director, the following action under such resolution or policy.

3) Advice or give an primary opinion to the Board of Directors
and any committee appointed by the Board of directors for the relating
laws and regulation and the action to be done for the corporate
governance. the action to be done for the corporate governance.

4) Take care of the Company Secretary Unit being the information
center of the organization such as the Company Registration Certificate,
the Memorandums of Association, the Articles of Association, the Share
Register Book and all licenses relating the business operation of the
Company.

5) Take care of the disclosure and the information report, which
is in the responsibility of compliance unit, being in line with the laws,
regulations and policy relating the disclosure of information.

6) Contact and communicate with the shareholders for their
acknowledgement of their rights.

7) Provide the news and information relating to the business
operation of the Company to and for the operation under the duty of
the board of Directors.

8) Arrange for the orientation for a new director.

Note that, the Board of Director had a resolution to appoint
Mr. Teerapol Juthapornpong to be the Company Secretary and the
Secretary of the Board of Directors on 10th August 2013.

{ Remuneration of Directors and Executives

The Company has a policy to remunerate the directors
and executives at a level that is appropriate for the duties and
responsibilities of each director and executive by comparison with
the listed companies in the same industry with the same revenue
level and market capitalization over the same period. The Company’s
operating results and the duties and responsibilities of each director

and executive is also taken into consideration. The remuneration for
the directors is in the form of annual bonus and meeting allowance
while the remuneration of the executives is in the form of salary,
bonus and provident fund contribution.
Monetary Remuneration

a. Remuneration of Directors
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The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2013 held on April 25, 2013, Passed a resolution approving the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

Composition of Remuneration Year 2013

Remuneration of Directors

Meeting Allowance - Chairman (Baht/person/time) { 18,000
- Directors (Baht/person/time) 14,000

Bonus (Baht/person/year) 200,000

Remuneration of Audit Committe

Meeting Allowance - Chairman (Baht/person/time) 18,000
- Directors (Baht/person/time) 14,000

Remuneration of Remuneration Committee

Meeting Allowance - Chairman (Baht/person/time) 12,000
- Directors (Baht/person/time) 10,000

Remark : Meeting allowances are paid to directors who attend each respective meeting
In 2013, the Company paid to the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee are as follows:

{ Meeting Allowance (Baht) Bonus
Name Position ‘ "Board of | Audit : (Baht) | Total
: i Directors : Committee : :

1.Mr. Suradej Boonyawatana® Chairman : : -
2. Mrs. Duangthip Eamrungroj* Director { : -
3MrEkkaratK|adpan* | Dlrector ........................ :
4MrspensnDemngeng**D"ector .............. e
5. Mrs. Walairat Pongjitt* Director : : : : -
GMlsscmdasuwanJUthalndependelereCtor/560007200()“200000,328000 ........

%Chairman of the Audit Committeeg

P P P P P TP PIE PP PP PP PP TP ST P PP PSP

7. Mr. Chaiyavat Nitayaporn Independent Director/ {56000 (56000 | 200000 i 312,000
Member of the Audit Committee : : :

.....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

8. Mr. Paritud Bhandhubanyongg Independent Director/ 56,000 56,000 200,000 312,000

 Member of the Audit Committee

Remark : *Directors who did not wish to receive remuneration as directors of the Company.

b. Remuneration of Executives

Year 2013

Type of Remuneration umber of Executives Remuneration

Salary, bonus 6 persons (Jan-May 2013) 17,328,198
i and 8 persons (Jun-Dec 2013) :

Remark : "Includes the salaries of Mr. Suradej Boonyawatana and Mr. Ekkarat Kladpan as these two persons did not receive remuneration "‘W "
as directors of the Company. \
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Other Remunerations
a. Other Remuneration of Directors
- None -
b. Other Remuneration of Executives
Provident Fund
The Company has established a provident fund for its
executives and employees. In 2013, the Company made total
contributions of 956,448.70 Baht to the provident fund for the 8
executives.
Employment of Management and Business
Consultant

The Company and its subsidiaries have engaged Premier
Fission Capital Co., Ltd. (PFC), a major shareholder of the Company,
to provide management and administrative support services to the
Company and its subsidiaries under a management and consultancy
agreement. The scope of services provided by PFC covers various
work areas, including management and policy planning, accounting
and finance support, business development and investment,
system and data, human resources development and public
relations.

The purpose of such engagement is to outsource the
management and administrative support functions and to use the
central business unit of the Premier Group of companies, which is
a form of centralization and cost sharing according to the size and
the amount of services required by each company to help reduce
the total expenses of the Company in having to recruit additional

personnel for the provision of fully comprehensive support services.
{_  Personnel
The Company has a total of 531 employees. In 2013, the

Company paid total remuneration of 176,011,732 Baht to its employees,
which included salary, overtime pay, bonus, financial support, social

The Company and its subsidiaries paid management fees
to PFC on a monthly basis, with the Company paying a monthly
fee of 400,000 Baht while PHA and IGC each paid a monthly
fee of 125,000 Baht. PFC calculated the fees based on the
distribution of its costs and expenses to the hiring group
companies by taking various factors into consideration, namely,
the total revenue, total asset and number of employees of each
company.

Under the terms of the agreement, the Company shall be
entitled to terminate the agreement before expiration if PFC fails
to perform according to the objectives of the agreement. In such
case, PFC shall have no right to demand service fee payable under
the remaining term of the agreement or claim for any damage.
On expiration of the initial term, the agreement shall be automatically
renewed for additional periods of 1 year with the same terms until
it is terminated. The agreement may be terminated by a written notice
from either party not less than 90 days prior to the expiration of the
current term of the agreement.

However, the agreement with PFC is considered a related
transaction that may have conflict of interest. The Company must strictly
adhere to its policy, measure and procedure for related transactions.
In addition, if PFC proposes to amend the terms of the agreement
or the basis for calculating the fees payable by the Company and its
subsidiaries, the Company shall always present the proposed
amendments to the Audit Committee meeting for consideration
and recommendation on the appropriateness of the proposed changes

prior to entering into a new agreement.

security contribution, provident fund contribution, etc. In addition, the
Company’s subsidiaries also paid remuneration in the same way totaling
22,042,516 Baht to its employees.

Number of Employees and The PHA IGC PPW Total
Remuneration in 2013 Company : (subsidiary) : (subsidiary) : (subsidiary)
Executives (persons) 8 4 3 - 15
Operation and support staff (persons) 523 17 17 - 567
Total (persons) 531 21 20 - 572
Employee Remuneration (Baht) 176,011,732 i 11,172,243 i 10,870,273 - 198,054,248
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The Company has always had a good relationship with its
employees and the employees have not established a labour union.
The Company has not had any labour dispute within the past 3 years.
Provident Fund

The Company has established a provident fund by joining
the “Premier Group for Provident Fund”, which was registered since
10 March 2003. The fund is currently managed by Kasikorn Asset
Management Co., Ltd. The objective of the fund is to build employees’
morale and to motivate them to work with the Company in the long term.
The Company’s contribution is 5 percent of salary. As at 31 December
2013, the fund had 325 members, which is equal to 61.21 percent.
Human Resource Development Policy

The Company has a human resource development policy with
the objective of developing 3 characteristics in its employees, comprising:

1. To be a good, disciplined and responsible person.

2. To be a proficient, knowledgeable, skillful and professionally
capable person.

3. To work with contentment, be reasonable, recognize the value
of oneself and others, and be acceptable to changes.

In order to achieve its objectives, the Company has employed
a variety of systems, tools and activities in the development of its
human resources. These include the preparation of the 3-year master
training plan that is reviewed annually, the competency system,
the key performance index (KPI) monitoring system, the knowledge
management (KM) system, the performance monitoring system
implemented quarterly by the management (Top Visit), the Happy 8
Workplace concept, on-the-job training and knowledge enhancement
training implemented by the supervisors, productivity improvement,
the corporate social responsibility (CSR) system and the organization
of volunteerism activities for society, the communities and the
environment through the staff club committee

In 2013, the Company organized development and training
programs, which can be divided into 4 categories as follows:

1. On-the-job training with the objective of providing employees
with the knowledge and ability to perform their assigned duties
effectively and efficiently according to the 1ISO 9001:2008 quality
management system.

2. Enhancement of job knowledge with the objective of providing

employees with skills or techniques to improve and develop their

work. Training courses provided include Productivity Improvement,
Effective Presentation Technique, Quality Control Circle (QCC), Kaizen
Suggestion System (KSS), Competency for Sales, Risk and Uncertainty
Management, Online Marketing Strategy, CRM System Usage, Proactive
Service Mind, etc.

3. Management knowledge with the objective of providing
employees at the supervisory or management level with knowledge,
ability, skills and techniques in management of the work in which
they are responsible. Training courses provided included Sales Team
Management for Sales Manager, Supervisory Skills Development,
The Boss, Human Performance Improvement: HPI, Mini Master in
HR Management, Director Certification Program (DCP), etc.

4. Vocational knowledge with the objective of assisting
employees in deepening their knowledge in their profession for the
development and creation of new knowledge for their work. Training
courses provided included Safety Officer Supervisory Level, AEC
How do Thai Accountants Adjust, 3R Innovation Water Management,
Use of Ozone in Wastewater Treatment, How to Manage Cash
Flow and Present to the Management to Improve Accounting Efficiency,
How to do Business with the United Nations, etc.

In summary, the Company provided a total of 217 employee
training/development programs in 2013, with human resource
development expenditure of 1,569 Baht/person and total training
hours of 24.53 hours/person. The number of employees who
received training equaled 97.85 percent of the total employees of the
Company. The Company also gets “The best company” in aspect of
Skill Development Promotion in 2013 rewarded by Department of Skill
Development

This year, the Company still places importance on its human
resource development process at all levels and in every position,
including building an executive team, to support future growth.
The Company believes that its employees are valuable assets that
continuously create valuable and quality work for its customers and

are responsible for long-term organizational sustainability.

o
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Corporate Governance

& Corporate Governance Policy

The Company’s Board of Directors emphasizes good corporate
governance. It believes that good corporate governance and management
under the framework of good ethics, transparency, accountability and
fairness to all relevant parties will help to promote the Company’s
stable and sustained growth and help to increase the confidence of the
shareholders, investors and all related parties. Therefore, the Board of
Directors has established in writing the principles of good corporate
governance as guidance for the management and employees as follows:

1. Conduct business with integrity, fairness, transparency and
accountability, and disclose adequate information to all relevant parties.

2. Provide appropriate and effective internal control, risk management
and internal audit systems.

3. Emphasize on the rights of shareholders and treat sharehold-
ers equally with fairness to all parties.

4. Comply with the requirements of all relevant laws and regulations
and business ethics in order to protect the rights of all groups of stakeholders.

5. Organize the structure, duties and responsibilities of each group
of directors clearly.

The Company’s good corporate governance policy adheres to
the Principles of Good Corporate Governance for Listed Companies B.E.
2555 (2012) promulgated by the Stock Exchange of Thailand, which

covers b categories of principles as follows:
Chapter 1 The Rights of Shareholders

The Company recognizes and places importance on the various
basic rights of the shareholders, both as investors in securities and as
owners of the Company, by defining the guidelines to encourage the
exercise of shareholders’ rights as follows:

1. Shareholders’ Meeting

1.1 The Board of Directors has a policy to support or encourage
all groups of shareholders, including institutional investors, to attend
the shareholders’ meetings and exercise their rights, which covers
the basic legal rights, i.e. obtain a share in the profit of the Company;
buy, sell or transfer shares; obtain adequate news and information on
the Company; and participate and vote in the shareholders’ meetings
to elect or remove directors, approve the remuneration of directors,
appoint the external auditor and determine the audit fee, and make
decisions on any matter that affects the Company, such as dividend
payment, determination or amendment of the Articles of Association
and Memorandum of Association, capital decreases or increases, and

the approval of extraordinary transactions.

1.2 The Company has provided information on the date, time,
venue and agenda, with rationale and explanation for each agenda item
or resolution requested, in the notice of the annual general meeting
or extraordinary general meeting of shareholders or attachments to
the agenda. The Company has refrained from any action that limits
the opportunity of the shareholders to study the information on the
Company. The details of which are as follows:

1.2.1 The Company does not undermine the rights of the
shareholders to study the Company’s information that must be disclosed
according to various requirements and to attend the shareholders’
meeting. For instance, the Company does not abruptly distribute
documents containing additional important information in the meetings,
add new agenda items or alter sensitive information without prior notice
to the shareholders, not provide shareholders with the right to pose
questions to the Board of Directors in the meeting, restrict the right to
attend of shareholders who come late for the meeting, etc.

1.2.2 The Company has provided information as to the date,
time, venue and agenda of the meetings. Each agenda item of the
shareholders’ meeting is set as individual subjects and the objective and
rationale of each agenda item is clearly defined. Adequate information
is provided for decision-making as follows:

a. Agenda for appointment of directors

1) Preliminary information of the nominated person, such as title,
name, age, type of director, educational background, experience, etc.

2) Positions held in other companies with clear details of any
company that may potentially have a conflict of interest with the Company.

3) Nomination criteria and procedures (in the case of appointment
of a new director).

4)Number of years in position and performance during the
period as director (in the case of reappointment of directors).

5)Approved by the Board of Directors serving as the
Nominating Committee.

6) The opinion of the Board of Directors is sufficient and
clear for the shareholders to cast their vote.

b. Agenda to consider the remuneration of directors

1)Amount and form of remuneration by position or
responsibilities of the directors.

2) Directors’ remuneration policy.

3) Criteria and procedures for determining remuneration.

4) Other benefits received as director (presently the directors
do not receive any other benefit apart from meeting allowance
and annual bonus).

5)Approved by the Board of Directors serving as the.
Remuneration Committee.
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6) The opinion of the Board of Directors is sufficient and clear
for the shareholders to cast their vote.

¢. Agenda to appoint the auditor and determine the audit
fee.

1) Name of the auditor and the audit firm.

2) Experience and competence of the auditor.

3) Independence of the auditor.

4)Years of service to the Company (in case of appointment
of the current auditor) or reason for the change of auditor (in case of
appointment of a new auditor).

5) How the suitability of the audit fee together with other fees
of the auditor is determined.

6) Approved by the Audit Committee.

7) The opinion of the Board of Directors is sufficient and clear
for the shareholders to cast their vote.

d. Agenda on dividend payment

1) Dividend policy.

2) Actual amount to be allocated compared with the policy.

3) Reason why dividend payment does not conform to the policy.

4) The opinion of the Board of Directors is sufficient and clear
for the shareholders to cast their vote.

e. Agenda to consider material matters of the Company,
such as capital increase/decrease, amendment of regulations, business
sale/dissolution/transfer/merger, etc.

1) Details of the matter proposed.

2) Objective, reason or necessity.

3) Impact on the Company and its shareholders.

4) The opinion of the Board of Directors is sufficient and clear
for the shareholders to cast their vote.

1.3 The Board of Directors facilitates shareholder participation
and voting in meetings and refrains from any action that could limit the
opportunities of the shareholders to attend the meeting. The procedures
for attending and voting should not be complicated or too costly for
shareholders, and the meeting location should be easily accessible.

1.4 The Company provides the shareholders with an opportunity
to send their questions prior to the meeting date, by clearly determining
the criteria for submission of questions in advance and duly informing the
shareholders along with the delivery of the notice to the shareholders’
meeting. In addition, the Company also disseminates the criteria for
submission of questions in advance on its website. The Board of
Directors has prescribed the procedure for screening the questions
submitted in advance and requires that the Company to provide answers
to the shareholders in advance, as well as inform the shareholders’
meeting. The details of the procedure are as follows:

1.4.1 The Company provides shareholders with the opportunity
to submit questions related to the meeting agenda to the Board of
Directors in advance throughout the submission period. As for the
general meeting of shareholders, the Board will gather the questions

until December 31 of the calendar year preceding the meeting date.
The Company adheres to the following guidelines:

1) Clearly determine the criteria for submission of questions in advance.

2) Inform the shareholders along with the delivery of the notice
to the shareholders’ meeting.

3) Prescribe procedures for advance submission of the questions,
such as allowing the shareholders to send the questions through the
Company’s website, by email or by post to the Board of Directors.

4) Set the submission period for advance submission of the
questions prior to the date of the shareholders’ meeting.

5) Prescribe the procedure for screening the questions submitted
in advance by the shareholders for consideration of the Board of Directors
in answering those questions.

6)The Company answers the questions for the shareholders in
advance of the meeting date.

7) The Company answers the questions for the shareholders
on the day of the meeting.

8) The Company informs the shareholders’ meeting of the questions
submitted in advance by the shareholders and the answers to such questions.

1.5 The Board of Directors encourages shareholders to use proxy
forms on which they can specify their votes and proposes as an option
at least 1 independent director for shareholders to appoint as their proxy.
2. Procedures on the Shareholders’ Meeting Date

2.1 The Board of Directors encourages the use of technology
with the shareholders’ meetings, including registration of the attending
shareholders and vote counting and reporting, so that the meeting can
be conducted quickly, accurately and precisely.

2.2 Directors’ Attendance at Shareholders’ Meetings

2.2.1 All directors should attend the shareholders’ meetings.

2.2.2 In the case where nor all the directors can attend, at least
the following persons must attend the shareholders’ meetings:

1) Chairman

2) Managing Director

3) Chairman of the Audit Committee

4) Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

2.2.3 The shareholders are presented with the opportunity to
pose questions to the chairpersons of the various committees on matters
in which they are involved.

2.3 In the shareholders’ meeting, voting is made separately
for each item in the case of several items in an agenda, such as the
election of directors.

2.4 The Company has in place a process for vote counting, storage
of voting papers for every agenda item and full video recording of the meetings,
which is disclosed on the Company’s website. The meeting and vote counting
for every agenda item are conducted with transparency and accountability.

2.5 The Chairman has allocated adequate time for discussion

and encourages the shareholders to express opinions and pose ques- .

tions related to the Company to the meeting.
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3. Preparation and Disclosure of the Minutes of
the Shareholders’ Meetings

3.1 The minutes of shareholders meetings records the explanation
of the voting and vote counting procedures used to the meeting prior
to commencement of the meeting, as well as the opportunity provided
for the shareholders to raise issues and questions. It also records the
questions and answers, the voting results for each agenda item of the
number of shareholders approving, dissenting and abstaining, and the
list of directors who attended or missed the meetings.

3.2 The Company discloses to the public the voting results and the
minutes of the meeting on its website. The details of the practice are as
follows:

3.2.1 Disclose the resolutions of the meeting separated into
approving, dissenting or abstaining votes on the next working day.

3.2.2 Disseminate the minutes of the meeting within 14 days
from the shareholders’ meetings to serve as a channel for shareholders
to express an opinion without having to wait for the next meeting.

3.2.3 Post the videos of the shareholders’ meeting on the
Company’s website.

4. The Company provides more care to the
shareholders than their legal rights by providing
current important information on its website.

For the annual general meeting of shareholders for the year
2013, the Company held the meeting on April 25, 2013 at 10.00 hours
at Meeting Room No. 501, 5th Floor, Premier Corporate Park, No.1,
Soi Premier 2, Srinakarin Road, Nongbon Sub-district, Prawet District,
Bangkok. A total of 92 shareholders attended the meeting in person

and by proxy or 67.9674% of the total number of subscribed
shares. The meeting was attended by 7 of the 8 directors comprising
the Chairman, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Managing Director
and 4 other directors. In addition, the Company’s senior management,
Corporate Secretary and external auditor also joined the meeting.

Chapter 2 The Equitable Treatment of
Shareholders

The Board of Directors supervises and protects the fundamental
rights of all individual and groups of shareholders equally, including the
process of calling the meeting of shareholders, the protective measures to
prevent the use of inside information by the directors, management and
employees for abusive self-dealing, and for the directors and management to
disclose information regarding their interests and those of their related parties.

The Company has established guidelines for the equitable
treatment of shareholders as follows:

1. Release of Information Prior to the Shareholders’
Meeting

1.1 The Company informs the Stock Exchange of Thailand of

the meeting schedule together with the agenda and opinions of the

Board of Directors and disseminated this information on the Company’s
website. The details of the procedures are as follows:

1.1.1 The Company provides an opportunity for the shareholders
to review the supporting information of the meeting on its website at
least 30 days prior to the date of the shareholders’ meeting.

1.1.2 The supporting information of the meeting posted on the
Company’s website contains the same information that the Company
will send to the shareholders in the form of hard copy documents.

1.1.3 The Company sends the notice of the meeting and the
supporting documents to the shareholders for more days in advance
than that stipulated by law (at least 30 days prior to the meeting date).

1.2 The Company informs the shareholders of the various
meeting rules and procedures for voting, including the voting rights
attached to each class of shares, both in the notice of the meeting
and at the shareholders’ meeting.

1.3 The above notice of the shareholders’ meeting is fully
translated into English and disseminated at the same time as the Thai version.

At the annual general meeting of shareholders for the year
2013, there were no changes to the sequence of the agenda items
and no additional agenda was included. The meeting was not requested
to consider any other business apart from the agendas specified in the
notice of the meeting.

2. Protection of the Rights of Minority Shareholders

2.1 The Board of Directors has clearly pre-determined the criteria for
minority shareholders to propose additional agenda items in advance of the
shareholders’ meeting date. In order to demonstrate fairness and transpar-
ency in considering whether the agenda items proposed by the minority
shareholders should be included, the Company has the following criteria:

1) All shareholders have the right to propose agenda items.

2) Details of the supporting information for consideration.

3) Criteria to determine inclusion/non-inclusion of the matter
proposed as an agenda item.

4) Channels through which to propose agenda items, such send
a letter to the Board of Directors that may be sent in advance through
the Company’s website, by email, etc.

5) Nominition Period is from 1 January to 31 December of every years.

6) The Board of Director informs the shareholders via the
Company’s website of the criteria for proposing agenda items.

7) There is a screening process of the matters proposed by the
shareholders for consideration by the Board of Directors in the Board meeting.

8) Inform the shareholders of the Board of Directors’ decision
together with the reasoning by informing the shareholder who proposed
the agenda item and informing the shareholders’ meeting.

2.2 The Board of Directors established procedures for minority
shareholders to nominate candidates to serve as directors and to provide

supporting information regarding the candidates’ qualifications and their

consent in advance of the shareholders’ meeting date. The rules for .

nomination are as per the following topics:
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1) Nomination channel is by submitting a letter to the Board
of Directors.

2) Nomination period is from 1 January to 31 December of every year.

3) Supporting information for consideration, such as detailed
information on the qualifications of the proposed candidates, the
candidates’ letters of consent, etc.

4) The Board of Directors informs the shareholders of the
rules for nomination candidates through the dissemination channels of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand and through the Company’s website.

5) The Board of Directors considers the qualifications of the
candidates proposed by the minority shareholders according to the
criteria set by the Company.

6) The Corporate Secretary informs the shareholders who
proposed candidates of the Board of Directors’ decision and its reasoning
and the Chairman informs the shareholders’ meeting.

2.3 Shareholders in a management position may not add an agenda
item without prior notice unless necessary, especially important agenda
items that the shareholders require time to review before making a decision.

2.4 The Board of Directors provides the opportunity for the
shareholders to exercise their rights to elect directors individually.

3. Protection against Abuse of Inside Information

3.1 The Board of Directors has established in writing the procedures
for safe-guarding and prevention of use of inside information and has
communicated them to everyone in the Company for compliance, together
with the rules for trading the Company’s shares for the directors, executives
and employees with knowledge of inside information to use as a guideline.

3.2 All directors and executives who have a duty by law to
report on their securities holding of the Company are required to regularly
send such report to the Board of Directors and this information must
be disclosed in the Company’s annual report.

4. Conflicts of Interest of Directors

4.1 The Board of Directors has a requirement for the directors
and executives to report any conflict of interest regarding each agenda
item prior to consideration and that such conflict must be minuted in
the minutes of the Board of Directors’ meeting as follows:

1) The Board of Directors has set the guideline for the directors
and executives to disclose their interests and those of their related
persons to the Board so that it can make a decision for the benefit of
the Company as a whole.

2) This guideline is consistent with the nature of the business
and the regulations of the relevant authorities, such as the Bank of
Thailand, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Stock Exchange
of Thailand, etc.

3) The Corporate Secretary has been assigned as the recipient
for information on any interest of the directors, executives and their
related persons.

4) The Corporate Secretary has the duty to report any interest

of the directors and executives, together with related persons to the

Board of Directors, especially when the Board has to consider any
transaction between the Company and the director or executive who
have an interest or is connected.

4.2 The Board of Directors supervises that directors with material
interest in a manner that may impede the said directors from providing
an independent opinion shall not participate in the meeting to consider

the agenda item in which he has an interest.
Chapter 3 The Role of Stakeholders

The Company operates its business under the vision of “The
Premier Business, The Premier People, The Premier Society” with the
aim for sustained success with consideration of the rights, righteousness
and faimess to all groups of stakeholders, including not committing
any violation against the rights of these stakeholders. As guidance for
its management and employees, the Company has prepared a written
code of conduct that covers the treatment of all groups of stakeholders,
including shareholders, customers, trade partners, business alliances,
employees and society.

The Company has established guidelines on the role of
stakeholders as follows:

1. Setting Policies Affecting Stakeholders

1.1 The Board of Directors has set the policy on the treatment
of each stakeholder group together with implementation measures that
are in effect. The policy has been announced and there are measures
related to fair treatment that ensures that the Company and its value
chain are responsible for the stakeholders as follows:

1) Shareholders

Perform duties with integrity, transparency and for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders; manage the Company’s
operations cautiously and carefully in order to prevent any damages
to the shareholders; refrain from seeking personal gains for oneself or
related persons by exploiting any non-public information of the Company;
and refrain from any action that might cause conflicts of interest with
the Company, including the divulgence of any confidential information
of the Company to outsiders, especially its competitors.

2) Employees

The Company recognizes the importance of its employees
as valuable assets and has treated all employees equally and fairly
based on human rights principles without discrimination of skin color,
race, sex or religion and without the use of child or illegal labor. The
Company has compensation and remuneration policies that are based on
the principles of fairess, which are appropriate for the job description,
responsibilities and competency of each employee and are comparable
with other companies within the same industry. The Company also has

a policy for the continuous development and promotion of knowledge

and competency for the employees to develop their skills and abilities -

for career advancement.
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As for its welfare policy, the Company provides employee
benefits, such as provident fund for employees, social security fund,
group health insurance, group life insurance, group accident insurance,
annual health check-up, in-house medical clinic, shuttle bus service,
and financial support for employees on various occasions.

The Company has set a safety policy and set up a committee
to oversee that safety, bio-sanitation, and the work environment are
in accordance with the laws and international standards and to closely
monitor performance. Knowledge and training on safety, bio-sanitation,
and the work environment are provided to the employees and related
persons along with promotion of all employees’ awareness towards the
importance of safety and to seriously comply. There is regular testing
of the office building’s saffety system and annual fire drills, as well as
illumination and noise intensity measurements.

3) Customers

The Company has set a policy to meet customer satisfaction
by offering quality products of standard that are safe to fuffill the needs
of the customers. Complete and accurate information about the products
and services are disclosed without distortion of facts, as well as provision
of information that is accurate, adequate, and beneficial to the customers.
It also has a product recall process in case any quality defect is found.

4) Trade Partners and Creditors

The Company selects its trade partners impartially and conducts
mutual business fairly without exploitation, respects and abides by the
terms of the agreement, and does not solicit, accept or give any undue
benefit in dealing with trade partners or creditors. In the case that there
should be any information regarding the bestowment of any undue
benefits, the Company will consult with the trade partners or creditors
to mutually resolve the matter quickly and with fairness to all parties.

5) Competitors

The Company conducts its business ethically and transparently
with fair competition with its competitors, competes under the rules of
fair business competition, refrains from seeking confidential information
of the business competitors through dishonest or improper means, and
refrains from discrediting competitors through slandering or take any
action without the truth and unjustifiably.

6) Communities/Society

The Company has set the rules for the treatment of communities
and society in its Code of Conduct for use as a guideline for practice
by all employees as follows:

1) Support activities that are beneficial to the communities and
society as a whole and build a good relationship with the communities
in which the Company’s place of business is located.

2) Comply or ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

3) Refrain from supporting or participating in transactions with
any persons that are detrimental to the communities and society.

4) Pay attention to and be responsible for rectifying any
danger that society is apprehensive of that may have been

caused by the Company’s products/services or business operation.

b) Participate in the improvement of quality of life, build
a harmonious society, develop virtue and morality, preserve good
traditions, and instill a strong sense of social responsibility and volunteer-
ism among the employees.

7) Environment

1) Refrain from any action that may damage the natural resources
and the environment.

2) Comply or ensure compliance with laws and regulations
related to the environment.

3) Refrain from supporting or participating in transactions with
outside persons that threaten the environment as a whole.

4) Encourage the efficient use of resources and set policies
on conservation of energy and other resources through the adoption of
energy-efficient technologies for use in the Company.

1.2 The Board of Directors has assigned the Corporate Secretary
as the recipient of complaints and to handle the complaints filed by
the stakeholders. The reporting procedures and channels have been
disclosed on the website and in the annual report of the Company.

1.3 Have in place mechanisms for whistle-blower protection
and compensation measures in the case that stakeholders receive any
damage from the Company’s violation of their legal rights.

2. Disclosure of compliance to the policies and prep-
aration of the sustainability report on corporate
social responsibility (CSR Report)

2.1 The Company discloses various activities that demonstrate
the implementation of the policies mentioned above and also dis-
closes the mechanisms to encourage the participation of employees in
compliance with the afore-mentioned policies.

2.2 The Board of Directors ensures that the Company prepares
a sustainability report on corporate social responsibility as part of its
annual report or as a separate report from the annual report.

3. The Company has policies and practices in
anti-corruption, as well as supports activities that promotes and
instills all employees to comply with the relevant laws and regulations.
4. The Company has set policies on intellectual
property for which employees are prohibited from infringement of
the intellectual property rights of others, disregarding whether domestic
or foreign, and are prohibited from bringing pirated software for use in
the Company. The Company has anti-corruption policies and prohibits
bribery for business gain by the Company. The Company has informed all
employees of these policies to which they have complied with all along.
In addition, the Company has signed the declaration of intent to join the

Private Sector Collective Action Coalition against Corruption.

Chapter 4 Disclosure and Transparency

The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of disclosure -

of information, both financial and non-financial, that is accurate, complete
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and transparent as stipulated by the regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET), as
well as other material information that may affect the price of the Company’s
securities that influences the decision-making process of its investors and
stakeholders. Information on the Company is disseminated to the shareholders,
investors and general public through the channels of the SET and the
Company’s website in Thai and English, which is constantly updated.

The Company has set guidelines on the disclosure and
transparency of information as follows:
1. Disclosure of Information

1.1 The Board of Directors has mechanisms to ensure that the
information disclosed to the investors is accurate, not misleading and
adequate for their decision-making as follows:

1.1.1 The disclosure of material information, both financial and
non-financial, of the Company is accurate, complete, timely, transparent
and in accordance with the criteria stipulated by the SEC and the SET.

1.1.2 The effectiveness of the disclosure process is evaluated regularly.

1.2 The Board of Directors provides a summary of the corporate
governance policy, code of conduct, risk management policy and corporate
social responsibility policy as approved by the Board and the steps in
implementing such policies, including cases of non-compliance along
with the reasons, through various channels, such as the Company’s
annual report and website.

1.3 The Board of Directors has arranged for the Report of
the Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Statements to be
presented together with the report of the independent auditor in the
annual report. The report covers the following subjects:

1) Compliance with generally accepted accounting principles that
is suitable for the business and use of appropriate accounting policies
that are consistently adopted.

2) The financial reports contain information that is accurate,
complete and factual in accordance with accounting standards.

3) The Report of the Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Statements is signed by the Chairman and the Managing Director.

1.4 The Board of Directors encourages the Company to prepare
a Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) to supplement the
disclosure of each quarterly financial statement. This is done in order
for investors to be informed of the information and to understand the
changes that occurred to the financial position and results of operations,
the significant changes in the Company, including factors and events
that affect the financial position or results of operations, and not just be
presented with only the figures in the financial statements.

1.5 The Board of Directors stipulates that the audit and other
fees of the auditor be disclosed in the Company’s annual report.

1.6 The Board of Directors stipulates that the following informa-
tion be disclosed in the annual report:

1) Roles, duties and opinions from their work performance in

the previous year of the Board of Directors.

2) Roles, duties and opinions from their work performance in
the previous year of the committees.

3) Number of meetings held and attendance record of each
director in the previous year.

4) Record of training and ongoing professional education of
the directors.

1.7 The Board of Directors discloses the policy for remuneration
of directors and executives that corresponds with the duties and
responsibilities of each person, including the forms and manner of
remuneration, the remuneration amount and the amount of payment
received by each director as a director of the Company’s subsidiary.
2. Minimum Information Disclosed on the Company'’s
Website

2.1 In addition to disclosing information as specified by the
regulations through the SET, annual statements (Form 56-1), and annual report,
the Board of Directors deems it appropriate to regularly disclose information
that is up-to-date both in Thai and English through other channels, such as the
Company’s website. The minimum information on the Company’s website
should at least comprise the following and must be regularly updated:

(1) Vision and mission of the Company;

(2) Nature of business of the Company;

(3) Organization chart and list of members of the Board of
Directors and management team;

(4) Qualification and experience of the Corporate Secretary;

(5) Financial statements and reports on the financial position
and results of operations for both the current and prior year.

(6) Downloadable annual statements (Form 56-1), and annual report;

(7) Information or other materials provided in briefings to analysts,
fund managers and the media;

(8) Direct and indirect shareholding structure;

(9) Group corporate structure, detailing the subsidiaries, affiliates,
joint ventures and Special Purpose Enterprises/Vehicles (SPEs/SPVs);

(10) Direct and indirect shareholding of beneficial owners holding
5% or more of the total paid-up shares with voting rights;

(11) Direct and indirect shareholdings of major and/or substantial
shareholders, directors, and senior management;

(12) Notice of the annual general meeting and extraordinary
general meetings;

(13) Articles of Association, Memorandum of Association and
shareholders’ agreement (if any);

(14) Policy and practices according to the principles of good
corporate governance of the Company;

(15) Risk management policy and its implementation;

(16) Charter or responsibilities, qualifications and term of office
of the Board of Directors, including the types of decisions requiring
Board approval;

(17) Charter or responsibilities, qualifications and term of office .

of the committees;
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(18) Code of conduct of the Company’s employees and directors;

(19) Code of conduct of the investor relations officer;

(20) News of the Company and its subsidiaries;

(21) Contact details of the unit or officer responsible for
investor relations (e.g. name of contact person who can provide
information and telephone number);

(22) Annual investor relations plan.

In 2013, the Company presented its operational results,
both financial and non-financial information, to the analysts,
retail investors, institutional investors and shareholders through
participated at the Stock Exchange of Thailand’s Opportunity
Day on September 4, 2013, and the Company regularly replied
to email and telephone queries.

Chapter 5 Responsibilities of the Board of
Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the work of
the management to ensure compliance with policies, plans and budgets,
as well as its responsibilities toward the Company and its shareholders.

The Company has set the guidelines regarding the responsibilities
of the Board of Directs as follows:

1. Structure of the Board

1.1 The Board of Directors has prescribed that the structure
of Board should consist of directors with various qualifications in terms
of skills, experience, expertise that is beneficial to the Company and
gender. There should be at least one non-executive director having
prior working experience in the business or major industry in which
the Company is operating.

1.2 The Board of Directors ensures that the Board’s diversity policy
and the number of years each director has served as a director of the
Company are disclosed in the annual report and on the Company’s website.

1.2.1 Disclose the procedures for selection of directors that
is formal and transparent and the number of years each director has
served as a director of the Company are disclosed in the annual report
and on the Company’s website.

1.2.2 Disclose the name, history, qualifications, experience
and shareholding in the Company of the directors in order to show that
the Board has the knowledge, skills, characteristics and experience
that are useful to the Company in the annual report and on the
Company’s website.

1.2.3 Disclose clearly in the annual report the directors
representing the shareholders/non-executive directors/independent
directors/executive directors.

1.3 The Board is appropriately sized and is composed of
persons with sufficient knowledge, experience and skills to perform
their duties efficiently. The Board is composed of at least 5 but not
more than 12 directors.

1.4 The Board consists of independent directors who can
independently comment on the performance of the management
in the number prescribed in the notification of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC).

1.5 The proportion of directors is in accordance with the director
nomination process, which is mainly based on the criteria of knowledge,
competency and suitability of the person to be appointed as a director
rather than on the criteria on proportion of investments.

1.6 The Company takes into account the benefits to corporate
management according to the director nomination process set by the
Company rather than the number or proportion of independent directors.

1.7 The Board of Directors has determined the tenure of each
term of office but has not set the limit on the number of consecutive
terms in office.

1.8 The Board considers the qualifications of the person to be
appointed as an “independent director” to ensure that the independent
directors of the Company are truly independent and are appropriate for
the specific nature of the Company. Their independence must at least
be in accordance with the criteria set by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET).

1.9 The continuous tenure of the independent director will be
beneficial to the corporate management and business operations of the
Company. In addition, the search for a competent person to serve as
independent directors cannot be implemented immediately.

1.10 The Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director
have different roles and responsibilities. The Board has clearly defined
the roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and the Managing Director
and has recruited different persons to hold the positions of Chairman
and Managing Director so that neither person has unlimited power.

1.11 The Board of Directors respects the judgment of the Managing
Director and senior executives of the Company not to serve as a director of
other companies with the same business as or are in competition with the
business of the Company or are contrary to the interests of the Company.

1.12 The Company has appointed a Corporate Secretary to be
responsible for advising on laws and regulations of relevance to the
Board of Directors and for overseeing the activities of the Board, including
coordinating the compliance with the Board’s resolutions.

The Board of Directors has determined the qualifications and
experience of the appropriate Corporate Secretary who will perform the
duty as the secretary of the Company. The qualifications and experience
of the Corporate Secretary are disclosed in the annual report and on
the website of the Company.

1.13 The Corporate Secretary has received training and
continuous development in legal, accountancy, or company secretarial
practices. The Company determines the qualifications and appoints a

person as the Corporate Secretary by taking into consideration of mainly

his knowledge, capability and work experience, disregarding whether .

such person is a permanent employee of the Company or not.
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2. Committees

2.1 The Board of Director has appointed an Audit Committee
in accordance with the requirement of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand with a term of office of 3 year to perform specific duties
and to propose matters for consideration or acknowledgement by the
Board. The Audit Committee has rights and duties as set out in the
Scope of Responsibilities of the Audit Committee and has qualifications
according to the criteria prescribed by the SEC.

2.2 The Board of Directors appointed a Remuneration
Committee comprising 3 members to consider the criteria for and
form of remuneration to the directors and present its opinion to the
Board, which the Board must propose to the shareholders’ meeting for
approval.

2.3 The Board of Directors appointed a Nomination Committee
where the entire Board, except for directors with conflicts of interest,
will consider the criteria and process for nomination of persons with
appropriate qualifications to serve as directors, as well as select persons
according to the determined nomination process and present its
recommendation to the Board, which will propose these nominees to
the shareholders’ meeting for appointment as directors.

3. Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

3.1 The Board’s duties and responsibilities should include the
following matters:

1) Consider and approve key matters on the Company’s
operations, such as the vision and mission, strategy, financial
targets, risks, plans, budget, etc.

2) Monitor and ensure efficient and effective implementation
by the management of approved policies and plans.

3) Internal control and risk management, including the process
for receiving and handling complaints.

4) Ensure long-term business continuity, including employee
development plan and succession plan.

3.2 The Board of Directors has determined in writing a corporate
governance policy for the Company as follows:

1) The Board has determined and approved a written corporate
governance policy.

2) Communicate to everyone in the organization for their
understanding.

3) Have method to encourage everyone in the organization to
comply with the corporate governance policy.

4) Assess compliance to the corporate governance policy and
review the policy at least annually.

3.3 The Board of Director promotes the preparation of a
written code of conduct so all directors, executives and employees will
understand the ethical standards the Company uses in its business
operations and seriously monitors compliance with the code.

3.4 The Board of Directors considers any conflict of interests

thoroughly. There should be clear guidelines on the approval of transactions

with possible conflicts of interest, which is chiefly for the best interests
of the Company and all its shareholders. Persons with vested interests
should not participate in the decision-making process. The Board should
also monitor compliance with regulations regarding the procedures for
and disclosure of information on transactions that may have conflicts
of interest to ensure accuracy and completeness.

3.5 The Board of Directors ensures that internal control
systems for financial reporting and compliance with regulations and
policies are in place. The Board has assigned a person or a department
that is independent to audit such systems and to review the main systems
at least annually, as well as disclose the review results in the annual report.

3.6 The Board has established a risk management policy covering
the whole Company and has assigned the management to implement
the policy and regularly report to the Board. The risk management
system is review or the effectiveness of risk management is assessed
at least once a year with the results disclosed in the annual report,
and whenever, there is a change in risk level, which includes focusing
on early warning signs and unusual transactions.

3.7 The Board of Directors or Audit Committee should provide
its opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal controls and risk
management systems in the annual report.

3.8 The Board of Directors has set clear procedures for
whistle-blowers or stakeholders through its website or directly to the
Company or report directly to the Company. The Board has assigned
the Corporate Secretary as the recipient and handler of complaints from
the stakeholders. The procedures and channels for filing complaints are
disclosed on the Company’s website and annual report. The Company
has mechanisms for whistle-blower protection and compensation
measures in the case stakeholders receive damages from the Company’s
violation of their legal rights.

3.9 The Board of Directors has mechanisms for governing its
subsidiaries in order to protect the benefits from its investment. The
Board is responsible for determining the suitability of persons to be
appointed as directors of the subsidiary companies in order to ensure
that its management complies with the policies of the Company and
that various transactions are executed correctly according to securities
and exchange laws and notifications of the SET.

4. Board of Directors’ Meetings

4.1 The Company sets the schedules and agendas of the
Board of Directors’ meeting in advance and notifies each director of
the schedule so that all directors can manage time to attend
the meetings.

4.2 The number of Board meetings should correspond with the
duties and responsibilities of the Board and the nature of business of the
Company. In the case the meetings are not held monthly, the Company

will send a performance report to the directors for the months in which

there was no meeting so that they can continuously and timeously .

supervise and oversee the performance of the management.
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4.3 The Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director jointly
selects matters for inclusion in the agenda of the Board meeting and
ensures that all important matters are included. Opportunity is provided
for each director to independently propose any matter that is beneficial
to the Company as an agenda item.

4.4 The meeting documents are sent to the directors at least
5 working days in advance of the meeting date.

4.5 All directors attended at least 75 per cent of all Board
meetings held during the year.

4.6 The Chairman allocated adequate time for the management
to propose matters and enough time for all directors to discuss important
problems carefully. The Chairman promotes the prudent use of discretion.
All directors paid attention to all matters raised at the meeting, including
those concerning corporate governance.

4.7 The Board of Directors encourages the Managing Director
to invite the senior executives to attend the Board meetings to provide
additional information on the problems to which they are directly
related and to provide an opportunity for the Board to learn more about
the senior executives for use in supporting the consideration of the
succession plan.

4.8 The Board of Directors has access to additional necessary
information from the Managing Director, Corporate Secretary or other
executives assigned under the scope of the policy set. If necessary,
the Board may obtain independent opinions from external consultants
or practitioners at the Company’s expense.

4.9 The Board of Directors considers it a policy to provide
opportunities for non-executive directors to meet among themselves as
necessary to discuss various management issues of interest without
participation of the management and to inform the Managing Director
of the outcome of such meetings

4.10 The minutes of the meeting should consist of at least
the following information and there should be a good storage system
with easy data search but cannot be amended without approval of a
Board meeting.

Date, start time and end time;

Names of the directors present and absent;

Summary of important information on the matters proposed
to the Board;

Summary of the matters discussed and observations of the
directors;

Resolutions of the Board and opinions of the dissenting

directors (if any);

Recorder of the minutes — Secretary of the Board of Directors;
Certifier of the minutes — Chairman.
5. Board Self-Assessment

5.1 The Board of Director and the committees conduct
self-assessment of its performance at least once a year so that the
directors can collectively consider its performance and problems
for further improvement by setting a benchmark for systematic
comparison with its performance.

5.2 The Board self-assessment is an assessment of the Board
as a whole and the assessment criteria and process is disclosed
in the Company’s annual report.

The Company’s Board of Directors has the highest authority
and is responsible for the administration of the affairs and business
of the Company. The Board of Directors consists of individuals who
are already competent. Therefore, the assessment of the performance
of the Board as a whole is a self-assessment that has already been
conducted every year.

6. Remuneration

The remuneration of directors is comparable with the industry level
and reflects the experience, duties, accountability and responsibilities,
as well as expected contributions of each director. Directors who are
assigned to more tasks and has more duties and responsibilities, such as
being a member of a committee, should receive additional remuneration
as appropriate.

7. Board and Management Training

7.1 The Board encourages and facilitates training and educating
for those involved in corporate governance of the Company, such as
directors, members of the audit committee, executives, Corporate
Secretary, etc., to assist them to continuously improve their performance.
Training and educating can be done internally or through the use of the
services of external institutions.

7.2 Every time new directors are appointed, the management
will provide these directors with all documents and information
that are beneficial for them in fulfilling their duties, including an introduction
to the nature of the business and business practices of the Company.

7.3 The Board requires the Managing Director to present them
with the Company’s succession plan at least once a year. The Managing
Director and senior executives have prepared continuous succession
plans in case they cannot perform their duties.

7.4 The Board has assigned the Managing Director to organize
an executive development program and disclose it in the Company’s

annual report.
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In 2013, the Directors and Executives have attended seminars and training courses of the Thai Institute of Director (IOD) as follows:

Course Number of Training Hours/ Number of Persons
Person H

- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 8 2

- Anti-Corruption : The Practical Guide (ACPG) 8 1

- Director Certification Program (DCP) 46.30 1

In addition, the Board of Directors has established guidelines for the regular annual review of its good corporate governance policy

to correspond with the circumstances of the Company.

@ Committees

The Board of Directors has appointed the following committees:

Audit Committee

As at December 31, 2013, the Audit Committee comprised 3 members:

Meetings/ Attendance/
Audit Committee’s Name Position Attendance Total Meetings
(times) (times)
Miss Chnida Suwanjutha Chairman of the Audit Committee 4/4 11
Mr. Chaiyavat Nitayaporn Member of the Audit Committee 4/4 1N
Mr.Paritud Bhandhubanyong Member of the Audit Committee 4/4 /1

Miss Chnida Suwanjutha, the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
has sufficient knowledge and experience to verify the creditability of the
financial statements. Mr. Teerapol Juthapornpong served as the Secretary
of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee appointed Mr. Teerapol
Juthapornpong as the Secretary of the Audit Committee as from 10
August, 2012.

Term of the Audit Committee

The term of office of the Chairman and members of the Audit
Committee is 3 years. A retiring committee member is eligible for
re-appointment. In the event of the resignation of any member of the
Audit Committee prior to the expiration of their term, the appointed
replacement shall hold office only for the remainder of the term of the
replaced member.

Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit
Committee

The Audit Committee has duties and responsibilities as delegated
by the Board of Directors, including reporting to the Board, as follows:

(1) Review the Company’s financial reporting process to
ensure accuracy and adequacy by coordinating with external auditors
and the executive responsible for financial reporting, both quarterly

and annual.

(2) Review that the Company has appropriate and efficient
internal control and internal audit systems.

(3) Review the Company’s compliance with the securities and
exchange laws, regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and other
laws relevant to the Company’s businesses.

(4) Consider, nominate and dismiss the Company’s external
auditor, as well as recommend the remuneration of the external
auditor to the Board of Directors for proposal for appointment by
the general meeting of shareholders.

(5) Approve the disclose of the information on any connected
transaction or transaction with possible conflict of interest that is
accurate and complete for presentation to the Board of Directors
and/or the Company’s shareholders’ meeting.

(6) Prepare and disclose in the Company’s annual report,
a report on the Audit Committee’s activities that must be signed
by the Chairman of the Audit Committee chairman and must contain
at least the following information:

An opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability

of the Company’s financial report.
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An opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal
control system.

An opinion on the compliance with the securities and exchange
laws, regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand or laws relevant to
the Company’s businesses,

Other transactions, within the scope of its duties and
responsibilities assigned by the Company’s Board of Directors, which
the Audit Committee considers should be disclosed to the shareholders
and general investors.

An opinion on the suitability of an auditor.

An opinion on transactions with potential conflicts of interests.

The number of the audit committee meetings, and the
attendance of such meetings by each committee member.

Opinions or observations in general received by the audit
committee through the performance of its duties as defined in the
Audit Committee Charter.

(7) Perform any other duties assigned by the Board of Directors
as it deems appropriate.

(8) Verify the appropriateness and adequacy of the Company’s
risk management system.

(9) Review the Company’s corporate governance policy and
evaluate the implementation of such policy at least once a year.

In performing within the scope of its duties and responsibilities,
the Audit Committee shall have the authority to request the Company’s
management, executives or employees concerned to report, provide
opinions, attend meetings or send documents that are relevant and
necessary.

Apart from the said Audit Committee meetings, the Audit
Committee in 2013 held a meeting with the auditor without
participation of the management once in August 2013. The Audit
Committee visited the factories and held meetings with the
management of the subsidiaries in May 2013 and of the Company’s
in August 2013. In addition, the Audit Committee has arranged
to meet with the management of the Company and its subsidiaries
to verify the appropriateness and adequacy of the risk management
system of the Company and its subsidiaries. The first meeting is sched-
uled to be held in January 2014.

Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2013, the Remuneration Committee com-
prised of 3 members:

1. Mr. Suradej Boonyawatana Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
2. Mrs. Duangthip Eamrungroj Member of the Remuneration Committee
3. Miss Chnida Suwanjutha Member of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was appointed by the Board of
Directors’ Meeting No. 1/2013 held on 22 February 2013 and will begin
to consider the remuneration of the directors and senior executives as
from the year 2014.

Term of Office of the Remuneration Committee

1. Consists of 3 directors of the Company who were appointed
by the Company’s Board of Directors.

2. The term of office of the Remuneration Committee member
is 3 years. A retiring committee member is eligible for re-appointment.

In the case that the position of member of the Remuneration
Committee becomes vacant, the Board of Directors shall appoint another
director as a member of the Remuneration Committee. The appointed
replacement shall hold office only for the remainder of the term of the
replaced member.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee

The Remuneration Committee has duties and responsibilities as
delegated by the Board of Directors, including reporting to the Board,
as follows:

(1) Propose the policies and criteria related to remuneration and
benefit for the Company’s Board of Directors, Audit Committee and other
committees, Executive Chairman, Managing Director, sub-committees or
other persons appointed or assigned by the Board to perform specific
tasks in accordance with the regulations of the Company and other
relevant rules for approval by the Board and/or the shareholders” meeting.

(2) Invite any individual or request documents and information
from any individual or agency concerned both internal and external, for
the benefit of performing its duties as necessary.

(3) Appoint a secretary and assistant secretary to assist in the
operations of the Remuneration Committee with regards to arranging
meetings, preparing the meeting agenda, delivering meeting documents
and recording meeting minutes, as well as other duties as assigned.

(4) Appoint sub-committees or work groups as appropriate to
assist and support the Remuneration Committee in performing its duties.

The Board of Directors appointed a Nomination Committee
where the entire Board, except for directors with conflicts of interest,
will consider the criteria and process for nomination of persons with
appropriate qualifications to serve as directors, as well as select per-
sons according to the determined nomination process and present its
recommendation to the Board, which will propose these nominees to
the shareholders’ meeting for appointment as directors

In addition, in 2013 the Company appointed a Risk Management
Committee comprising 7 executive officers. The Risk Management Commit-
tee has held 2 meetings. Duties and Responsibilities of the Risk Management
Committee are the followings:

(1) Define, review and propose risk management policies for the
Company’s transactions, such as strategy risk, financial risk, marketing
risk, sales risk, operational risk, regulatory risk, legal risk, etc.

(2) Put in place risk assessment and risk management plan,
as well as prepare a risk management handbook, and supervise and

monitor implementation.
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(3) Review the guidelines and tools for risk management to
ensure efficiency and suitability to the nature and size of the risk for
the Company’s transactions.

(4) Review risk limits or acceptable risk levels and corrective
measure in case the risk does not correspond with the determined risk
limit or acceptable risk level.

(5) Monitor and evaluate the results of the risk management
of various risks under normal conditions and during a crisis situation

and make adjustments.

& Selection and Appointment of
Directors and Executives

The Company has not yet appointed a Nomination Committee
but has already set the criteria for the selection and appointment of
directors and executives as detailed below.

e Independent Director

The Board of Directors or the shareholders’ meeting (depending on
the case) shall appoint independent directors to join the Company’s Board.
The Company has a policy that not less than one-third of the Board must
be independent directors and that it must have at least 3 independent
directors. Currently, the Company has 3 independent directors.

The Company has defined an independent director as specified
in the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
Stock Exchange of Thailand according to notification Tor Jor. 4/2552 of
the Capital Market Supervisory Board dated February 20, 2009 regard-
ing the qualifications of the independent director. Independent director
means a director who has the following qualifications:

1. Holding not exceeding 1 per cent of the shares with voting rights
of the Company, its parent company, a subsidiary company, an associated
company, major shareholder or a controlling person of the Company, which
shall include the shares held by related persons of such independent director.

2. Neither being nor used to being a director who takes part in
the management, employee, consultant on retainer or a controlling person
of the Company, its parent company, a subsidiary company, an associated
company, a same-level subsidiary company, major shareholder or a controlling
person of the Company, unless the foregoing status has ended not less
than two years prior to the date of appointment as an independent director.

3. Not being a person related by blood or by legal registration
as a father, mother, spouse, sibling and child, including spouse of child
of the executive, major shareholder, controlling person of the Company
or any persons that has been nominated as executive or controlling
person of the Company or its subsidiary companies.

4. Neither having nor used to having a business relationship with
the Company, its parent company, subsidiary company, associated company,
major shareholder or controlling person of the Company in a manner which
may impede his independent judgment, and neither being nor used to

being a principal shareholder or a controlling person of any person having

a business relationship with the Company, its parent company, subsidiary
company, associated company, major shareholder or controlling person of
the Company unless the foregoing relationship has ended not less than
two years prior to the date of appointment as an independent director.

The business relationship under the first paragraph includes
normal business transactions for rental or lease of immovable property,
transactions related to assets or service or the granting or receipt of
financial assistance through the receipt or extension of loans, guarantees,
provision of asset as collateral, and other similar actions that result in
the Company or its counterparty being subject to indebtedness pay-
able to the other party of 3 per cent or more of the Company’s net
tangible assets, or of 20 million Baht or more, whichever is the lower.
The amount of such indebtedness shall be calculated according to the
calculation method for the value of connected transactions specified in
the notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board concerning rules
on connected transactions mutatis mutandis. However, in the considera-
tion of such indebtedness, any indebtedness that occurred during the
course of one year prior to the commencement date of the business
relationship with the same person shall also be included.

5. Neither being nor used to being an auditor of the Company,
its parent company, subsidiary company, associated company, major
shareholder or controlling person of the Company, and not being a
principal shareholder, controlling person or partner of an audit firm which
employs the auditors of the Company, its parent company, subsidiary
company, associated company, major shareholder or controlling person of
the Company unless the foregoing relationship has ended not less than
two years prior to the date of appointment as an independent director.

6. Neither being nor used to being a provider of any professional
service, including legal counselor or financial advisor, who receives a
service fee exceeding 2 million Baht per year from the Company, its
parent company, subsidiary company, associated company, major share-
holder or controlling person of the Company, and not being a principal
shareholder, controlling person or partner of the provider of professional
service unless the foregoing relationship has ended not less than two
years prior to the date of appointment as an independent director.

7. Not being a director appointed as a representative of the
directors of the Company, major shareholder or shareholder who is
related to the major shareholder.

8. Not undertaking any business of the same nature and in
significant competition with the business of the Company or its sub-
sidiary companies or not being a principal partner in a partnership or
being a director who takes part in the management, employee, staff,
consultant on retainer or holding more than 1 per cent of the total
number of shares with voting rights of any other company operating a
business of the same nature as and is competing with the business of

the Company or its subsidiary companies.

9. Not having any other characteristic that impedes the ability to render

independent opinions with regard to the Company’s business operations.
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e Directors and Executives

a. Board of Director

The selection and appointment of directors is in line with the process
prescribed in the Articles of Association. The appointed directors must be
approved by the shareholders’ meeting. The resolution of the shareholders’ meeting
shall be by a majority of votes of the shareholders present and eligible to vote.

1 The Board of Directors of the Company will comprise not less
than 5 members whose appointment has been approved by the sharehold-
ers” meeting and not less than half of the directors must reside in Thailand.

2 The shareholders’ meeting elects the directors according to
the following rules and procedures:

(1) Each shareholder shall be entitled to one vote to one share.

(2) Each shareholder must exercise all his votes under (1) above to elect
one or several directors but cannot distribute the votes among nominees.

(3) Nominees who receive the largest number of votes, in
descending order, shall be elected to the Board according to the number of
directors to be elected on that occasion. In the event of nominees receiving
equal votes and the number of directors to be elected on that occasion
is exceeded, the chairman of the meeting shall cast the deciding vote.

3 At every annual general meeting of shareholders, one-third of
the directors shall retire. If one-third is not a round number, the number
closest thereto shall be the applicable number. The directors to vacate office
within the first and second year following company registration shall draw
lots. In subsequent years, the directors serving the longest shall resign. The
directors who vacate office are eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

The directors to vacate office within the first and second year
following company registration shall draw lots. In subsequent years,
the directors serving the longest shall retire. The directors who retire
by rotation are eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

4 Any director who wishes to resign from office shall submit a
letter of resignation to the Company. The resignation shall be effective
on the date that the Company receives the letter. The director, who
wishes to resign as above, may notify the Registrar of his resignation.

5 In the event that a position of director becomes vacant
for any reason other than the end of the office term, the Board of
Directors shall, on the next board meeting, appoint a qualified person
with the characteristics prescribed by the relevant laws to be a new
director, except if such remaining office term is less than 2 months.
The replacement director shall hold office only for the remainder of the
office term of the director whom he replaces.

The resolution of the Board of Directors pursuant to the first
paragraph must consist of votes of not less than three-fourths of the
number of remaining directors.

6 The shareholders’ meeting may remove a director from office
before the end of term with a resolution of not less than three-fourths
of the total votes of shareholders present and eligible to vote and alto-
gether holding not less than one-half of the total number of all shares

held by the shareholders present and eligible to vote.

b. Audit Committee

The Board of Directors appoints at least 3 members to serve
as the Audit Committee of the Company. Each member of the Audit
Committee must be an independent director and must possess the
qualifications stipulated by the securities and exchange laws, as well
as relevant notifications, regulation and/or rules of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand that prescribes the qualifications and scope of duties and
responsibilities of the Audit Committee.

c. Executives

The Company does not have a Nominating Committee for
the selection of executives. The Company has a policy to recruit
executives through the selection of persons who possess knowledge,
expertise and experience related to its businesses. Selections are made in
accordance with the human resource regulations and must be approved by

the Board of Directors and/or any person assigned by the Board of Directors.

{ Governance of the Subsidiary’s
Operations

The Company has a policy for its subsidiaries to adhere to
and comply with the corporate governance principles of the Company
according to the guidelines set by the Company. It is set in the authori-
zation manual of the subsidiaries that important operations or material
transactions must first be approved by the Company’s Board of Direc-
tors. In addition, a large number of directors of the subsidiaries are
also directors of the Company and, therefore, the various operations of
the subsidiaries will largely take into consideration and adhere to the

guidelines for operation of the Company.
{ Supervision of Inside Information Usage

The Company supervises and protects against the use of inside
information according to the good corporate governance principles, as
well as requires the directors and executives to disclose information
on their interests and those their related parties. The Company has
the following guidelines:

1) Set policies regarding the safe-guarding of the information
system in order to maintain the standard of the work system, computer
system, and information and communication system, which are important
in the creation of a control system of quality.

2) Set policies regarding trade secrets and intellectual
properties. The Company has entered into confidentially agreements
with its employees, contractors, suppliers/service providers and visitors of
the Company to prevent disclosure of information or news of the Company
and its subsidiaries that are confidential. In addition, the employees are

prohibited from infringement of the intellectual property rights of others.

3) The Board of Directors has set in writing the procedures .

for use of inside information to promote transparency, equality and

Annual Report 2013
Premier Products Public Company Limited

85



86

ﬂmﬂummm\immﬂiyiﬂmu@mmﬂmm@mﬂ‘l,uwmvl,u
lshTnmesiaanatsasmy uvavanassdensiiaaiiuna
wnzaNn I vannsndreddn Tnaldnssunag § B
U39 uazniinauaestsimsesinmanuauLaysadasys
meluren @i hihhdawevizeusammlszloniuiaues
M?@LW@‘]J?“’IEIT%LLHN@% lidmamsnieneden suvseds]
ymsternelewiesuleuwdnnintdresiin e ldmnugy
wayriredeyanieluaes s Budawsidrdeyadinanlside
wesaanssuTuudn wayllidwinifnssudulalaeldaauay
uazizedeyanelursuisinduenaneliiinanuidameste
Usnlsidmnansaviennsden uazazdedliinnistena teu
viseiulaumannindvesfimlugdawszazionn 1 hew reudl
nMsidlawesinisiy. fedvuadainanilliinuigausauay
yasndsliussgiiiniazaesnssunig guinisuasniinanuaes
Usmsae inngladHudanmuasinainazfasgnasinemng
TauayvFamNNuNIEuAILFNTH

{ AcsuInuvaYEDUUNYE

(1) ANadUNINUPINNNSEDUUNYT

‘].IT]:W]LLZ\]“"LIT‘HV]EI@EI@’]EIﬂ’)ﬁ]@‘]_lLLV]uﬂ’]i‘@’ﬂ‘]_lllﬂ_Iﬂ]sLﬂLLﬂ‘]_li‘L‘W] mum’m Budn LL@‘LLG] £19 anfin "NLﬂuﬁ’]uﬂ\‘i’]u@’ﬂU

4 wiimlideyaunnssunisuazduimaiiaatuming
NHLEMNIFIP1ENUNTNOAN NN IBILTEN UazunnIvun
WEANN W2 U NANNINETUAEAANAUANNINE W.A. 2535 LAY
mmmmum@mmmmﬂmwﬂLm\mivmﬁim wazlu
ﬂimwmmmim@mm‘maéﬁfamwmmwmmumwmm
91291UNNIDBUANNINT LB ENTRIAUIEY AANTA UATYAT
ﬁﬁﬁﬂm@@ﬁﬁmq: MINNIATT 59 WU W.e.UuANNINeuaY
AA1ANANYMINE W.A.2535 nnelu 3 dwinnislidninan
n.a.0. neuiieNsunsseanstsaumusely sanveldtmun
‘lmm@mmmmsm@ﬂimmﬂmwmmummmmimw
Iuwﬂivmmmmimmimmmﬂmqmﬂ

B) ﬂmyﬂi‘imﬂ’]?U?HVIimﬂ’mumﬁﬁﬂLﬂmsﬁLL@‘Z?ﬁiﬂ’]i‘
Meunsiidldiderasnssunis uaziimaanumnsyanT
tryaivannineiaznaianannineg (@iTun 4) w.A.2551 119
89/14 LL@;‘iﬁl’IﬁJﬂi‘zﬂ’]ﬂﬂm;‘iﬂi‘ﬁ‘mﬂ’]i‘ﬂ@’]ﬂnu‘ﬁl 1.2/2552

o

=
T5i

ﬁﬁj@@uummzﬁvaﬂm UAPAA 30 ﬂf-qmimﬂmmmﬂummuumm 1%?@U‘]JUE]J°TJV]N’WHN’] m\m

snensh

uSENSNY BoWaoulryd ANdoUUyE

1 1319 wWales nednd andn (uunaw) UNTATE AURSAsNIL 1,410,000
2 151 Walas Tan wannanauaud A UNTATE dURBAITINTOL 450,000
3 131 BuAin n7u anim wNIaTa duRdrAsnTd 650,000
4 139 AN AU 1uesa ain UNTAIE AURSAsNIL 30,000
PINANRALUNUAINNTaaLTTYT 2,540,000

(2) AUSN1SduU
13nelat IGC ldanaAUTnnsaw w3 d1iinanu
Budn waud 69 anin aadudrinauseutinyangaeuiind

=
TN
o o A a A o o9 o
AN4NA ‘quﬂﬂ@ NTR ﬂ@ﬂq?WLﬂﬂQT@QﬂUHm@U kil Iu?ﬂ‘ui‘zﬂz

iwmuﬂjgéﬂ 2556
1310 wWides Inednd anfn (Wunaw

naiydduiull 2556 uanuauRusan 180,000 U 9
dunisfusesuuuasald@nsuasdsslagdaniduni#Ruls
HAyAPALNaEUAAUZNITNNNG AAUATNNNTAIYY



fairess equally to all shareholders and to prevent the use of such
non-public information for personal gains, as well as avoid criticism
regarding the appropriateness of the trading of the Company’s
securities. The directors, executives and employees of the Company
must protect the secret and/or inside information of the Company
and may not disclose or use such information, directly or indirectly,
for personal gains for oneself or others. They must not trade, transfer
or receive securities of the Company by using the Company’s secret
and/or inside information except where the information has been
made public and must not enter into any transaction by using
the Company’s secret and/or inside information, which may directly
or indirectly cause losses to the Company. They are also prohibited
from trading, transferring or receiving the Company’s securities for
a period of 1 month prior to the disclosure of the Company’s financial
statements. This requirement includes spouses and minor children of the
directors, executives and employees of the Company. Violators of the
requirements will be punishable according to the Company’s disciplinary
rules andfor the law depending on the case.

{  Remuneration of the Auditor

(1) Audit Fee

4) The Company has advised the directors and executives of
their duty to report on their shareholding in the Company and
the punishment terms stipulated in the Securities and Exchange
Act B.E. 2535 (1992) and the requirements of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand. In the case where the director or executive trades in
the Company’s securities, they must also report their securities holding
and the holdings of their spouses and minor children of the securities
of the Company as prescribed by Section 59 of the Securities and
Exchange Act B.E. 2535 within 3 working days to the Securities
and Exchange Commission for further dissemination to the public.
The Company also requires the directors to report their securities holding
at every Board of Directors’ meeting.

5) The Board of Directors has set guidelines and procedures
for reporting the interest of directors and executives as prescribed
by Section 89/14 of the Securities and Exchange Act (No. 4) B.E. 2551 (2008)
and notification Tor Jor. 2/2552 of the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

The Company and its subsidiaries paid remuneration for the audit to Ernst & Young Office Ltd., the audit firm, and related persons/parties

of the auditors during the financial year 2013 as follows:

Item Company Paying Auditor Audit Fee (Baht)
1 Premier Products Public Co., Ltd. Mrs. Chonlaros Suntiasvaraporn 1,410,000
2 Premier Home Appliance Co., Ltd. Mrs. Chonlaros Suntiasvaraporn 450,000
3 Infinite Green Co., Ltd. Mrs. Chonlaros Suntiasvaraporn 650,000
4 PP Wind Energy Co., Ltd. Mrs. Chonlaros Suntiasvaraporn 30,000
Total Remuneration Paid for the Audit 2,540,000

(2) Non-Audit Fee
The Company’s subsidiary, IGC, paid other service
fees to Ernst & Young Office Ltd., the audit firm, and related

persons/parties of the auditors during the financial year 2013

totaling 180,000 Baht, which was for certification of the Request to
use the Rights and Benefits for Exemption of Income Tax Form for

submission to the Board of Investment.

Annual Report 2013
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& Compliance with Good Corporate
Governance Principles in Other Matters

e Whistle-Blowing Measures and Whistle-Blower
Protection Mechanisms

The Company requires that executives at all levels assume respon
sibility for ensuring that employees under their supervision acknowledge,
understand and comply rigorously with the code of conduct and policy/
regulations/requirements of the Company, the principles of good corporate
governance and various laws. The Company has determined the procedures
for consideration and investigation of grievances or complaints that are
systematic, transparent and accountable so that the complainants will
have trust and confidence in a fair investigation process.

In order to treat all stakeholders equally and with faimess,
the Company has set up channels for whistle-blowing, complaints,
suggestions or recommendations that indicate that the stakeholders
are affected or are at risk of being affected by any action that
may cause damages for all groups of stakeholders arising from
its business operations or violation of laws, rules, regulations and
the code of conduct by its employees, as well as behaviors that
may indicate fraud, unfair treatment, or careless or reckless
actions. Whistle-blowing or filing of complaints together with details
and evidences can be made through the following channels:

Audit Committee
Company Secretary

Premier Products Public Co., Ltd.

No.2 Premier Place, Soi Premier 2, Srinakarin Road

Nong-bon, Prawet, Bangkok 10250

Telephone : 0-2301-1569
0-2748-2063

Teerapol@pfc.premier.co.th

Facsimile :

Email :

The whistle-blowers or filers of complaints that are employees,
customers, individuals hired for work by the Company or other groups
of stakeholders who are whistle-blowers will have their rights
protected and defended according to the law or the guidelines set
by the Company.

In 2013, the Company did not have any material dispute with
the stakeholders.
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Corporate Social Responsibilities

The Company believes that the private sector is a significant
factor of the economic and social of the country and the Company
is deemed responsible for taking care of the survival and the
sustainability of the social. Therefore, the Company and the
subsidiaries have committed in the intention for sustainable
achievement under the philosophy of Premier Group of Companies
“The Premier Business The Premier People The Premier Social

Harmonious Alignment of Success”

Vision of Premier Group of Companies

CSR Policy

Board of Directors has announced company policy
concerning its business operations of company group to be realized
in social, environment and people. This is for building company
sustainability on covering to economy, society and environment
as mentioned in the picture below showing Premier Group and

Premier Products Public Company Limited’s vision.

VISION

To be leading Thai corporation that enhances society,
promotes organization and motivates staff to achieve sustainable
success and harmony

The Premier Business

The Premier People The Premier Society

Harmonious Alignment of Success

CORE VALUES

To utilize
innovation to
enhance the
quality of life,
society and

To deliver
quality
products and
services

the environment

People

To foster mutual
prosperity of staff,
the organization
and society

To act in

a moral and
ethical manner
and uphold
Thai tradition

To promote
collaboration
between
specialized
teams to
maximize
efficiency

Good for our people

Efficiency & productivity
Trustworthiness
Recognition & respect
Financial strength & profit
Sustained growth

Enhance quality of life
Preserve Environment & conserve
natural resource

Promote moral and ethical
behavior

Preserve Thai’s values and
culture

Foster a peaceful society
Cultivate harmony and happiness
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Vision of Premier Products Public Company Limited

Vision
To be leading Thai corporation
doing in water conservation, modern
building materials and clean energy businesses
that enhances society, promotes organization and

motivates staff to achieve sustainable success and harmony.

Mission

1. To deliver quality products and services.

2. To search and develop innovative water conservation, environmental,
building materials and clean energy products for quality of life, social and environment.
3. To expand into the AEC markets and other potential countries.

4. To foster mutual prosperity of staff, the organization and society.

5. To promote collaboration between specialized teams to maximize efficiency.

6. To act in a moral and ethical manner and uphold Thai tradition.

7. To operate under the anti-corruption policy.

Value

Quality Products Effective Cost

The Practice Guidelines for the Operation in
Disclosure of Information and Report

(1) CSR Working Group

To continuously and sustainably operate in CSR, Board of Direc-
tors takes this opportunity assign all CSR Activities and Anti-Corruption

to be the responsibility of Assistant Managing Director of Human Re-

Punctuality

Responsible for
major shareholders
and minority
shareholders

Creativity

sources and systems by selecting the relevant employees to be CSR
Committee e.g. Labour - Representatives from The Labour Welfare
Committee, Environment - Representatives from The Operating Environment
Committee, etc. This is to ensure that the relevant employees are
responsible for the above-mentioned mission, and its operations are

executed based on their accountability as shown as below.

Annual Report 2013
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Managing Director

Management
Representative

Environment

Human Rights Responsibilities

Labour
Fairness

Business Operation
Fairness

Responsibility of CSR Committee consists of thoroughly
verify company operation, improve, initiate and execute undertaken
by CSR framework through the ISO 26000 Committee. To update
the concerned document, contribute in the information operation and
realized in the employee productivity and performance evaluation to
be approached the company target reporting to Board of Directors
correctness and frankness.

The Company has been operating under the vision of
“The Premier Business, The Premier People, The Premier Society”
by aiming to achieve sustainable success; according to the accuracy,
revealing and the right of shareholders as defined as the following
policies.

Economic Policy; The Company has been focused its
businesses in an ethical and revealed competition under the manner
competition, not take advantage to others, respect and comply with
any dishonest issues; including deliver the quality and safe of products
and services, disclosure of product information correction any distortion
and providing the accurate information.

Social Policy; The Company will contribute in activities being
advantage to the community; focused on the quality of life, life
development, ethical development. The Company will raise the
communities up to be happy together, and contribute in the good
cultures including being awareness of social responsibility and
volunteerism among employees and communities.

Environment Policy; The company will not be executing

Valued Customer Innovation
Responsibilities Promotion
Against Community
Corruption Development

any damage to environment both process operation and products;
being proactive how to save the energies and other resources efficiency
among employees and shareholders.

(2) Operations and Reports

The Company and its subsidiaries has realized developing
our shareholders to be a part of company operation successes
as follows;

1. To provide the up to date products and services information.

2. To organize the customer satisfaction survey for developing
and improving products and service purpose.

3. To acknowledge employee feedback for developing its
operations purpose.

4. To build the good relationship among employees and
shareholders by participating in activities e.g. Public Activities,
Customer visitation, Sport Day, etc.

5. To analyze the shareholders starting by identifying
shareholders, evaluating the benefits and impacts; be prioritized in
shareholders, communicating and implementing responding to

shareholders and planning project.

Annual Report 2013
Premier Products Public Company Limited

95



96

a1sTv davnissaandundwaEAryYavKDasuldidy

HaNnIzny

LT

lq—OO/—

2 inn¥u

>

ansv wanisuszidunwaus:lestna:wans:nu

Hanszny

WU

oy O\O » iy
fAorrawu EE
== ‘\‘Ej CERTITRY el
gnfh
1 2 3 4
wadszlumd

o madiaauTm unIEuTUMIA IR IS

e MANLUNMST Happy 8 Workplace

o pEAniumMIAEnaadenlumsie

YUY
s 4
o MIUANINUUITIUAABIGAN, FUFUNUBAN

Tamiwandamnvoseaanstd s umsimun

MUMIINYAg

iﬁﬂd?uiiig'ﬂﬂ’]ﬁ 2556
1310 wWidlas Inednd andn (Wunaw

warls=Towi



The Priorities of Shareholders (TABLE)

Impacts

3|4
. Suppliers
Communities #
Competitors
2 1| 22  Enterprises
Employees D |~ .
o O..-———ﬂ-—"“"—" Partners
‘—
Shareholders 0- 0
" Government
Press E)
. "O‘ Subcontractors
Customers
1 2 3 "l
Benefits

Evaluation of Benefits and Impacts (TABLE)

Impacts

Employees
® Participating in the Implementation of Labour Standards.
® Organizing in Happy 8 Workplace Project.
® Being responsible in the environment.
Communities

® Discussing with people in Klongudom, Nhongki
Communities by bringing the local products joint

with Agricultural development.

Benefits

Annual Report 2013
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Moreover, the Company and the subsidiaries have supported
and cooperated with the Social Sustainability Development Unit of
Premier Group of Companies, i.e. Yuvabadhana Foundation, For Khonthai
Foundation and Enlive Foundation in activities concerning development

of education for adverted youth, the creation of the sharing society,

the subsidy to adverted handicapped and the creation of the
participation in the sustainable development of social and environment,
under the principle of creation of direct benefit and creation of tool
or organization for participation and repeatable action of public which

result in sustainable and multiple result.)

Large Sustainable
Social Impacts

Eco — System that leads
to Critical Mass
and Active Citizens

8 Principles of Operations

(1) To operation company businesses with fairness; The
Company has realized and recognized in the importance of operation
managements accordance with the framework of laws and ethics
transparently which able to be verified and audited how fair company
is to others e.g. Accomplice Measurement and Unfair Competition
Policy, Freedom Support and Contribution Promotion, Suppliers and
Partners Fairness, Partner Growth Together and Reliability of Social
Responsibility to partners. The aforementioned policies and measurements
are implemented and reviewed regularly.

(2) To against the corruptions; The company has intended
performing against corruptions. The Private Sector of Thailand
Corruption Action Coalition associate with The Institute of Directors,
The Thai Chamber of Commerce, The Thai Banker’s Association,
International Chamber of Commerce and Thai Listed Companies
Association showing intention operations the business with
transparency, Legitimate Resistance and Not support any corruptions
in all company operations in accordance with good corporate
governance by signed the commitment. At the present, the company
organizes the manual of policies and procedures acknowledging
and signing by employees including communicating to stakeholders
and staffs.

(3) To respect for Human Rights; The Company adapts to
Premier Group’s culture and the relevant laws e.g. Non-discrimination
Policies and Equality of Opportunity in Employment covering
disabilities, women and disadvantage groups. Those human rights
are organized and negotiated with employees, Validated screening in
partners fairness and not violate human rights and delight to contribute
in disabled person working with company.

-

Platforms for Engagement
and Participation

(4) Labour Fairness; The Company has been certifying in
the completion level of The Occupational Health and Safety on
Labour Standards (ISO 18001 : OHSAS 18001). The initiation level of
8001:2008 developing in The Master Training Plan which is more
performed of Fund Skill Development and Evaluation System
Development by The KPI System Applied. The company has
determined the working conditions required more than laws by
rewarded The Outstanding Labour and Welfare Award for 5 years
consecutively from The Prime Minister. Also participating in the activity
of self-sustaining according to the philosophy of sufficiency economy,
saving through cooperative and fund.

(5) Valued Customer Responsibilities; The Company establishes
the representatives to be responsible for Product Liability to deliver
products and services according to company standard and/or the
consumer protection laws certified by The Quality Management
System 1SO 9001:2008 of The Industrial Standards Institute. Company
disclosure has been announced through catalogs and website,
respected the confidential and protection all personal and consumer
information. The Company has organized the monthly meeting and
given a chance to valued customer for thoroughly checking contract,
developing the products and services and communicating with Call
Center (24 hours.)

(6) Community and Social Development; The Company
wins award of CSR-DIW consecutively from year 2010. Award
of CSR-DIW Network in 2011 of Supply Chaing to help Society
and Community and CSR-DIW Advance Green Industry in the 4th
level in 2012 settling the factory for wastewater resources and
managements associate with the various foundations as details as
10-4 activity.
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(7) Environment Responsibilities; The Company engages our
operations in Water Resources and Management, Construction Products
and Clean Energy Products for Social and Environment. The company
has adopted the environmental management system 1SO 14001
certified by Energy Management of Department of Industrial works
associate with Srinakharinwirot University (Nakhonnayok Campus)
organized the greenhouse effect project in the plant and contributed
employees conveying the relevant information and used the resources
effectively into the comment and suggestion system (KSS) for water
management recycling processes, developing wastewater reusing
processes in the plant as MBR System. Besides, the company has
organized the community learning center, the prevention of pollution
management system, the contingency plan preventing in the impact
of environment, the promotion of environment protection, The
biodiversity and restoration of environment habitats through Enlive
Foundation.

(8) Innovation Promotion and Business Operations to Social
Responsibilities; The company has developed our innovative businesses
which are advantage and beneficial to society and environment e.g.
the wastewater reusing processes in the plant as MBR, Auto Wheel
and Hydro Wheel System, Tank Traps Odors (Bio-scrabble), BM for filling

in small Treatment tank and The Clean Energy Business Growth, etc.

ﬁ Impact of Business Operations to
Social Responsibility

- None -
k Social and Environment Activities

1. Environment

(1) The company has operated the environment activities
through The Enlive Foundation associate with Department of Marine
Resources - Royal Thai Navy; organized the office of knowledge
management and development at Krabi Province as located in
Phi Phi and Ya Wa Sam lIslands for conservation and restoration
of marine resources by placing warships were decommissioned
e.g. HT.M.S. Talibong, H.T.M.S. Kolum and H.T.M.S. Ravi into under
the sea.

(2) To organize The Sea Kayak Activity at Krabi Provice,
The Enlive at Thara Park Krabi

Ecotourism and Environmentally-friendly Tourism.

for raising up the awareness of

(3) To organize The Project Management Seminar on “Wing
Shell” around Phang Nga Bay.

(4) To associate with The Electricity Generating Authority of
Thaialnd, The Officer of Ao Nang, Noppharatthara Beach - Phi Phi
Islands National Park, Royal Thai Marine Corps, Departure of Marine

and Coastal Resources, The Diving Tourism Club; joint The Garbage
Collection Activities at Phi Phi Islands.

(5) To be a learning center of the community’s water
management system (Wastewater Reuse with MBR).
2. Education

(1) Appropriate 5 percent of net profit each year for
donating as scholarships for poor and underprivileged youths through
the Yuvabadhana Foundation, a public charity listed in the Ministry
of Finance’s notification, whose main objective and activity is in the
contribution of education aiming of providing assistance for continuous
learning, including general education, vocational training and special
scholarships, to underprivileged students who are committed to learn.
As at the end of 2013, the Foundation had 416 scholarship students;
separating from Mathayom 1 - 6 at 355 students and Vocational Degree
at 61 students. Scholarships are granted to students for a period of
6 years till the students being completed Mathayom 6 or until they
receive a vocational training diploma. The Foundation has a system
to supervise the students in conjunction with their respective schools
and parents and regularly monitors the students’ progress. Presently,
scholarships of 7,000 Baht per student per year are granted at the
secondary school level and 14,000 Baht per student per year are granted
at the vocational education level.

In additional the Company and its subsidiaries contributed the
Foundation’s activities promoting the improvement of the quality of
schooling, the learning of morals, art and culture, the development
of a conscience that is good and correct, and the co-creation of
a sharing society through several projects, such as Yuvabadhana
Art Project, The Pan Kan Shop Project, and supported by purchasing
The Yuvabadhana Foundation’s products using on various occasions
to the company’s guests.

(2) To organize the cooperative education program in
conjunction with various educational institutions to provide student
internships, such as with the Suranaree University of Technology,
Mahasarakham University, Rajamangala University of Technology Isan
(Khonkaen Campus), Srinakharinwirot University (Nakornnayok Campus), King
Mongkut’s University of Technology and Prachinburi Technical College

(3) To allocate 5 scholarships for students at Traimudomsuksa-
nomklao Kabinburi School.

(4) To maintain the playground, deliver the sport equipment and
be a sponsor of robot competition to Tamaprang School (Tambol
Tha Maprang, Amphur Kaeng Khoi, Saraburi Province) and Watbandong
(Cham Phak phaeo Sub-District, Kaeng Khoi District at Saraburi Province)

(5) To open The Saraburi Plant Renewable Energy Sources
being a learning center for students in Saraburi Province and
nearby areas; including make The Memorandum of Understanding
with Vocational Institutes to be the internship center of Electric and

Electronic Students.
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(6) To contribute the water tank (2,000 Liters) to the schools
where are encountered the shortage of water in dry season such
as Thamaprang School, Wat Satthatham School, Wat Bandong School
and Wat Huay Heang School in Amphur Kaeng Khoi, Saraburi Province
3. Quality of Life Improvement

The company has supported the activities of the Khon Thai
Foundation being proactive the campaigns for the Thai people in
every sectors to realize their civic duties to the country and become
involved in creating a well-being Thai society through listening, talking,
thinking and acting systematically. Platforms have been created where
Thais can voice their opinion to be reflected their real quality of life
through the “Khon Thai Monitor”. This random sample survey is 100,000
persons from all 77 provinces allowing Thais to voice their thoughts
and relate problems and feelings toward the state of well-being in dif-
ferent aspects of their family and community that will lead to systemic
changes. The results of the survey will be used to propel the participation
of the Thai people in various sectors, including government agencies,
the private sector and the civil society, in creating a well-being society.
4. Community Development

(1) To give the great opportunity for 15 community leaders;
from Tambol Nongki, Amphur Kabinburi, Prachinburi Province,
to visit factory concerning Water Resources Management, \Wastewater
and Drinking water production.

(2) To contribute 2 water tanks (2,000 Liters) for producing
the water of Ratchada Prajik Village, Tambol Nongki, Amphur Kabinburi,
Prachinburi Province,

(3) To plant 1,000 trees in the community forests at
Ban Nong Song Hong and Ban Khok Udom in conjunction with the
local communities.

(4) To plant for reforestation commemoration of permanent
forest purpose (Plot FPT 11/1 at Prachinburi Province : 1,250 Rais)
located in Santisuk Village, Tambol Chom Thong, Amphur Nadi,
Prachinburi Province in total of 1,250 units.

(5) To construct 2 dams which can be absorbed about 100,000
cubic meter in the permanent reforestation area located in Santisuk
Village, Chom Thong Sub-District, Nadi District at Prachinburi Province.

(6) To share and demonstrate The EM and Organic insects
repellence; including non-chemical plot demonstration to 150 people
of Koh Kham and Bang Bon Communities in Amphur Nong Suea,
Pathumthani Province.

(7 ) To construct the aqueduct and non-chemical plot
demonstration for a lunch meal of 175 students at Ban Klong Udom
School (Size : 0.50 x 150 meters.)

(8) To associate with the Community Developer in Kabinburi
District; sharing and conveying about the Hungary Mushroom
and Dishwashing made from the local materials to 25 families of
Ban Kho Khilek, Tambol Nongki, Amphur Krabinburi, Prachinburi
Province.

(9) To conduct the plot demonstration cultivating the concept
of sufficiency economy to 250 students of Triamudomsuksanomklo
Kabinburi School.

(10) To plant 10,000 seeds on the occasion of The 5th Cycle
Anniversary of His Royal Highness Crown Prince Maha Vajaralongkorn
at Saraburi Power Plant as located in Tambol Huay Heang, Amphur
Kaeng Khoi, Saraburi Province.

(11) To build the culture of Environment by organizing the
project named “The 1st priority is safety with care the environment”

(12) To associate with Thai Health Promotion Foundation
organizing the project named “The 3rd year Organization Development
for Happy 8 Workplace sustainably”

(13) To develop the environment associate with the communities
of Amphur Kabinburi, Prachinburi Province and Amphur Kaeng Khoi,
Saraburi Province under the project named “Take Pinto into the temple”

at the amount of 9 temples.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

{  Internal Control System

The Boards of Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
place importance on the internal control system and continuously
monitor its operations. The Company’s Board has assigned the Audit
Committee, which is composed of independent directors, to review
the assessment of the internal control system. The internal audit
department, which is independent from the management and reports
directly to the Audit Committee, is responsible for assessing the
operations of the various departments of the Company according
to the annual internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee.
The objective is to ascertain efficient and effective operations, optimal
and beneficial utilization of resources, maintenance of assets, and
disclosure of material information regarding financial, management
and operational matters that are accurate, credible and timely,
as well as compliance with securities and exchange laws, rules,
regulations and requirements that are relevant to the business operation
of the Company.

The Company assesses its internal control system in accordance
with the Internal Control = Integrated Framework, which is based
on the international standards of COSO (Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission), that was revised in
May 2013. The original 5 component have been expanded to comprise
17 principles, the main points being:

1. Internal Control

The Company has set clear and measurable targets for its
business operation and performance with regular review of targets
and comparison of the actual operating results with such targets for
every period. An organization structure has been established,
an organization chart showing reporting lines has been drawn and
appropriate authorities and responsibilities in the pursuit of objectives
have been set under Boards oversight. The code of conduct, corporate
governance policy, conflicts of interest policy and anti-corruption policy
have been determined to demonstrate the Company’s commitment to
integrity and ethical values. The scope of authority has been prepared
in writing and the main operations manual has been revised to conform
to new standards.

The Board of Directors is independent from management
and exercises oversight of the development and performance of
internal control. The Company demonstrates a commitment to attract,
develop, and retain competent personnel. The duties and responsibilities
of employees in internal control are defined in order to achieve the

objectives of the organization.

2. Risk Assessment

The Company has specified its objectives with sufficient
clarity to enable the identification and assessment of risks relating
to its objectives. Risks, both internal and external, that may affect
the Company’s business operations are assessed. All types of risks,
including the risk of fraud and corruption, that may affect the
achievement of the Company’s objectives across the entity are
identified and analyzed. Material risks are rated according to their
impact and likeliness to occur in each business process in order to
determine the risk management plan. Potential for fraud is also
considered. The Company identifies and assesses changes that
could significantly impact the internal control system, as well as
regularly monitors events and risk factors.
3. Operational Control

The Company has established important policies for conducting
business as the basis for systematical and efficient operations in
order to achieve the established objectives and goals. It has control
measures that help to reduce the risks of achievement of objectives
to acceptable levels. The Company selects and develops general
control activities over technology to support the achievement of
objectives. The Company deploys control activities through policies
that establish what is expected and procedures that put policies
into action. A written manual has been prepared to clearly determine
the scope of duties and the authorized approval limits for each level
of management. An anti-corruption manual has also been prepared
in accordance with the determined policy. There is an organization
structure with clear segregation of duties for the approval of
transactions, recording of accounting entries, and assets supervision
and storage. The Company’s strict compliance with relevant laws
and regulations is also monitored.
4. Information System and Communication

The Company has put in place an information system for
material information by sourcing both internal and external information
that is complete accurate, timely and of quality to support the
functioning of internal control as determined. Work is performed
for achievement of objectives. Reports containing information on
each business unit are prepared and presented to the management
to support their decision-making, including accounting and financial
reports.

The Company has set up appropriate communication channels
to communicate the duties and responsibilities, including other

matters, to the employees. The Company has also set secure

channels for whistle-blowing and filing of complaints regarding .
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fraud and corruption. There is communication between the business
units within the Company and with external parties regarding
matters that may affect the functioning of internal control.
5. Monitoring Activities

The Company monitors and assesses its internal control to
ascertain that it is still completely functioning and appropriate. It also
evaluates and communicates internal control deficiencies in a timely
manner to those parties responsible, including senior management
and the Board of Directors, as appropriate. The Company regularly
monitors its operational performance by comparing the actual results
with the estimates defined. In the event that the actual results differ
from the estimates, each unit must analyze the cause of the
differences to determine ways to improve the operational efficiency
and clearly specify the period for monitoring the results. There is
sufficient, complete and accurate disclosure of information that
is transparent and accountable on connected transactions or

transactions with conflicts of interest.
{ Opinion of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the assessment of the
internal control system for 2013 performed by the internal auditor and
found no material issues or defects that affect the operations of the
Company. This is in line with the opinion of the Company’s external
auditor. The external auditor has an opinion that the Company has an

internal control system that is sufficient and effective.

{ Head of Internal Audit and Chief
Compliance Of cer of the Company

The Company has appointed Premier Fission Capital Co.,
Ltd. (PFC) to examine the Company’s internal control system since
2008. PFC has assigned Mr. Akapun Nuanmuang, Corporate
Director, Internal Audit Office, to be the main person responsible
for performing the duties of an internal auditor of the Company since
16 May 2012.

The Audit Committee has considered the qualifications of
Mr. Akapun Nuanmuang and found them to be appropriate for him
to perform such duties because he is independent, has experience
in performing internal audits and has been trained in courses related

to internal audit.

The consideration and approval for appointment, removal
or transfer of the person in the position of Head of Internal Audit

of the Company must be made by the Audit Committee.
{ Risk Management System

The Board of Directors places importance on risk management
of the Company as a whole by referencing the international
standards widely used and accepted by organizations worldwide
of 1ISO 31000:2009 and COSO (The Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission) in maintaining risks at
acceptable levels and regularly monitors the management of
risks. Control Self Assessments (CSA) are conducted at both
management and operating levels of the Company in order to jointly
assess the risks/obstacles and uncertainties that may impact on
the Company’s business operations and prevent it from reaching
its objectives and circumstances that may result in the loss of business
opportunities, which are risks that may arise from both internal and
external factors. The Company’s principle specifies that should there
be any risk that will impede the Company’s operation from achieving
its planned target, the Company must have measures to manage
these risks.

In 2013, the Company has set a risk management policy
to which all the management and employees must comply and
proceeded to instill risk management as part of the corporate
culture. The Company has also appointed a Risk Management
Committee consisting of senior executives to manage its
overall risk, develop the internal work process and report on the
performance to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of
the Company.

In addition, the Company has assessed the risks and obstacles
that may affect its operation and at the same time assessed the
sufficiency of its internal control system to consider ways to enhance
operations. The Company has assigned and monitors compliance
by the executives responsible for each business segment to the
prescribed guidelines for the implementation of procedures for
operational enhancement. In addition, all related persons are required
to adhere to the guidelines in order to achieve higher operational

efficiency.
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2. Policies and Trends of Connected Transactions in
the Future

Normal business transaction or supporting normal business
transactions with general trading condition

The Company and its subsidiaries expect that connected
transactions will continue to occur in the future and that they will
be normal business practices or supporting normal business, namely
the purchase/sales of products, the lease of office building, computer
equipment and automobiles for use in business operation, the receipt
of services under the service agreement that are agreements for the
lease of office space, the cost of personnel working in the Company’s
joint venture project, the receipt of services under the information
technology service agreements, etc. All the connected transaction will
occur as necessary and for operational efficiency within the group of
companies. The pricing policies for connected transactions are clearly

set based on market prices and market conditions that are appropriate

and fair by taking into account mainly the benefit of the Company. The
Audit Committee of the Company will review and provide comments
for the connected transactions that are normal business practices or
are in support of normal business on a quarterly basis.

For connected transactions that may occur in the future that
may cause a conflict of interest, the Board of Directors will perform its
duties as prescribed by the securities and exchange laws and the rules,
notifications, orders or regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the
Securities and Exchange Commission, including other relevant regulatory
agencies. It will also comply with the regulation on the disclosure of
information on connected transactions and the acquisition and disposal
of significant assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, as well as
comply with the accounting standards prescribed by Federation of

Accounting Professions.

Annual Report 2013
Premier Products Public Company Limited

v

117



118

MSIAS:AIIRAANDSUNYTNUMSIDUNIA:NANSCNITUUZDLNEIONNS

{ msiagundaviaaryniossio

(1) auNuNIWUE 2556 U3Hn Budin nTu |anin
(1GC) 1mwummmmuaummmu 510 aruu1ndu 600
mumwmwmsﬁwummumuqu 7,200,000 Huuidu
72 mumwm“lmﬁmhummwu’l,u IGC meummww
70 lufesaz 71 demnlumeusunay 2556 mwimwu
IGC anngievuinsevilsdam 2,499, 000 il 3049
& dndaunsnatiulu IGC daananndesas 71 i
fpaaz 76

@) \Beutugnay 2556 1EnldannaidleudasaFem
AR Aus BuLeA S (PPW) ieAnmnAuflula1glu
nasdsenaugsian@n iniindsanuan Inadnuaanzidau
1 §uum LBENDeUAIUIU 99,997 T ﬁmﬂu?@mu 99.99
e uannziioy luhauiuinau 2566 mﬂammnwmm
PPW ”Lmummlmwwmmw viguaed PPW 8n 34 &1uun
Tmﬂmmmﬁumim@mmeumummj 18 apananiy
Tun1s1dRuyu uaziiledui 20 unsnAu 2557 PPW 1mml,uu
mnwmummmu 1 dun Wy 5 §unnm W 1EENge
FUANY LAY 300,001 Fuduanuoutu 3 druum il
Uinidndaunistiedulu PPW anasainfesaz 100 1ilu
faeaz 80

{ nwsouwavssAvYELUSEN Nla:uSUngoY

a v '

zmmﬂ@mmﬁmﬁmeﬁtﬂ@ﬁqmmﬁ@mmxi@mﬁmi‘w

q
'

a v 4

Lﬂun@mumwLLﬂwuLL@vimum@mmu‘ﬁmﬂmmmﬂﬁimmﬂ
adamBunng nssfiuaulnsngi 1 uay 2 Sumﬁ 2556
Annayidue mumgnamqqmmmau‘[muLuﬂm faaie
WAE Lﬂmﬁfaﬁmmﬂmﬁuﬁi@Lﬁmmﬂﬂ 2556 fiLN1saENesn
w03gsnAtuAnasslusIdImdn @ faﬂmﬁsmwmmmmmm
Iiiina1asTeausn Faasmlua doulilmsunadl 3 ua 4
1841 mmﬂmmmmmmmmwummm‘lumﬂmuu
YBINIAATIFEU ml‘wﬁmmmmq@miﬂ@@mum'ﬂ AN
nafanegAngannaniadiasiideaduia inlinisenes

2184999NANARFINITUNINELN AN 3 TR

iwmuﬂjgéﬂ 2556
1310 wWidles Inednd anfn (Wvnaw

atnslafinu Adelanudnsaaniediungunenns
Urzmsidaasulinaninsiszundisesinganafedig
wude duldun ulaunsesdgluduanulaendoaes
mmi‘mmmuluuivuumimmLWfaﬂmnu@mmm’Lummaﬁ
Uszinnsine mm"lw@mmmmmuuwmm‘lumumi
mummwu@{wu analutl 2556 finsaeneigeslsany
ammuﬂﬁummmﬂiuﬂiﬂumwmﬂqmmmﬂumiuﬂmﬁ
i 2554 waznisrEnansauiReLiesiul 25565 ¥inl¥
FunnuAuaeInisldudsnuas muqmmmmﬂmﬂu
AMUIUNIN

ﬂ@mimmehiﬂ/\lﬁfmummmumﬂamamwmmu
”Lmummmumnmmwmemm@miumqmmmq
ZNN@Iﬂﬂﬁli"m’]ﬂlﬂ’mﬁl’)ﬂl'ﬂﬂﬁﬁ‘ﬂ@i’]uﬂ’]@ﬂﬂﬂ WATNIIY
mm‘uwummummmﬂmmﬂimfaumﬂwmmmummﬂ
mwﬂivmﬂ‘wmqmmmmuuwmﬂw Aanasatan
aumﬂ@uu

mmuﬁqiﬁ@‘L‘N”LWﬁ’]wﬁwuLmeﬁmﬁﬁum’wm
lananunand i ldidadfiunisdendad (cop)
i 3 wis m\mqmmma‘lﬁmmumuummu

‘ENMWWLLW‘VI 1 m@wmmmuvﬂmq \daniiunig
FewaeRausfu 27 §u9A3 2553

Taelfuviedt 2 m@qmmumwmm \daniiunig
GanniladifleTui 26 wwneu 2556

Taslifinuviedt 3 %ﬂ@ﬁm"m@ﬁwuﬁq WaanHung
GanniladileTui 26 wwneu 2556

{ asuwanisdduviu

m@mimLuumummuﬂmummuw 31 fWIAN 2656
PANLTEN AT LT ENeIRg) mﬂimmuﬂ 149,69 1utm Ty
anilfew 76.77 411U Han13AHNINIeILTEN sl
ﬁﬂﬂﬁ'u%u 61.42 A1ULM AIUHANTTANTRITUVDILTENT
Snladindu 22, 35 AUnM mimmmmﬁummmumwmﬂ
7 mummmuum%ﬂ@umuﬁumL‘wmu 15.35 A1UULN
Tnefleasiden fail



Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

@ Significant Business Changes

(1) In February 2013, Infinite Green Co., Ltd. (IGC) increased its
capital from 510 million Baht to 600 million Baht. The Company acquired
7,200,000 additional capital increase shares of IGC at a total price of 72
million Baht, resulting in an increase in the Company’s shareholding in
IGC from 70 percent to 71 percent. In December 2013, the Company
purchased 2,499,000 ordinary shares of IGC from a former shareholder
at a total price of 30.49 million Baht. The Company’s shareholding in
IGC increased from 71 percent to 76 percent as a result.

(2) In August 2013, the Company established PP Wind Energy
Co., Ltd. (PPW) to study the feasibility of entering into the wind power
plant business with a registered capital of 1 million Baht. The Company
held 99,997 shares or 99.99 percent of the registered capital of PPW.
In December 2013, the shareholders’ meeting of PPW approved the
increase of its registered capital by another 34 million Baht with the
Board of Directors to gradually increase capital according to its needs
for funds. On 20 January 2014, PPW increased its registered capital
from 1 million Baht to 5 million Baht. The Company acquired 300,001
additional capital increase shares of PPW at a total price of 3 million
Baht. The Company’s shareholding in PPW decreased from 100 percent

to 80 percent as a result.

QQ Business Overview of the Company
and Its Subsidiaries

The products in the environmental products group and the
building materials group are volatile and are directly affected by the real
estate business. In quarters 1 and 2 of 2013, the Company’s operations
grew in line with the increasing number of condominium constructions
and sales launches that continued on from 2012 and the expansion of
the housing estate business in the provinces, as well as the tourism
business that resulted in the building of new hotels and resorts. In
quarters 3 and 4 of the year, the rising concern regarding household
debt repayment ability made banks stricter on their lending that was
worsen by the development of the political crisis caused the real estate

business to slowdown.

However, there are some strict legal issues that have
supported the significant growth of the water storage system
products, which are the government policy for building safety that
requires installation of water storage systems for protection against
fires in various types of buildings. This has helped to increase
the sales of large water storage tanks. Moreover, in 2013 the
increase in number of industrial factories requiring renovation
due to the major flooding in late 2011 and the continuous
investment expansion in 2012 resulted in higher demand for metal
roofing and sidings.

The energy-saving electrical appliances group was affected
by the slowdown of the economy in the latter half of the year. This
caused the growth rate of the retail business to decline. The fiercer
competition resulting from operators importing more cheap products
from overseas for sale in the country has affected the sales of the
products in this group.

For the solar power plant business with its main source of
income being from electricity sales, all three solar power plants in
Saraburi Province have now started to provide capacity on demand
(COD) as follows:

Power Plant 1 located in Tambol Tha Maprang commenced
commercial operation on 27 December 2010.

Power Plant 2 located in Tambol Cham Phak Phaeo commenced
commercial operation on 26 April 2013.

Power Plant 3 located in Tambol Huai Haeng commenced

commercial operation on 26 April 2013.
{ Summary of Operating Performance

For the operating results for the year ended December 31,
2013 of the Company and its subsidiaries, profit for the year was
149.69 million Baht, an increase of 76.77 million Baht from the
previous year. For the subsidiaries, profit increased by 61.42
million Baht. For the Company, profit increased by 22.35 million Baht.
This included dividend from the subsidiaries of 7 million Baht,
therefore, profit before dividend was 15.35 million Baht. The details

are as follows:
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(1) Sales and service income of the Company was 1,123.63 million
Baht, an increase of 72.09 million Baht from the preceding year, of which
35.20 million Baht was derived from the environmental products and 36.89
million Baht from the building materials and industrial support products.
Gross profit increased by 37.02 million Baht. Although the government
policy to increase minimum wage to 300 Baht nationwide had caused
the Company’s production cost to increase, the method for managing
costs and expenses, together with the delivery of products with quality
and timeously, has allowed the Company to have a gross profit margin of
33.12 percent, which is higher than the 31.86 percent in 2012.

(2) Selling expenses of the Company was 176.28 million Baht,
up by 10.93 million Baht from the year before. Selling expenses
increased in line with the increase in sales and service income.
In 2013, selling expenses was 15.69 percent of sales income, which
is close to the rate of 15.72 percent in 2012.

(3) Administrative expenses of the Company was 100.76 million
Baht, an increase from the previous year of 6.44 million Baht, mainly
from the increase in personnel expenses of 5.89 million Baht.

(4) Finance cost of the Company was 9.17 million Baht, decreasing
by 9.97 million Baht from the previous year due to the repayment of loans
from financial institutions and other payables from purchase of investments.

(5) Income tax expenses of the Company was 20.22 million
Baht, a decrease from the preceding year of 3.39 million Baht arising
from the decrease in income tax of 1.32 million Baht and the decrease
in deferred tax of 2.07 million Baht.

(6) For the operating results of Premier Home Appliance
Co., Ltd, a distributor of energy-saving electrical appliances, net profit
was 4.11 million Baht, a decrease from the year before of 3.50
million Baht. This is due to the decrease in sales of products by 23.66
million Baht from the previous year resulting from the economic
slowdown that caused the expansion of the retail business to decline
and fiercer competition caused by operators importing more cheap
products from overseas for sale in the country.

(7) For the operating results of Infinite Green Co., Ltd. in 2013,
revenue from sales of electricity from all three plants was 220.000
million Baht. The second and third plants commenced providing capacity
on demand (COD) on 26 April 2013. This company had gross profit
margin of 66.92 percent, profit from operating activities before financial
costs of 114.17 million Baht and net profit of 66.65 million Baht.

(8) As for PP Wind Energy Co., Ltd. that is currently studying
the feasibility of entering into the wind power plant business, there is

no revenue from its business operations.

& Financial Position

As at December 31, 2013, the Company and its subsidiary
had total assets of 2,317.86 million Baht, an increase from 2012
of 119.35 million Baht; total liabilities of 1,535.46 million Baht,
a decrease from 2012 of 415.70 million Baht; and total shareholders’
equity of 782.40 million Baht. The significant changes in the financial
position are as follows:

(1) Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables increased by 87.16 million
Baht. Trade receivables increased by 86.89 million Baht, which
are mainly receivables not yet due that increased by 65.87 million
Baht due to increased sales. In 2013, the average debt collection
period was 58.90 days, which is close to last year (59.10 days
in 2012).

(2) Inventories

Inventories as at 31 December 2013 was 145.04 million
Baht, a decrease from the previous year of 26.57 million Baht mainly
due to the decrease in work in process of 23.20 million Baht from work
under installation in late 2012 that was delivered in the first quarter of
2013. In 2013, the average inventory turnover period was 30.83 days,
which is close to the 32.31 days in 2012.

(3) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2013
amounted to 1,610.45 million Baht, an increase from 2012 of 75.62
million Baht mainly from the construction of the second and third
power plants continued on from 2012 of Infinite Green Co., Ltd.
Both power plants have commenced operations on 26 April 2013.
The Company invested 10.92 million Baht in machinery for production
of large wastewater treatment tanks from fiberglass with
advance technology for faster production. As a result, return on fixed
assets increased from 10.74 percent in 2012 to 14.13 percent in
2013.

(4) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables as at 31 December 2013 was 292.24
million Baht, a major decrease from 2012 of 455.63 million Baht
from repayment of other payables from purchase of investment in
Infinite Green Co., Ltd. of 213.61 million Baht and other payables for
acquisition of assets in the construction of power plants 2 and 3 of
Infinite Green Co., Ltd. of 225.98 million Baht. Trade payables increase
from 2012 by 4.24 million Baht and the average payment period was
61.34 days, a decrease from the 65.17 days in 2012.
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(5) Long-Term Loans from Financial Institutions and Current
Portion of Long-Term Loans from Financial Institutions

Long-term loans from financial institutions were mainly loans
for Infinite Green Co., Ltd. for construction of the 3 power plants.
In 2013, Infinite Green Co., Ltd. borrowed an additional 264.44 million
Baht and repaid loans of 65.12 million Baht. The Company repaid
loans of 15.03 million Baht. Net long-term loans from financial institutions
and current portion of long-term loans from financial institutions increased
by 184.29 million Baht.

(6) Shareholders” Equity

As at December 31, 2013, the total shareholders’ equity of
the Company and its subsidiaries amounted to 782.40 million Baht, of
which 622.02 million Baht was for the Company only. Compared to
the total shareholders’ equity of the Company as at the end of 2012

of 96.77 million Baht, there is an increase of 525.25 million Baht.
The changes resulted from:

Registered and paid-up share capital of the Company
increased by 82.50 million Baht.

Premium on ordinary shares increased by 317.62 million Baht

Profit for the year increased by 128.57 million Baht.

Recognition of loss from difference in net book value on
the date of the capital increase according to entitled rights with
investment value of 0.03 million Baht.

Recognition of losses of 3.41 million Baht from the difference
between net book value, proportionately at the acquisition date,
with the purchase price.
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{  Financial Ratio

The table the Important Financial Ration of Financial Position and Operating Performance of The Company and its Subsidiaries In 3Years ago.

2013 2012 2011
Restated
Liquidity Ratio
Current Ratio (Times) 0.74 0.39 1.01
Quick Ratio (Times) 0.46 0.21 0.53
Cash flow from Operations to current liabilities ratio (Times) 0.18 0.22 0.11
Account Receivable Turnover (Times) 6.11 6.09 4.40
Collection Period (Days) 58.90 59.10 81.79
Inventory Turnover Ratio (Times) 11.68 11.18 9.17
Average Inventory Turnover Period (Days) 30.83 32.21 39.26
Payable Turnover Ratio (Times) 5.87 5.52 4.84
Average Payment Period (Days) 61.34 65.17 74.42
Cash Cycle (Days) 28.40 26.14 46.63
Profitability Ratio
Gross Profit Margin (%) 36.63% 31.11% 31.11%
Operating Profit Margin(%) 14.27% 8.48% 5.92%
Other Profit Margin (%) 0.69% 2.84% 2.04%
Cash Flow Margin (%) 81.50% 167.54% 75.15%
Net Profit Margin (%) 9.85% 5.44% 4.01%
Return on Equity : ROE (%) 29.07% 47.24% 66.01%
Efficiency Ratio
Return on Total Assets : ROA (%) 6.63% 5.06% 6.33%
Return on Fixed Assets (%) 14.13% 10.74% 42.17%
Assets Turnover Ratio (%) 0.67 0.93 1.58
Financial Policy Ratio
Debt to Equity Ratio (%) 1.96 7.89 10.13
Interest Coverage Ratio (%) 2.13 8.04 1.36
Cashflow Coverage Ratio - Cash Basis 0.34 0.17 0.35
Dividend Ratio N/A N/A N/A
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Report of Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Statements

Board of Directors are responsible for the financial report as prepared by Premier Products Public Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries in order to ensure the accurate and reasonable presentation of financial position, revenues and expenses and
statement of cash flow. The presentation reflects accurate, complete and sufficient data entry of assets; prevents frauds
and abnormal business operations. In preparing the financial report,appropriate accounting policies have been practiced
consistently and in compliance with the generally accepted accounting standards.Significant information has also been sufficiently disclosed
in notes to financial statements and the auditors provided their opinion in Report of the Independent Auditors

Board of Directors appointed Audit Committee consisting of the independent directors monitoring the financial report

and assessing the internal control system, which have been approved by Audit Committee as appeared in Report of the

ot ey

(Mr.Suradej Boonyawatana) (Mr.Ekkarat Kaladpan)

Audit Committee, which has been exhibited in the annual report.

Chairman Managing Director

' )
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Report of the Audit Committee

In 2013, the Audit Committee of Premier Products Public Co., Ltd. comprised 3 independent directors, consisting of:

Miss Chnida Suwanjutha Chairman of the Audit Committee

Mr. Chaiyavat Nitayaporn Member of the Audit Committee

Mr. Paritud Bhandhubanyong Member of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee members possess all the qualifications as prescribed by the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Com:
mission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand and possess knowledge and skills in accounting, financial audit, internal audit, law and
engineering, respectively.

All of the three Audit Committee members are not directors of the parent company, subsidiary company, associated company and
same-level subsidiary company and possess qualifications as prescribed by existing laws and regulations. The Audit Committee members
do not own any share of the Company, are not involved in the management of the Company, and are not external auditors, advisors,
trade partners or any other engagement with the Company and group companies, which is in compliance with existing laws and regulations.
In particular, the Audit Committee was not appointed to protect only the interests of the directors or major shareholders.

In 2013, the Audit Committee had performed its duties according to the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the Board of
Directors, which are in line with the regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Audit Committee met 4 times, once every quarter, and in
each meeting the senior management, internal auditors and external auditors also attended as appropriate to present information to the meeting
and to assist the Audit Committee in performing its duties and responsibilities as prescribed under the Audit Committee Charter and as assigned
by the Board of Directors. Significant matters considered by the Audit Committee during the past year can be summarized as follows:

1. Accuracy, Completeness and Credibility of the Financial Statements

The Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements of the Company, both on a standalone and consolidated basis,
which has been reviewed and audited by the Company’s auditors and the management on the issues of accuracy, reliability and appropriateness.
The Audit Committee made queries and received clarifications from the management and auditors regarding the accuracy and completeness of the
financial statements and the adequacy of disclosures made prior to presenting them for approval by the Board of Directors’ meeting. The review
focused on material accounts, significant changes, adjustments, estimates, as well as the disclosure of important information to ensure that they
were properly stated, clear, adequate, timely and truly useful for the investors and other users of the financial statements.

From the reviews conducted, the Audit Committee was of the same opinion as the external auditors that the financial statements for the year
2013 reported to the Stock Exchange of Thailand were complete, accurate, and reliable in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

In addition, the Audit Committee considered and provided advice on improvement of the accounting practices of the Company
and its subsidiaries so as to be in compliance with the new accounting standards that will be effective for accounting periods commencing
on or after January 1, 2013.

2. Internal Control of the Company

The Audit Committee reviewed the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system on a regular basis based on the results of the
assessment conducted by both the internal and external auditors on the adequacy of the internal control system in accordance with guidelines
established by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The Audit Committee will report any major item of concern and propose remedial
action to be taken to the Board of Directors. From the assessments conducted, the Audit Committee was of the same opinion as the internal
auditors that the Company has adequate and appropriate internal control that is effective for achieving operational goals and operational efficiency,
as well as risk management, asset safeguarding and human resource management that is effective for its business type, and found no significant
weaknesses or deficiencies.

3. Overseeing the Internal Audit Function

The Company’s internal audit department operates under and reports directly to the Audit Committee. In 2013, the Audit Committee
considered, reviewed and approved the annual internal audit plan proposed by the internal audit department, which covers both the Company and
its subsidiaries, and reviewed the results of the assessment. The Audit Committee made recommendations and monitored the implementation
of remedial actions for the significant issues identified in the assessment report so as to ensure good governance and adequate internal control,

as well as made recommendations to ensure higher operational efficiency and effectiveness. . )
W
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4. Compliance with the SEC and SET Laws and Regulation and Other Laws Relevant to the
Company's Business

The Company has assigned its legal unit to monitor, analyze and report changes in laws, rules and regulations relevant to
the Company and to ensure compliance by the Company. The Audit Committee has monitored and reviewed compliance with the securities
and exchange laws, regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and other laws relevant to the Company’s business to ensure full compliance
by the Company. The Audit Committee did not find any significant non-compliance to such laws and regulations.
5. Action relating Against Corruption Measure under the Thai Private Sector Collective Action
Coalition against Corruption

The Company has reviewed the action and also the internal control process and the preparation of financial statements and
any other processes relating Against Corruption Measure. In 2013, the company was in the process for preparation of the Manual for
the Against Corruption Measure and will then file an application within the 1st quarter of 2014 for obtain the Certificate certifying the Company
as an ally of the Thai Private Sector Collective Action Coalition against Corruption. And in 2013, the Audit Committee followed up the progress
and gave an advice for the action and the internal audit department had participated for reviewed and granted an advice for preparation of
the Manual for such Measure.
6. Risk Management

The Audit Committee has reviewed the resolutions of the Board of Directors’ meetings on risk management by assessing
the appropriateness and adequacy of the Company’s risk management system. The Audit Committee met with the executives of
the Company and its subsidiaries every quarter to learn of the management of various risks with emphasis on the identification of risks and
plans for mitigation of such risks by the Company, along with provision of constructive recommendations to the management to make the risk
management system more efficient and suitable for the business condition. The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the Company
had managed risked identified in 2013 in a prudent way.
7. Transactions that may cause Conflicts of Interests

The Company has a policy on conflicts of interests and related party transactions that are in compliance with existing laws and
regulations, which it has clearly communicated companywide and as permitted by law. The Audit Committee reviewed the related party
transactions or transactions that may cause conflicts of interests, which it found that such transactions were conducted in accordance with
the rules and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and was of the opinion that such transactions were reasonable and beneficial for
the Company. In addition, the Audit Committee was of the same opinion as the external auditor that the significant related party transactions
have already been disclosed in the financial statements and the notes to the financial statements.
8. Good Corporate Governance

The Audit Committee reviewed and monitored the implementation of the good corporate governance policies as assigned by the Board
of Directors in order to reflect the Company’s effective management, transparency and accountability so as to give confidence to
the shareholders, stakeholders and all relevant parties. The Audit Committee made recommendations on improvement of the good governance
of the Company.
9. Suitability of the External Auditor

In 2013, the Audit Committee monitored the suitability of the external auditor based on the audit work quality and appropriateness
of the audit team through the review of the financial reporting and from meetings with the auditors without participation of the management
that allowed the Committee to independently learn of the results of the audit and the internal control environment. As a result of the above
review of the qualifications of the auditors, the quality of audit work, the expertise of the audit team, and independence in their work,
the Audit Committee found that the auditors have performed the audit suitably. For the year 2014, the Audit Committee deems it appropriate
to propose to the Board of Directors to request approval from the general shareholders’ meeting to appoint Emnst & Young Office Ltd.
as the Company’s auditor for the year 2014 as the auditors had conducted the audit well throughout.
10. Self-assessment of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee performed an assessment of its actual work as a team in 2013 by referencing the Audit Committee Charter
and established best practices. The results showed that, on a pragmatic basis, the scope of work covered by the Audit Committee in 2013
was in line with the Audit Committee Charter. The Audit Committee reported on the performance and provided its recommendations to

the Board of Directors at every meeting.
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In summary, in 2013 the Audit Committee was of the opinion that it had performed its duties as defined in the Audit Committee Charter
through the review of various issues with the management, external auditors and internal auditors prudently and independently. All the opinions
expressed were straightforward, transparent and verifiable, and in accordance with good corporate governance. The Audit Committee is certain that
the information disclosed in the Company’s financial statements are complete and reliable and are consistent with generally accepted accounting
standards and principles, the action relating Against Corruption Measure, the risk management and internal control systems are effective, appropriate and
adequate, the internal audit had been independently conducted in compliance with internal audit standards covering all high-risk processes and there is

adequate system of control to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations consistent with the current business environment.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

-—
Brlm Qm M ﬂTm..
(Miss Chanida Suwanjutha)
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Premier Products Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Premier Products Public Company Limited and
its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the related
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and have also audited the separate
financial statements of Premier Products Public Company Limited for the same period.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Thai
Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit in
accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Premier
Products Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of Premier Products Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2013, and

their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of matter

| draw attention to Note 4 to the financial statements regarding the change in accounting policy due to the adoption of Thai
Accounting Standard 12 Income Taxes. The Company has restated the consolidated and separate financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012, presented herein as comparative information, to reflect the adjustment resulting from such
change. The Company has also presented the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at 1 January 2012 as
comparative information, using the newly adopted accounting policy for income taxes. My opinion is not qualified in respect of this

Chonlaros Suntiasvaraporn
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4523
Ernst & Young Office Limited

Bangkok: 24 February 2014

matter.
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Financial Statements

Premier Products Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2013

(Unit: Baht)

c 1id d i il

its Separate financial statements

Note 31 December 2013 31 December 2012 1 January 2012 31 December 2013 31 December 2012 1 January 2012

(Restated) (Restated)

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 21,356,268 48,878,996 15,783,469 15,514,427 10,824,596 8,380,726
Trade and other receivables 8 291,581,646 204,420,159 233,556,685 214,463,527 155,880,339 200,642,705
Short-term loans to related parties 9 - - 58,890,095 12,300,000 - 61,422,453
Current portion of long-term loan

to related party - - 2,182,922 - 2,182,922
Inventories 10 145,040,172 171,610,714 161,892,521 128,952,079 156,699,708 162,722,120
Other current assets 46,041,359 56,053,477 4,951,396 2,727,102 2,051,702 4,479,930
Total current assets 504,019,445 480,963,346 477,257,088 373,957,135 325,456,345 429,830,856
Non-current assets
Restricted bank deposits 11 20,198,500 13,268,255 5,899,018 7,497,500 11,247,707 5,899,018
Long-term loan to ralated party

- net of current portion - - 4,996,001 - - 4,996,001
Investments in associate - - 60,290,658 - - 60,074,710
Investments in subsidiaries 12 - - - 551,972,608 448,484,808 3,200,000
Other long-term investments - - 1,545,960 - - 1,545,960
Investment properties 13 110,476,783 119,996,456 - - - -
Property, plant and equipment 14 1,610,450,322 1,5634,828,874 97,104,823 128,879,330 105,422,768 97,094,759
Non-operating assets 15 17,252,196 18,225,041 19,876,487 17,252,196 18,225,041 19,876,487
Intangible asset 2,175,809 2,538,534 - - - -
Deferred tax assets 26 1,522,717 1,027,327 3,263,511 678,037 364,821 2,661,577
Retention 19,209,514 10,102,131 4,834,138 19,209,514 10,102,131 4,834,138
Other non-current assets 16 32,553,591 17,563,661 11,211,334 12,193,529 10,963,707 10,828,343
Total non-current assets 1,813,839,432 1,717,550,279 209,021,930 737,682,714 604,810,983 211,010,993
Total assets 2,317,858,877 2,198,513,625 686,279,018 1,111,639,849 930,267,328 640,841,849

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Premier Products Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of financial position (continued)
As at 31 December 2013

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial its
Note 31 December 2013 31 December 2012 1 January 2012 31 December 2013 31 December 2012 1 January 2012
(Restated) (Restated)

Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from

financial institutions 17 60,428,007 107,450,255 51,057,738 55,739,260 65,102,634 51,057,738
Trade and other payables 18 292,242,614 747,874,366 260,963,785 214,327,327 411,142,239 220,577,592
Current portion of long-term liabilities under

debt restructuring 19 57,115,566 50,506,970 56,796,766 57,115,566 50,506,970 56,796,766
Current portion of long-term loans from

financial institutions 20 116,908,275 83,998,910 13,838,172 13,160,290 15,034,560 13,838,172
Current portion of liabilities under

finance lease agreement 162,153 145,698 - - - -
Short-term loans from related parties 9 12,000,000 50,000,000 45,604,324 12,000,000 50,000,000 45,604,324
Short-term loans from unrelated parties 21 121,683,203 140,792,209 30,000,000 - 30,000,000 30,000,000
Income tax payable 6,560,759 11,182,312 3,064,256 6,462,878 10,058,148 2,390,025
Other current liabilities 12,305,801 33,059,073 10,581,001 8,258,267 7,749,964 10,021,693
Total current liabilities 679,396,378 1,225,009,793 471,906,042 367,063,588 639,594,515 430,286,310
Non-current liabilities
Long-term liabilities under debt restructuring,

net of current portion 19 26,415,958 55,116,086 82,556,491 26,415,958 55,116,086 82,556,491
Long-term loans from financial institutions,

net of current portion 20 779,412,956 628,033,879 28,203,269 - 13,157,503 28,203,269
Liabilities under finance lease agreement,

net of current portion 26,066 178,219 - - - -
Provision for long-term employee benefits 22 48,952,221 42,834,067 38,978,435 43,945,725 38,540,873 35,968,763
Other non-current liabilities 1,260,487 3,110 8,278 487 3,110 8,278
Total non-current liabilities 856,067,688 726,165,361 149,746,473 70,362,170 106,817,572 146,736,801
Total liabilities 1,535,464,066 1,951,175,154 621,652,515 437,425,758 746,412,087 577,023,111

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Premier Products Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of financial position (continued)
As at 31 December 2013

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 31 December 2013 31 December 2012 1 January 2012 31 December 2013 31 December 2012 1 January 2012
(Restated) (Restated)
Shareholders' equity
Share capital
Registered 23
300,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each
(31 December 2012: 300,000,000 ordinary shares
of Baht 1 each)
(1 January 2012: 167,500,000 ordinary shares
of Bath 1 each) 300,000,000 300,000,000 167,500,000 300,000,000 300,000,000 167,500,000
Issued and fully paid up
300,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each
(31 December 2012: 217,500,000 ordinary shares
of Baht 1 each)
(1 January 2012: 167,500,000 ordinary shares
of Bath 1 each) 300,000,000 217,500,000 167,500,000 300,000,000 217,500,000 167,500,000
Share premium 23 317,618,090 ° i 317,618,090 - :
Retained earnings
Appropriated-statutory reserve 24 6,586,356 5,039,540 5,039,540 6,586,356 5,039,540 5,039,540
Unappropriated (deficit) 72,883,945 (50,704,653) (130,683,073) 27,239,609 (61,454,335) (131,490,838)
Other components of shareholders' equity (75,067,008) (75,067,008) 22,770,036 22,770,036 22,770,036 22,770,036
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 622,021,383 96,767,879 64,626,503 674,214,091 183,855,241 63,818,738
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiary 160,373,428 150,570,592 - - - -
Total shareholders' equity 782,394,811 247,338,471 64,626,503 674,214,091 183,855,241 63,818,738
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 2,317,858,877 2,198,513,625 686,279,018 1,111,639,849 930,267,328 640,841,849

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Premier Products Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of comprehensive income
As at 31 December 2013

Profit or loss:
Revenues
Sales and service income
Sales - electricity tariff adders
Other income
Rental income
Interest income
Gain on guarantee obligations
Dividend income
Other income
Total revenues
Expenses
Cost of sales and services
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Total expenses
Profit before share of profit from investment in associate,
finance cost and income tax expenses
Share of profit from investment in associate
Profit before finance cost and income tax expenses
Finance cost
Profit before income tax expenses
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial losses
Income tax effect

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 2013

1,357,476,549

2012
(Restated)

1,260,113,285

2013

1,123,633,528

2012
(Restated)

1,051,543,381

152,304,168 41,849,067 - -
6,027,000 2,400,000 1,891,000 600,000

564,400 3,103,634 776,555 3,233,644

- 22,034,690 - 22,034,690

12 - - 6,997,900 -
3,961,992 10,542,026 17,045,353 11,503,264
1,520,334,109 1,340,042,702 1,150,344,336 1,088,914,979
956,794,826 896,976,266 751,537,674 716,469,200
188,533,392 178,407,735 176,278,941 165,345,061
148,949,615 116,173,602 100,755,687 94,318,213
1,294,277,833 1,191,557,603 1,028,572,302 976,132,474
226,056,276 148,485,099 121,772,034 112,782,505

- 473,156 - -

226,056,276 148,958,255 121,772,034 112,782,505
(55,005,849) (50,677,512) (9,165,815) (19,139,022)
171,050,427 98,280,743 112,606,219 93,643,483

26 (21,361,250) (25,362,595) (20,215,560) (23,606,980)
149,689,177 72,918,148 92,390,659 70,036,503

22 (2,841,545) - (2,687,374) -
26 578,418 - 537,475 -
(2,263,127) - (2,149,899) -

147,426,050 72,918,148 90,240,760 70,036,503
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Premier Products Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of comprehensive income (continued)
As at 31 December 2013

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2013 2012 2013 2012
(Restated) (Restated)
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 130,849,827 75,136,428 92,390,659 70,036,503
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiary 18,839,350 (2,218,280)
149,689,177 72,918,148
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 128,574,368 75,136,428 90,240,760 70,036,503
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiary 18,851,682 (2,218,280)
147,426,050 72,918,148
Basic earnings per share 28
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 0.45 0.39 0.32 0.36

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NIZUTRUAANDINTINAUTUNY
lsAoumd 171,050,427 98,280,743 112,606,219 93,643,483
swmsliunsznuseai lsneunBiflutuaniy (310)
nAnnTTUA U
Audounmuasmsasivie 76,629,111 18,076,222 8,726,584 7,953,755
nﬁmmmaﬁuﬁwﬁmﬁmg@ (1,049,635) (6,788,332) (1,100,922) (5,464,809)
@Tﬂiﬁ’mmwﬁqm 2,096,289 - 2,096,289 -
ﬂf‘fu51ﬂmimthi”uaﬂ%uﬁﬁmmﬁmﬂugamquﬁﬁ% A5 (658,210) (370,234) (293,665) (188,075)
wanu (M5 namslSuledudnanio (40,345) 7,734 (40,345) 7,734
st lsnntuamulunssnion - (473,156) - -
fhuu‘u'qﬁﬂimﬂﬁﬂmi‘ﬁu‘ﬁmnmg:ﬂw“le’fmimuﬂm?]mﬁ"u - (1,833,389) - -
Uszmnaumsniiaunadss Temfminouindy 4,630,899 4,986,242 4,071,768 4,596,516
anu (s namssmieiuaimuing (92,828) 93,300 - 93,300
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aondennmsyiuTassatraniiia Ty 23 (34) 23 (34)
aondiuiy (564,400) (3,104,141) (776,555) (3,233,644)
M l¥510n0ni 52,393,168 38,229,437 7,902,497 16,599,781
ilsmnmssuivaudeumsnasundadluduning
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Premier Products Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash
provided by (paid from) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts
Bad debt write - off
Reversal of the reduction cost of inventory to net realisable value
Loss (gain) on inventory adjustment
Share of profit from investments in associate
Share of profit from business combination
under common control
Increase in provision for long-term employee benefits
Loss (gain) on sales of current investments
Unrealised loss (gain) on exchange
Loss on sale of investment properties
Gain from sales of equipment
Dividend income
Gain on guarantee obligations
Realised deferred interest from debt restructuring
Interest income
Interest expenses
Profit from operating activities before changes
in operating assets and liabilities
Operating assets (increase) decrease
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
Trade and other payables
Other current liabilities
Provision for long-term employee benefits
Other non-current liabilities
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash paid for corporate income tax

Net cash flows from operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2013 2012 2013 2012

171,050,427 98,280,743 112,606,219 93,643,483
76,629,111 18,076,222 8,726,584 7,953,755
(1,049,635) (6,788,332) (1,100,922) (5,464,809)
2,096,289 - 2,096,289 -
(658,210) (370,234) (293,665) (188,075)
(40,345) 7,734 (40,345) 7,734

- (473,156) - -

- -1,833,389 - -

4,630,899 4,986,242 4,071,768 4,596,516
(92,828) 93,300 - 93,300
7,343,587 (2,063,044) (407,556) (1,476,279)
211,936 - - .
(28,650) (469,459) (28,650) (469,459)

- - (6,997,900) -
- (22,034,690) - (22,034,690)
23 (34) 23 (34)
(564,400) (3,104,141) (776,555) (3,233,644)
52,393,168 38,229,437 7,902,497 16,599,781
311,921,372 122,537,199 125,757,787 90,027,579
(87,034,851) 48,436,986 (58,353,287) 50,465,470
27,269,097 (9,355,693) 28,081,639 (3,797,247)
9,235,166 (23,108,090) (910,055) 2,592,902
(26,527,862) (9,549,474) (12,852,287) (7,220,420)
(12,408,286) 69,586,082 22,131,231 (53,831,793)
(22,014,620) 4,941,961 (753,046) (2,128,941)
(1,354,290) (2,024,406) (1,354,290) (2,024,406)
1,260,000 - - -
200,345,726 201,464,565 101,747,692 74,083,144
(24,718,942) (16,495,445) (22,321,204) (15,067,716)
175,626,784 184,969,120 79,426,488 59,015,428
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(MU28: VM)
AUMSAUTIN AWMIRURWIZRINS
2556 2555 2556 2555
(6,930,245) 24,970,763 3,750,207 (5,348,689)
- (69,295,880) (41,222,160) (118,615,880)
- 135,364,898 28,922,160 187,217,256
(62,050,000) - - -
62,142,828 - - -
- 1,452,660 - 1,452,660
(30,487,800) - (103,487,800) (142,499,800)
- (141,239,912) - -
- - 6,997,900 -
18,000,000 - - -
203,959 481,205 203,959 481,205
(137,253,258) (495,287,830) (30,106,761) (13,263,609)
7,859,250 - - -
564,400 4742918 724,577 3,359,938
- (307,427) - -
(147,950,866) (539,118,605) (134,217,918) (87,216,919)
(47,022,248) 56,392,517 (9,363,374) 14,044,896
141,933,998 88,200,000 136,093,998 88,200,000
(179,933,998) (142,565,107) (174,093,998) (83,804,324)
(23,423,627) - (30,000,000) -
(22,091,532) (11,695,511) (22,091,532) (11,695,511)
264,443,510 686,848,261 - -
(80,155,068) (129,499,575) (15,031,773) (13,849,378)
(145,698) (190,143 ,438) - -
(225,980,878) - - -
(213,610,298) - (213,610,298) -
400,118,090 50,000,000 400,118,090 50,000,000
(69,330,897) (20,292,135) (12,539,852) (12,250,322)
(55.198,646) 387,245,012 59,481,261 30,645,361
(27,522,728) 33,095,527 4,689,831 2,443,870
48,878,996 15,783,469 10,824,596 8,380,726
21,356,268 48,878,996 15,514,427 10,824,596
- 242,710,298 - 242,710,298



Premier Products Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Cash flow statement (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Cash flows from investing activities
(Increase) decrease in restricted bank deposits
Increase in loans to related parties
Cash receipt from loans to related parties
Purchase of current investments in trading securities
Proceeds from sale of current investments in trading securities
Proceeds from sale of other long-term investments
Purchase of investment in subsidiaries
Net cash paid from purchase of investment in subsidiary
Dividend income
Net proceeds from increase in share capital of the subsidiary
attributable to non-controlling interest
Proceeds from sales of equipment
Acquisition of plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investment properties
Interest income
Non-controlling interests of business combination
under common control
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts and
short-term loans from financial institutions
Proceeds from short-term loans from related parties
Repayment of short- term loans from related parties
Decrease in short-term loans from unrelated parties
Repayment of long-term liabilities under debt restructuring
Proceeds from long-term loans from financial institutions
Repayment of long-term loans from financial institutions
Repayment of liabilities under finance lease agreement
Decrease in accounts payable - acquisition of assets
Repayment of liabilities from purchase of investment
Cash receipts from increase share capital
Interest expenses
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flows information
Non-cash transactions
Increase in investment in subsidiary from

other payables from purchase of investments - related party

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2013

(6,930,245)
(62,050,000)
62,142,828

(30,487,800)

2012

24,970,763
(69,295,880)
135,364,898

1,452,660

(141,239,912)

2013

3,750,207
(41,222,160)
28,922,160

(103,487,800)

2012

(5,348,689)
(118,615,880)
187,217,256

1,452,660
(142,499,800)

- - 6,997,900 -
18,000,000 - - -
203,959 481,205 203,959 481,205
(137,253,258) (495,287,830) (30,106,761) (13,263,609)
7,859,250 . . .
564,400 4,742,918 724,577 3,359,938

- (307,427) - -

(147,950,866)

(539,118,605)

(134,217,918)

(87,216,919)

(47,022,248)
141,933,998
(179,933,998)

56,392,517
88,200,000
(142,565,107)

(9,363,374)
136,093,998
(174,093,998)

14,044,896
88,200,000
(83,804,324)

(23,423,627) - (30,000,000) -
(22,091,532) (11,695,511) (22,091,532) (11,695,511)
264,443,510 686,848,261 - .
(80,155,068) (129,499,575) (15,031,773) (13,849,378)
(145,698) (190,143,438) - -
(225,980,878) - - -
(213,610,298) - (213,610,298) -
400,118,090 50,000,000 400,118,090 50,000,000
(69,330,897) (20,292,135) (12,539,852) (12,250,322)
(55,198,646) 387,245,012 59,481,261 30,645,361
(27,522,728) 33,095,527 4,689,831 2,443,870
48,878,996 15,783,469 10,824,596 8,380,726
21,356,268 48,878,996 15,514,427 10,824,596

- 242,710,298 - 242,710,298

Annual Report 2013

Premier Products Public Company Limited

W

"\

153



KUNYIKQUS:NoUvUNISIDU

USUNn wsIdes Twsand 91na (UKsU) lla:usungoy
KUNBIKQUS:NaUNSIBUSIL
drsuddudadun 31 sudrAu 2556

a @ =

s J v Jd o w a o = a v d a o o w
VIHEN NILWYT T‘Wﬁﬂﬂ’d 108 (WHIBU) (“UTHNAD) nUeuudsamnus By uus ENUHITUIING

I
(g 2’/ =3 o =

detuil 22 Famaw 2555 viEnasaauduisniisauasdgidwnludszmalne v3inad

wWiidled flwdu undTaoa s1ia Futluisvnivanzibousanaludszmalnedudiotulng
‘giﬁwﬁﬂmmu‘%ﬂ’wﬁamiwammzfﬁ"ﬂﬁm1hﬂwﬁmﬁmw‘ﬁﬁa?{qumé’@uﬁﬁ'mﬁmzuuﬂwﬁﬂﬁu%ﬂ
wazszuudseh nansusiTaaneadaazgadmngsn Hegamiieanzideuveudinaedi 2

a4 J aa J = a J
WILPOTINAY FOINTIHYT 2 DUUATUATUNT LUNKHUDIVOU 1wallsziad NTUNWNHTIUNT

dJ v o 2
2. mm«nalummﬂmwm‘ssm

=

Y Y H
2.1 wmmumﬂﬁﬁumnmmgmmiiwqmmqmmu‘ﬂﬁmuﬂ“lumzsw YUAIVIFWUY

=0

we. 2547 Taouaassiomslusumituaiudeivualulszmansuiangsnanismiasiun

28 MUENBU 2554 ONAMUANN IUNITZI IV TYYANIUYY W.A. 2543

a @ 3 = v A a o I a LY
\1'1Jﬂ15N“Llﬂ‘]_l‘]JﬂTH111/]85‘]JuQ'UﬂTiNuﬂ'U‘U“VHJﬁ‘H‘VI"lGl%’LﬂUﬂ1<1ﬂ'l§ﬁ13Jﬂ§]°ﬁ3ﬂfJ NJUNTINURUY

Y
~

Me19angEulanniumstuatunie neil

@

A Ayye o 2 ) ¢ a v ! 9 o & A o a
\TﬂJﬂ'liNuu‘lﬂ ﬂ‘l/nﬂ]uiﬂﬂi%lﬂm“ﬂiq?]ﬂqutﬂilﬂull@%gllﬂlﬂﬂlwmﬂuﬂﬂ1qau1uuiﬂﬁ1ﬂﬂ1§ Y

J v o =)
2.2 NN TUMTIANIIUNITEUTIY

=

a dy @ o 3 a a o =) 4 @ d o
) Q‘]Jﬂ”lil,\iui’n\luul@%l]ﬂ@lﬂ”Iﬁui@lﬁli’lllﬂﬂﬂWﬂQHﬂIENUi‘Hﬂ WitHes Insand 91

e

A (UNIT¥U)

v P4 P Y b4
(Fae0 MUFen “USENg”) nazuSyndes (Fane llFon1 “uSundos”) daae 1l

Y g)J ; Y v
ANavL 9031500y
a o [ a A 9
STER%1 ANBULVOIFIND Tulszmea YoININONU
2556 2555
9 Y
fouas $ouas
a o 4 ° ' 4 4
1. uSHn wiiles Tawuewnans s vienaodls ihng Tne 100 100
woud 11na Aaautnlszndandsa
2. UFHN UM AU 910 waa Ifhwdanuuasoniad Ing 76 70
a o A Aa =] I o @ a Yy @
3. UTHN A s Buuesd e waa liihwdaauaw Ine 100 -

GRS R R TRRT)

154 iwmu‘gig@“ﬂ 2556
1310 wWidles Inednd anfn (Wvnaw



Notes to financial statement

Premier Products Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Notes to consolidated financial statement
For the year ended 31 December 2013

1. General information

Premier Products Public Company Limited (“the Company”) registered the change of its
status to a public company limited on 22 August 2012. The Company is incorporated and
domiciled in Thailand. Its major shareholder is Premier Fission Capital Company Limited,
which was incorporated in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in the
manufacture and distribution of environmental products related to waste water treatment
and water storage systems, construction materials and industrial products and its registered
address is 2 Premier Place, Soi Premier 2, Srinakarin Road, Kwaeng Nongbon, Khet
Prawet, Bangkok.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their
presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the
Department of Business Development dated 28 September 2011, issued under the
Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of
the Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from the
Thai language financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where
otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.

2.2 Basis of consolidation
a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Premier

Products Public Company Limited (“‘the Company”) and the following subsidiary

companies (“the subsidiaries”):

Country of Percentage of
Company’s name Nature of business incorporation shareholding
2013 2012
Percent Percent
1. Premier Home Appliance  Distribution of energy-saving Thailand 100 100
Company Limited electric appliances
2. Infinite Green Company Producing electricity from solar Thailand 76 70
Limited power
3. PP Wind Energy Producing electricity from wind Thailand 100 -
Company Limited power (not yet operated)

B
" d
"\

Annual Report 2013 ] 55
Premier Products Public Company Limited



Y
1= @ '

WV UIENUMIERYUs ENgesu T uNsIAN1auM T Us WA AT UN YT ENa s Ty

Do

v
@ Y

' v
fﬂiﬂ?UﬂNUiBﬂﬂﬂﬂ%uﬁﬂ?u‘ﬁﬂiHﬂﬂﬁuf:fﬂﬂﬁﬂ’]ﬂﬂlmi Nneayu

=

Y H
A)  wmsduvesuitndes Iavaiiulaslduletnomstydnd wauReanunuuesyiing

]
9 @

9 geAMIANTEHINUTENAIaz YT ENdes s1emsmszrannunlaszdin lagnaaeenainauy

a Ay
NITNUIIVULATD

[ Yt 1 Y A ~ 12 o A o o A a o 4 A
) mummg«,wmu"lmﬁw"lwumm%mm;u o mmum"lsmeﬁumuuuazaumwaq’ﬂ‘ﬁmm
a w1 ' UL a o < ' ' ° A
uwmaﬂmum"lu“lmﬂummu'iywl uazuﬁmrﬂuimmmﬁmmwmiumummm”lﬁﬁa

NanuIILazaIUvedneuTusIHaaIg U MIRUT I

23 viEnadaiumsiuwmzionsiedsy Tesiaeaisisuy Taonaasduasmuluuiindoonay

VIHNTMWANITIINNU

3. nesgumsDadlna

]
a2 o @

v 1 3
e gumstysniauirafny luthiggdegiuuas ez inatiinu luouaniiseazidenaail

v
A =~ 4 ~ s

g dd‘ o Al v
N, AAIFIUNIT tu;ummuwamaﬂuﬂummﬂmuu

>3 Q

WATTIUMT Y
fuN 12 muuld
AU 20 (U5D139 2552) MIVYFAIHTVEAURANYUIINTFUIA nagmsiawe
FoyaNeINUANUTIOHMABIINTFUIA
@ A o = o = a
A1uN 21 (U5D1)33 2552) mansznunMsilaguulasuessasanlasuiuas
aglszine
MATTIUNTTIBNUNNNITY
20N 8 AIUNUANTUNY
MIAANVIINTFIUM T YD
9 d‘ 1 N w dd’ (=1 d' 9 1
2709 10 ANUFIOMAEIINTIUIE - nTaln hiflianuheateeedi

RNIZDIZVINUNINTTHANT LY
217U 21 mMuERuld - msldsudlse Tominnaunsndnluldan
T d‘ dld 1
ANEBNTIANNATIA 1Y
A A A 2 ~ ~ a
RJUN 25 MERuld - msnlasuuilasaaiuamnantveanams
A YA Y
NI0V0IHD OV
a oa v A d' 9 @ a @ o a

sl uametydneInums Teuuazmssu Teudunsngn1anstu

WATFIUMITYT WIATFIUMTTIVNUNNMTRY MIAANNATTIUMITYBHazuu§iuan

@ Y Y

= [P=) ] I o o J a é’ 9 v A 0 dy
ﬂJ“IféllNﬁulliJ11Waﬂi%ﬂﬂﬂﬂ?ﬂlﬂuﬁ133ﬁ1ﬂiyﬁﬂiﬂﬂﬁN‘uu EJﬂL’.]HiJWIigWUﬂﬁUﬂJu‘?fﬂW]’E)vth!

a

156 iwmug‘igéﬂ 2556
1310 wWidles Inednd anfn (Wvnaw



b) Subsidiaries are fully consolidated, being the date on which the Company obtains

control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

c) The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same significant

accounting policies as the Company.

d) Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiary

companies have been eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

e) Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of the
subsidiaries that are not held by the Company and are presented separately in the
consolidated profit or loss and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

2.3 The separate financial statements, which present investments in subsidiaries and associate

under the cost method, have been prepared solely for the benefit of the public.
3. New accounting standards

Below is a summary of accounting standards that became effective in the current
accounting year and those that will become effective in the future.

(a) Accounting standards that became effective in the current accounting year

Accounting standards:

TAS 12 Income Taxes

TAS 20 (revised 2009)  Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of

Government Assistance

TAS 21 (revised 2009) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Financial Reporting Standard:

TFRS 8 Operating Segments
Accounting Standard Interpretations:

TSIC10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to

Operating Activities

TSIC 21 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable
Assets
TSIC25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or

its Shareholders

Accounting Treatment Guidance for Transfers of Financial Assets

These accounting standards, financial reporting standard, accounting standard
interpretations and accounting treatment guidance do not have any significant impact
on the financial statements, except for the following accounting standard.

Annual Report 2013
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(b)

TAS 12 Income Taxes

This accounting standard requires an entity to identify temporary differences between
the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the statement of financial position and its
tax base and recognise the tax effects as deferred tax assets or liabilities subjecting to
certain recognition criteria. The Company and its subsidiaries have changed this
accounting policy in this current period and restated the prior year’s financial
statements, presented as comparative information, as though the Company and its
subsidiaries had initially recognised the tax effects as deferred tax assets or liabilities.
The cumulative effect of this change in accounting policy has been presented in Note 4

to the financial statements.
Accounting standards that will become effective in the future

Effective date

Accounting Standards:

TAS 1 (revised 2012)

TAS 7 (revised 2012)

TAS 12 (revised 2012)
TAS 17 (revised 2012)
TAS 18 (revised 2012)
TAS 19 (revised 2012)
TAS 21 (revised 2012)

TAS 24 (revised 2012)
TAS 28 (revised 2012)
TAS 31 (revised 2012)
TAS 34 (revised 2012)
TAS 36 (revised 2012)
TAS 38 (revised 2012)

TFRS 2 (revised 2012)
TFRS 3 (revised 2012)
TFRS 4

TFRS 5 (revised 2012)

TFRS 8 (revised 2012)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Statement of Cash Flows

Income Taxes

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates

Related Party Disclosures

Investments in Associates

Interests in Joint Ventures

Interim Financial Reporting

Impairment of Assets

Intangible Assets

Financial Reporting Standards:

Share-based Payment

Business Combinations

Insurance Contracts

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations

Operating Segments

1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014

1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014

1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2016
1 January 2014

1 January 2014
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Accounting Standard Interpretations:
TSIC 15 Operating Leases - Incentives
TSIC 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions

Involving the Legal Form of a Lease

TSIC 29 Service Concession Arrangements:
Disclosures
TSIC 32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs

Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations:

TFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning,
Restoration and Similar Liabilities

TFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease

TFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from
Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

TFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach
under TAS 29 Financial Reporting in

Hyperinflationary Economies

TFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

TFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

TFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

TFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners

TFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers

Effective date

1 January 2014
1 January 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2014

At present, the management of the Company has assessed the effect of the above

accounting standard, financial reporting standard, accounting standard interpretations

and financial reporting standard interpretations and believes that they will not have any

effect to the financial statements of the year in which they are initially applied.
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4. Cumulative effect of changes in accounting policies due to the adoption of new

accounting standard

During the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries made the changes described in
Note 3 to the financial statements to its significant accounting policies, as a result of the
adoption of Thai Accounting Standard 12 Income Taxes. The cumulative effect of the
changes in the accounting policies has been separately presented in the statements of

changes in shareholders’ equity.

The amounts of adjustments affecting the statements of financial position and the

statements of comprehensive income are summarised below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

As at 31 December 2013 As at 31 December 2012 As at 1 January 2012
Consolidated Separate Consolidated Separate Consolidated Separate
financial financial financial financial financial financial
statements statements statements statements statements statements
Statements of financial
position
Increase in deferred tax assets 1,523 678 1,027 365 3,263 2,661
Decrease in other components
of shareholders' equity -
revaluation surplus on land (5,693) (5,693) (5,693) (5,693) (5,693) (5,693)
Increase in unappropriated
retained earnings 7,216 6,371 6,720 6,058 8,956 8,354

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 For the year ended 31 December 2012

Consolidated Separate Consolidated Separate

financial statements  financial statements  financial statements  financial statements

Statements of comprehensive income
Profit or loss:
Increase in income tax expenses 82 224 2,236 2,297
Decrease in profit attributable to equity holders

of the Company (82) (224) (2,236) (2,297)
Decrease in basic earnings per share

(Baht per share) (0.0003) (0.0008) (0.0116) (0.0119)
Other comprehensive income:

Income tax effect from actuarial losses (578) (537) - -
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5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition
Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of

goods supplied after deducting discounts and allowances.
Sales - electricity

Sales - electricity are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer. Sales include electricity tariff adders and fuel adjustment

charges (Ft). Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods supplied.
Rendering of services

Service revenue is recognised when services have been rendered taking into account the

stage of completion.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.
Dividends

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal

restrictions.
Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful
accounts is provided for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of
receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection experience and analysis of debt
aging.

Inventories

Finished goods and work in process are valued at the lower of cost (first in-first out method)
and net realisable value. Cost includes all production costs and attributable factory

overheads.

Raw materials are valued at the lower of cost (first in-first out method) and net realisable

value and are charged to production costs whenever consumed.
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5.5

5.6

5.7

Investments

a) Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company classifies as
other investments, are stated at cost net of allowance for impairment loss (if any).

b) Investment in associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method.

c) Investments in subsidiaries and associate are accounted for in the separate financial
statements using the cost method.

The weighted average method is used for computation of the cost of investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the investment is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment (if any).

Depreciation of investment properties are calculated by reference to their costs on the
straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of 20 years. Depreciation of the investment
properties are included in determining income.

On disposal of investment properties, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset
is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Land is stated at revalued amount. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Land is initially recorded at cost on the acquisition date, and subsequently revalued by an
independent professional appraiser to its fair values. Revaluations are made with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from fair value at the
end of reporting period.

Differences arising from the revaluation are dealt with in the financial statements as follows:

- When land’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation of the Company
and subsidiary’s land, the increase is credited directly to the other comprehensive
income and the cumulative increase is recognised in shareholders’ equity under the
heading of “Revaluation surplus on land”. However, a revaluation increase is
recognised as income to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease in respect
of the same asset previously recognised as an expense.
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5.8

5.9

- When land’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation of the Company
and subsidiary’s land, the decrease is recognised in profit or loss. However, the
revaluation decrease is charged to the other comprehensive income to the extent that
it does not exceed an amount already held in “Revaluation surplus on land” in respect

of the same asset.

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the straight-

line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and building improvements 5-27 years
Power plant 10, 20,25 years
Machinery 5-18 vyears
Factory equipment 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3,5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided on land, land improvements and construction in progress.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal

of an assetis included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs

that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Intangible assets are amortised on a systematic basis over the economic useful life and
tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such intangible assets
are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense is charged to

profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives of patents are 10 years.
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5.10 Related party transactions

5.11

5.12

513

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the
Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the
Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a
voting interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key
management personnel, directors and officers with authority in the planning and direction of
the Company’s operations.

Long-term leases

Leases of equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of
the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The outstanding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in long-term payables, while the
interest element is charged to profit or loss over the lease period. The assets acquired
under finance leases is depreciated over the useful life of the asset

Leases of property, plant or equipment which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

The consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also the
Company’s functional currency. Items of each entity included in the consolidated financial
statements are measured using the functional currency of that entity.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.
Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company and its subsidiaries perform impairment
reviews in respect of the property, plant and equipment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised
when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount.
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5.14

5.15

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. However in cases where land was
previously revalued and the revaluation was taken to equity, a part of such impairment is

recognised in equity up to the amount of the previous revaluation.
Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as

expenses when incurred.
Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Company, subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a provident fund.
The fund is monthly contributed by employees and by the Company and subsidiaries. The
fund’s assets are held in a separate trust fund and the Company and its subsidiaries’

contributions are recognised as expenses when incurred.
Defined benefit plans

The Company and subsidiaries have obligations in respect of the severance payments it
must make to employees upon retirement under labor law. The Company and subsidiaries

treat these severance payment obligations as a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified

independent actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits are recognised

immediately in other comprehensive income.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company and its subsidiaries have a present
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.
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5.16 Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and

deferred tax.
Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the
taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax
rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Company and its subsidiaries recognise deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary
differences while they recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences
and tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which such deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried
forward can be utilised.

At each reporting date, the Company and its subsidiaries review and reduce the carrying
amount of deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Company and its subsidiaries record deferred tax directly to shareholders' equity if the

tax relates to items that are recorded directly to shareholders' equity.
6. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at
times requires management to make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters
that are inherently uncertain. These judgments and estimates affect reported amounts and
disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant judgments and

estimates are as follows:
Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease,
the management is required to use judgement regarding whether significant risk and
rewards of ownership of the leased asset has been transferred, taking into consideration

terms and conditions of the arrangement.

v
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Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make
judgement and estimates based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging

profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic condition.
Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make
estimates of the useful lives and residual values of plant and equipment and to review

estimate useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.

The Company and its subsidiary measure land at revalued amount. Such amount is
determined by the independent valuer using the market approach. The valuation involves

certain assumptions and estimates.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for
impairment on a periodical basis and record impairment losses when it is determined that
their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgments
regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the

review.
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences and losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon

the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable profits.
Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial techniques.
Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future

salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash
Bank deposits
Total

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statements

2013 2012 2013 2012
350 467 225 225

21,006 48,412 15,289 10,600

21,356 48,879 15,514 10,825

As at 31 December 2013, bank deposits in saving accounts and fixed deposits carried

interests between 0.5 and 1.3 percent per annum (2012: between 0.62 and 1.6 percent per

annum).

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables - related parties

Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due
Past due
Up to 3 months
Total trade receivables - related parties (Note 9)

Trade receivables - unrelated parties

Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due
Past due
Up to 3 months
3 - 6 months
6 - 12 months
Over 12 months
Total
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts
Total trade receivables - unrelated parties, net
Other receivables
Other receivables - related parties (Note 9)
Other receivables
Total
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Total other receivables, net

Total trade and other receivables - net

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statements

2013 2012 2013 2012

507 61 764 61

356 55 356 50

863 116 1,120 111
198,997 133,571 129,633 92,931
75,668 60,931 71,142 57,924
9,736 4,437 9,736 4,198
2,814 1,456 2,814 1,432
3,280 3,160 2,953 2,896
290,495 203,555 216,278 159,381
(4,687) (3,888) (4,360) (3.612)
285,808 199,667 211,918 155,769
873 - 1,426 -
20,667 24,350 16,629 19,713
21,540 24,350 18,055 19,713
(16,629) (19,713) (16,629) (19,713)
4,911 4,637 1,426 -
291,582 204,420 214,464 155,880
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The balances of trade accounts receivable as at 31 December 2013 include trade accounts

receivable amounting to Baht 13 million (2012: Baht 56 million), of which the Company has

transferred its collection rights as collateral for short-term loans from related company and

approximately Baht 25 million (2012: Baht 25 million) of the trade accounts receivable have

been sold at a discount to financial institutions, with recourse.

Related party transactions

During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business transactions

with related parties. Such transactions, which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary

course of business and were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon

between the Company and those related parties.

Transactions with parent company

Interest income
Administrative expenses

Interest expenses

Transactions with subsidiary

companies
(eliminated from the consolidated

financial statements)
Sales
Other income

Loan guarantee fee income

Transactions with related companies

Sales and service income
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Interest expenses

Consolidated

financial statements

Separate

financial statements

(Unit: Million Baht)

Pricing policy

2013 2012 2013 2012
- 2 - 2
12 9 5 7
- 2 - -

1 -

9 3

2 -

1 1 1 1
13 8 12 8
16 14 12 11
3 7 3 7

4.6% - 6.8% per annum
Contract price

7.3% per annum

Market price
Contract price

0.5% per annum

Market price
Contract price
Contract price

3.5% - 7.6% per annum
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the balances of the accounts between the Company

and those related parties are as follows:

Trade and other receivables - related parties

Trade receivables - related parties (Note 8)

Subsidiary
Related companies (related by directors)

Total trade receivables - related parties

Other receivables - related parties (Note 8)

Subsidiary

Related companies (related by directors)

Total other receivables - related parties

Total trade and other receivables - related parties

Other payables - related parties (Note 18)

Subsidiary

Related companies (related by directors)

Total other payables - related parties

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate

financial statements

Other payables from purchase of investments -

related party (Note 18)

Related company (related by directors)

Loans to related parties and loan from related parties

2013 012 2013 012
- - 257 -
863 116 863 111
863 116 1,120 111
- - 612 -
873 - 814 -
873 - 1,426 -
1,736 116 2,546 111
- - 560 -
181 5,199 159 5,172
181 5,199 719 5,172
- 213,610 - 213,610

The balances of loans as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 between the Company, subsidiary

companies and those related parties and the movement of loans are as follows:

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Balance as at

Increase

Decrease

Balance as at

Short-term loans from related parties Related by 31 December 2012  during the year during the year 31 December 2013

Premier Capital (2000) Co., Ltd. Directors 50,000 126,094 (164,094) 12,000

KK Energy Resources Co., Ltd. Shareholder - 15,840 (15,840) -
50,000 141,934 (179,934) 12,000
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Balance as at

31 December 2012

Increase Decrease Balance as at

during the year ~ during the year 31 December 2013

Related by
Short-term loans to related parties
PP Wind Energy Co., Ltd. Subsidiary
Infinite Green Co., Ltd. Subsidiary
Premier Home Appliance Co., Ltd. Subsidiary

Short-term loans from related parties

Premier Home Appliance Co., Ltd. Subsidiary

Premier Capital (2000) Co., Ltd. Directors

- 7,200 - 7,200
- 28,922 (28,922) -
- 5,100 - 5,100
- 41,222 (28,922) 12,300
- 10,000 (10,000) -
50,000 126,094 (164,094) 12,000
50,000 136,004 (174,094) 12,000

The Company has short-term loans to its subsidiary companies in the form of promissory

notes, carrying interest at the rate of 8.5 percent per annum. The notes are not

collateralised.

Short-term loans from a related company are subject to interest at the rate of 6.50 percent

per annum and secured by the transfer of collection rights over accounts receivable as at
31 December 2013 amounting to Baht 13 million (2012: Baht 56 million).

Directors and management’s benefits

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Company and its subsidiaries had

employee benefit expenses payable to their directors and management as below.

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

Total

(Unit: Million Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2013 2012 2013 2012
28.6 27.8 19.2 19.1
22 0.9 1.7 0.6
30.8 28.7 20.9 19.7
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10. Inventories

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Reduce cost to net

Cost realisable value Inventories-net
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Finished goods 81,640 82,245 (6,554) (7,206) 75,086 75,039
Work in process 36,990 60,191 - - 36,990 60,191
Raw materials 31,382 35,869 (103) (109) 31,279 35,760
Goods in transit 1,685 621 - - 1,685 621
Total 151,697 178,926 (6,657) (7,315) 145,040 171,611

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Reduce cost to

Cost net realisable value Inventories-net
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Finished goods 64,661 66,079 (5,663) (5,951) 58,998 60,128
Work in process 36,990 60,191 - - 36,990 60,191
Raw materials 31,382 35,869 (103) (109) 31,279 35,760
Goods in transit 1,685 621 - - 1,685 621
Total 134,718 162,760 (5,766) (6,060) 128,952 156,700

11. Restricted bank deposits

Deposit of the Company has been pledged as security against letters of credit and bank
guarantees issued by the bank on behalf of the Company which is the security required in

the normal course of business of the Company.

Bank deposit of a subsidiary reserved for loan repayment in compliance with condition of

loan agreement with financial institution.

‘3 ]
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12.

Investments in subsidiaries

Details of investments in subsidiaries as presented in separate financial statements are as

follows:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Dividend received for
Company’s name Paid-up capital Shareholding percentage Cost the year ended
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
(%) (%)
Premier Home Appliance Co., Ltd. 1,000 1,000 100 100 3,200 3,200 6,998
Infinite Green Co., Ltd. 600,000 510,000 76 70 549,473 446,985
PP Wind Energy Co., Ltd. 1,000 - 100 - 1,000
Total 553,673 450,185 6,998
Less: Allowance for impairment of investments (1,700) (1,700)
551,973 448,485

Total investments in subsidiaries - net

On 28 February 2013, Infinite Green Company Limited increased its capital from Baht 510
million (51 million ordinary shares of Baht 10 each) to Baht 600 million (60 million ordinary
shares of Baht 10 each). The Company acquired 7,200,000 additional shares in that company,
with a value of Baht 10 per share, at a total price of Baht 72 million. The Company’s
shareholding in Infinite Green Company Limited increased from 70 percent to 71 percent as a
result. The difference of Baht 32,779 between the net book value of the interest acquired of
Infinite Green Company Limited at acquisition date and the acquisition cost has been
recognised in retained earnings in year 2013 under the shareholders’ equity.

On 4 December 2013, the Company purchased 2,499,000 ordinary shares of Infinite Green
Company Limited from a former shareholder, with a value of Baht 12.20 per share, at a total
price of Baht 30.5 million. The Company’s shareholding in Infinite Green Company Limited
increased from 71 percent to 76 percent as a result. The difference of Baht 3,406,175
between the net book value of the interest acquired of Infinite Green Company Limited at
acquisition date and the acquisition cost has been recognised in retained earnings in 2013

under the shareholders’ equity.

On 9 August 2013, a meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors approved an investment
in PP Wind Energy Company Limited, whereby the Company was to purchase 99,997
ordinary shares, with a par value of Baht 10 each, or a total of Baht 1 million. This
represents 100 percent of the share capital of that company. This subsidiary registered its
incorporation with the Ministry of Commerce on 3 September 2013 and called up 100
percent of the share value, or a total of Baht 1 million.

The Company has guaranteed bank loans and credit facilities of a subsidiary with part of the
subsidiary’s shares held by the Company amounting to 33 million shares (2012: 33 million
shares).
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13.

Investments properties

The net book value of investment properties as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is presented

below.
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Land for rent  Building for rent Total
Cost
1 January 2012 - - -
Acquisition of assets 94,222 26,305 120,507
31 December 2012 94,222 26,305 120,527
Disposal (8,071) - (8,071)
31 December 2013 86,151 26,305 112,456
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2012 - - -
Depreciation for the year - 531 531
31 December 2012 - 531 531
Depreciation for the year - 1,448 1,448
31 December 2013 - 1,979 1,979
Net book value
31 December 2012 94,222 25,774 119,996
31 December 2013 86,151 24,326 110,477

The fair value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 stated below:
(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

2013 2012
Land 104 114
Building for rent 25 26

The fair values of the above investment properties have been determined based on
valuations performed by an accredited independent valuer in 2011. The fair value of the
land has been determined based on market prices, while that of the building for rent has

been determined using the cost approach.
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15.

Had the land and land improvements been carried in the financial statements based on

historical cost, its net book value as of 31 December 2013 and 2012 would have been as

follows
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
Land and land improvements 173,649 173,175 33,688 33,688

The Company and its subsidiary have mortgaged their land (revalued amount), power plant,
buildings and structures and mortgaged their certain machinery with a total net book value
as at 31 December 2013 of Baht 1,532 million (2012: Baht 1,445 million) (the Company
only: 2013: Baht 82 million and 2012: Baht 83 million) as collateral to secure the Company

and subsidiary’s credit facilities obtained from financial institutions.

During the current year ended 31 December 2013, the Company had the balance of
borrowing costs totaling approximately Baht 11 million were capitalised. Borrowing costs of

general-purpose loans determined based on capitalisation rate of 6%.

As at 31 December 2013, certain the Company’s equipment items have been fully
depreciated but are still in use. The gross carrying amount before deducting accumulated
depreciation of those assets amounted to approximately Baht 84 million (2012: Baht 93

million).
Non-operating assets

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements/

Separate financial statements

2013 2012
Land 13,917 13,917
Land improvements 7,897 7,897
Buildings and building improvements 75,380 75,380
Machinery 58,243 58,243
Total 155,437 155,437
Less: Accumulated depreciation (138,185) (137,212)
Non-operating assets - net 17,252 18,225
Depreciation included in profit or loss for the year 973 1,642
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16.

17.

The Company has mortgaged parts of its non-operating assets, which comprise the land,
buildings and machinery of sections which have ceased production with a total net book
value as at 31 December 2013 of Baht 16 million (2012: Baht 17 million) as collateral for the

Company’s credit facilities from a bank.

Other non-current assets
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
Refundable tax 3,110 2,186 2,182 2,019
Deferred assets 8,345 6,286 5,950 4,218
Retention 7,200 - - _
Others 13,899 9,092 4,062 4,727
Total other non-current assets 32,554 17,564 12,194 10,964
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Margin rate Consolidated Separate
(percent per annum) financial statements financial statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
Bank overdrafts SPR+0.5 and MOR 5,501 9,200 812 9,200
Trust Receipts SPR+0.5 and
MOR - 0.25 - 42,852 - 505
Accounts payable - factoring
companies 7.75 19,927 20,398 19,927 20,398
Short-term loans from financial
institutions SPR+0.5 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000
Total 60,428 107,450 55,739 65,103

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institution are secured by the mortgage
of the Company and subsidiary’s land, power plant, buildings and structures and parts of

their machinery, as mentioned in Note 14 and Note 15 to the financial statements.
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18. Trade and other payables

19.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
Trade payables - unrelated parties 165,133 160,898 138,970 110,969
Other payables - related parties (Note 9) 181 5,199 719 5,172
Other payables - unrelated parties 8,734 11,193 5,840 3,588
Other payables from purchase of
investments - related parties (Note 9) - 213,610 - 213,610
Other payables - acquisition of assets 43,907 269,888 - -
Accrued expenses 53,422 59,547 47,932 50,264
Advance received 20,866 27,539 20,866 27,539
Total trade and other payables 292,243 747,874 214,327 411,142

Long-term liabilities under debt restructuring

The Company defaulted on the payment of principal and interest to financial institutions,
and as a result, looked for appropriate means of restructuring its finances. During 2000, the
Company filed a petition for business rehabilitation with the Central Bankruptcy Court. The
business rehabilitation plan of the Company mainly involves a capital decrease, a capital
increase, the conversion of loans to equity, the restructuring of debts by amendment of the
repayment schedules and repayment installment and reduction of interest rates.
Consequently, in November 2000, the Central Bankruptcy Court issued an order approving
the business rehabilitation plan of the Company, and on 11 March 2008, the Central
Bankruptcy Court issued an order approving the Company’s exit from business
rehabilitation, since the Company had already implemented most of the conditions in the
plan.

Details of long-term liabilities under debt restructuring as at 31 December 2013 and 2012
are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements/

Separate financial statements

2013 2012
Long-term loans and accrued interest 36,317 58,408
Guarantee obligations 47,215 47,215
Total long-term liabilities under debt restructuring 83,632 105,623
Less: Current portion due within one year (57,116) (50,507)
Long-term liabilities under debt restructuring - net
of current portion 26,416 55,116
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20.

Conditions of long-term loans according to the debt restructuring are as follows:

1. Interest rates MLR and 0.01% per annum

2. Repayment
- Principal Quarterly, from 30 September 2002 to 30 September 2015
- Interest Monthly

Part of the long-term loans from financial institutions has been guaranteed by a related

company.
Long-term loans from financial institutions

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
Interest rate Repayment financial statements financial statements
Loans (%) conditions 2013 2012 2013 2012
1. SPRL+0.5 Monthly installments as
from 2009 to 2014 13,160 28,192 13,160 28,192
2. MLR-1.25 Monthly installments as
from 2013 to 2021 883,161 683,841 - -
Total 896,321 712,033 13,160 28,192
Less: Current portion (116,908) (83,999) (13,160) (15,034)
Long-term loans, net of current portion 779,413 628,034 - 13,158

The long-term loans from financial institution of the Company have been secured by the
mortgage of the Company’s land, buildings and structures and parts of its machinery, as

mentioned in Note 14 and Note 15 to the financial statements.

The long-term loans from financial institution of a subsidiary have been secured by the
mortgage of the subsidiary’s land, building, structures and parts of its power plant, as
mentioned in Note 14 to the financial statements, bank deposits as mentioned in Note 11 to
the financial statements, the transfer of collection rights under the Power Purchase
Agreements and the pledge of the subsidiary’s shares held by the Company as mentioned

in Note 12 to the financial statements.

In addition, under the long-term loan agreements, the Company and a subsidiary have to

comply with certain covenants regarding to maintain certain debt to equity and others.

As at 31 December 2013, the long-term credit facilities of a subsidiary which have not yet

been drawn down amounted to Baht 23 million.
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21,

22,

Short-term loans from unrelated parties

As at 31 December 2013, short-term loans from unrelated parties of a subsidiary comprise

short-term loans from other companies and individuals amounted Baht 48 million (31 December

2012: Baht 41 million) in the form of bills of exchange that carry interests at the rate 5.0 to 5.3

percent per annum and are due within six months, and short-term loans from other companies

and individuals amounted USD 2.2 million or equivalent to Baht 74 million (31 December 2012:

USD 2.2 million or equivalent to Baht 69 million) which are interest-free payables and no

repayment due.

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for long-term employee benefits, which is compensations on employees’

retirement, was as follows:

Provision for long-term employee
benefits at beginning of year

Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid during the year

Increase in past service costs

Increase from purchase of subsidiary

Actuarial loss

Provision for long-term employee

benefits at end of year

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate

financial statements

2013 2012 2013 2012
42,834 38,979 38,541 35,969
3,144 3,680 2,671 3,343
1,379 1,305 1,307 1,253
(1,354) (2,024) (1,354) (2,024)
107 - 94 ]
- 894 - -
2,842 - 2,687 -
48,952 42,834 43,946 38,541
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Long-term employee benefit expenses included in the profit or loss was as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2013 2012 2013 2012
Current service cost 3,144 3,680 2,671 3,343
Interest cost 1,379 1,305 1,307 1,253
Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 4,523 4,985 3,978 4,596
Line items under which such expenses are
included in profit or loss

Cost of sales 782 1,088 781 1,088
Selling and administrative expenses 3,741 3,897 3,197 3,508

The cumulative amount of actuarial losses recognised in other comprehensive income and
taken as part of retained earnings of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December

2013 amounted to Baht 2.8 million (The Company only: Baht 2.7 million).

Principal actuarial assumptions at the valuation date were as follows:

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2013 2012 2013 2012

(% per annum) (% per annum) (% per annum) (% per annum)

Discount rate 4.4 3.6-4.0 4.4 4.0
Future salary increase rate 5.5 5.0 5.5 5.0
Staff turnover rate (depending on age) 1-25 1-15 1-25 1-15

Amounts of defined benefit obligation for the current and previous three periods are as

follows:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Experience adjustments
Defined benefit obligation on the obligation
Consolidated Separate Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements financial statements  financial statements
Year 2013 48,952 43,946 3,989 3,712
Year 2012 42,834 38,541 - -
Year 2011 38,979 35,969 - -
Year 2010 32,427 32,427 - -
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Share capital

During 4 - 6 February 2013, the Company offered 82.5 million shares of Baht 5 each
through Initial Public Offering. As a result, the Company registered the increase of its
issued and paid-up share capital by Baht 217.5 million (217.5 million ordinary shares with a
par value of Baht 1 each) to Baht 300 million (300 million ordinary shares with a par value
of Baht 1 each) with the Ministry of Commerce on 7 February 2013, and the Stock
Exchange of Thailand approved the 300 million ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 1
each as listed securities to be traded, effective from 14 February 2013. The Company
incurred expenses relating to the issuance of the new shares totaling approximately of Baht

12.4 million, and these are recorded by offsetting against share premium.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is
required to set aside to a statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net profit after deducting
accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the

registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
Expenses by nature
Significant expenses by nature are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
Salary and wages and other employee benefits 198,054 176,118 176,012 158,636
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 76,629 34,166 8,727 7,954
Rental expenses from operating lease
agreements 22,409 14,622 17,477 11,801
Consulting fees 15,498 9,857 5,456 8,052
Purchase of finished goods 315,875 347,585 177,407 184,650
Raw materials and consumables used 330,849 328,531 330,849 328,531
Changes in inventories of finished goods and
work in process 24,619 1,693 24,619 7,251
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26. Income tax

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are made up as

follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Restated) (Restated)
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 21,279 23,127 19,992 21,310
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of
temporary differences 82 2,236 224 2,297
Income tax expenses reported in the
statement of comprehensive income 21,361 25,363 20,216 23,607

The amounts of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income for

the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
Deferred tax relating to actuarial losses 578 - 537 -

4
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Reconciliation between income tax expenses and the product of accounting profit multiplied
by the applicable tax rates for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Accounting profit before tax

Applicable tax rate

Accounting profit before tax multiplied by

applicable tax rate
Entity which has accounting loss
Effects of changes in tax rates
Effects of:
Promotional privileges

Non-deductible expenses

Additional expense deductions allowed

Exemption of income
Others
Total

Income tax expenses reported in the statement of

comprehensive income

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statements

2013 2012 2013 2012
(Restated) (Restated)

171,050 98,281 112,606 93,643
20% 23% 20% 23%
34,210 22,605 22,521 21,538
1,665 1,196 -
- 23 14
a9 | - -
154 2,077 60 2,484
(740) (460) (740 (460)

- (] (1,400 (1)
1,067 (77) (225 32
(14,514) 1,539 (2,305 2,055
21,361 25,363 20,216 23,607

The components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

Statement of financial position

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Separate financial statements

Deferred tax assets

Provision for long-term
employee benefits

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Others

Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Difference in depreciation
amount between tax base
and accounting base

Revaluation surplus on land

Total deferred tax liabilities

31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January
2013 2012 2012 2013 2012 2012
(Restated) (Restated)

9,634 8,371 7,856 8,789 7,709 7,254

61 17 1,039 61 17 1,039

18 23 914 18 23 914
9,713 8,411 9,809 8,868 7,749 9,207
(2,497) (1,691) (853) (2,497) (1,691) (853)
(5,693) (5,693) (5,693) (5,693) (5,693) (5,693)
(8,190) (7,384) (6,546) (8,190) (7,384) (6,546)
1,523 1,027 3,263 678 365 2,661

Total deferred tax assets - net
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27.

28.

In December 2011, the decreases in tax rates for 2012 - 2014 were enacted through a
royal decree in compliance with the resolution of the cabinet to reduce the corporate
income tax rate from 30 percent to 23 percent in 2012, and then to 20 percent from 2013.
The Company has reflected the changes in the income tax rates in its deferred tax
calculation, as presented above.

As at 31 December 2013 the subsidiary has unused tax losses from non-promoted
operations totaling Baht 26 million (2012: Baht 25 million), on which deferred tax assets
have not been recognised as the subsidiary believes future taxable profits may not be

sufficient to allow utilisation of the temporary differences and unused tax losses.

Promotional privileges

A subsidiary has been granted the following promotional privileges under the Investment
Promotion Act (B.E. 2520) approved by the Board of Investment:

Date of the first earning

Number Date granted Business operating income
1783(1)/2552 9 October 2009 Producing electricity from solar power 25 January 2011
1978(1)/2555 26 July 2012 Producing electricity from solar power 21 May 2013
1979(1)/2555 26 July 2012 Producing electricity from solar power 21 May 2013

Subject to certain imposed conditions, the privileges include the followings:

(1) Exemption from corporate income tax on net income from the promoted activity for

periods of 8 years, commencing from the date of the first earning operating income.

(2) A fifty percent reduction of corporate income on net income from the promoted activity
for a period of 5 years after the expiration of the corporate income tax exemption

period as mentioned in Note (1).

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company (excluding other comprehensive income) by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2013 2012 2013 2012

(Restated) (Restated)

Profit for the year (Thousand Baht) 130,850 75,136 92,391 70,037
Weighted average number of ordinary

shares (Thousand shares) 290,055 193,201 290,055 193,201

Earnings per share (Baht/share) 0.45 0.39 0.32 0.36
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29.

Segment information

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports that
are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions about
the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its performance. The chief operating

decision maker has been identified as the Company’s Board of Directors.

For management purposes, the Company and its subsidiaries are organised into business

units based on its products and services and have four reportable segments as follows:

e Conservation products segment
e Construction materials and industrial products segment
e Energy-saving electric appliances segment

e Clean energy segment

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating

segments.

The chief operating decision maker monitors the operating results of the business units
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and assessing
performance. Segment performance is measured based on operating profit or loss and total
assets and on a basis consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss and total
assets in the financial statements. However, the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ central
administrative activities, financing activities, which give rise to finance costs and finance
income, and income taxes are managed on a group basis. Therefore these income and

expenses are not allocated to operating segments.

The basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments is consistent

with that for third party transactions.

The following tables present revenue, profit and total assets information regarding the
Company and its subsidiaries’ operating segments for the year ended 31 December 2013
and 2012.
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30.

31.

3141

Geographic information

Revenue from external customers is based on locations of the customers.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2013 2012
Revenue from external customers
Local sale 1,429,651 1,288,361
Export sale 80,130 13,601
Total 1,509,781 1,301,962

Major customers

For the year 2013, a subsidiary has revenue from one major customer in amount of Baht
220 million, arising from the clean energy segment.

Provident fund

The Company and the subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established separate
provident funds in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The Company, the
subsidiaries and their employees contributed to the fund monthly at the rate of 5 percent of
basic salary. The funds, which are managed by Kasikorn Asset Management Company
Limited, will be paid to employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules.
During the year 2013, the Company and its subsidiaries contributed Baht 5.4 million (2012:
Baht 4.5 million) to the funds, and the Company only contributed Baht 4.7 million (2012:
Baht 4.1 million).

Commitments and contingent liabilities
Operating lease commitments

The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into several lease agreements in respect of
the lease of land, office building space, motor vehicles and equipment with related parties,
other companies and individuals. The terms of the agreements are generally between 1 and

5 years.

v
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31.2

31.3

Future minimum lease payments required under these operating leases contracts were as

follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
Payable within
In up to 1 year 16 12 13 11
In over 1 and up to 5 years 22 22 20 20

Long-term service commitments

The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into several long-term service agreements
in respect of computer services, consultancy services and other services with related
parties, other companies and individual. The terms of the agreements are generally

between 1 and 5 years.

Future minimum long-term service payments required under these service agreements were

as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
Payable within
In up to 1 year 26 20 19 17
In over 1 and up to 5 years 4 9

Bank guarantees

As at 31 December 2013, there were outstanding bank guarantees of approximately Baht
10 million (2012: Baht 18 million) issued by the banks on behalf of the Company in respect
of certain performance bonds as required in the normal course of business. These included
letters of guarantee amounting to Baht 9 million (2012: Baht 17 million) to guarantee
contractual performance and Baht 1 million (2012: Baht 1 million) to guarantee electricity

use.
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32.

321

Financial instruments
Financial risk management

The Company and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting
Standard No.107 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally
comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, loans to related parties,
trade and other payables, bank overdraft, short-term loans and long-term loans. The
financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is

described below.
Credit risk

The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade
and other receivables and loans. The Company and its subsidiaries manage the risk by
adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and therefore do not expect to
incur material financial losses. In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries do not have
high concentration of credit risk since they have large customer bases. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and

loans as stated in the statement of financial position.

Interest rate risk

The Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to their
cash at banks, loans to related parties, bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial
institution, and short-term and long-term borrowings. Most of the Company and its
subsidiaries’ financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates
which are close to the market rate.

Significant financial assets and liabilities, classified by type of interest rate, are summarised
in the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates
further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the
maturity date.
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Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Restricted bank deposits

Financial liabilities

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from
financial institutions

Trade and other payables

Short-term loans from related parties

Short-term loans from unrelated parties

Liabilities under debt restructuring

Long-term loans from financial institutions

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Restricted bank deposits

Financial liabilities

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from
financial institutions

Trade and other payables

Short-term loans from related parties

Short-term loans from unrelated parties

Liabilities under debt restructuring

Long-term loans from financial institutions

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2013

Fixed interest rates Floating
Within 1-3 interest Non-interest Interest
1 year years rate bearing Total rate
(% p.a.)
2 - 19 - 21 05-13
- - - 292 292 -
20 - - - 20 13,25
22 - 19 292 333
20 - 40 - 60 SPR+0.5,
7.75, MOR
- - - 292 292 -
12 - - - 12 6.5,8.5
48 - - 74 122 5.0-53
23 12 - 49 84 0.01
- - 896 - 896 SPRL+0.5,
MLR-1.25
103 12 936 415 1,466

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2012

Fixed interest rates Floating

Within 1-3 interest Non-interest Interest
1 year years rate bearing Total rate
(% p.a.)
1 - 48 - 49 0.62-1.6
- - - 204 204 -
11 - 2 - 13 0.62-1.6
12 - 50 204 266
20 - 87 - 107 7.75, SPR+0.5,
MOR-0.25
214 - - 534 748 7.55
50 - - - 50 7.25-7.6
71 - - 69 140 4.9-5.6
23 34 - 49 106 0.01
- - 712 - 712 SPRL+0.5,
MLR-1.25
378 34 799 652 1,863
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(Unit: Million Baht

Separate financial statements as at 31 December 2013

Fixed interest rates Floating
Within 1-3 interest Non-interest Interest
1 year years rate bearing Total rate
(% p.a.)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2 - 14 - 16 0.5-1.3
Trade and other receivables - - - 214 214 -
Short term loans to related parties - - 12 - 12 8.5
Restricted bank deposits 7 - - - 7 1.3
9 - 26 214 249
Financial liabilities
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from SPR+0.5,
financial institutions 20 - 36 - 56 7.75
Trade and other payables - - - 214 214 -
Short-term loans from related parties 12 - - - 12 6.5
Long-term liabilities under debt restructuring 23 12 - 49 84 0.01
Long-term loans from financial institutions - - 13 - 13 SPRL+0.5
55 12 49 263 379

(Unit: Million Baht

Separate financial statements as at 31 December 2012

Fixed interest rates Floating
Within 1-3 interest Non-interest Interest
1 year years rate bearing Total rate
(% p.a.)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1 - 10 - 11 0.62-1.6
Trade and other receivables - - - 156 156 -
Restricted bank deposits 11 - - - 11 1.6
12 - 10 156 178
Financial liabilities
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from 7.75,
financial institutions 20 - 45 - 65 SPR+0.5
Trade and other payables 214 - - 197 411 7.55
Short-term loans from related parties 50 - - - 50 7.25
Short-term loans from unrelated parties 30 - - - 30 4.9
Long-term liabilities under debt restructuring 23 34 - 49 106 0.01
Long-term loans from financial institutions - - 28 - 28 SPRL+0.5
337 34 73 246 690
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32.2

33.

34.

35.

Foreign currency risk

The Company and a subsidiary’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from

trading transactions that are denominated in foreign currencies.

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies of the

Company and subsidiary which are unhedged are summarised below.

Financial assets Financial liabilities Average exchange rate
Foreign currency as at 31 December as at 31 December as at 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012 013 2012

(Million) (Million) (Million) (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US Dollar - - 3.6 9.5 32.7645 30.5824
Japanese yen 241 1.8 138.9 68.9 0.3126 0.3540

Fair values of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments are
short-term in nature, and loans bear interest at rates close to market interest rates, their fair
values are not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in the

statements of financial position.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value is determined by
reference to the market price of the financial instrument or by using an appropriate valuation

technique, depending on the nature of the instrument.
Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it has
appropriate capital structure in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.
As at 31 December 2013, the Group's debt-to-equity ratio was 1.9:1 (2012: 7.9:1) and the
Company's was 0.6:1 (2012: 4.1:1).

Events after the reporting period

On 20 January 2014, PP Wind Energy Company Limited increased its share capital from
Baht 1 million (0.1 million ordinary shares of Baht 10 each) to Baht 5 million (0.5 million
ordinary shares of Baht 10 each). The Company acquired 300,001 shares in that company,
with a value of Baht 10 per share, at a total price of Baht 3,000,010 and as a result, its

shareholding in PP Wind Energy Company Limited decreases from 100 to 80 percent.
Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on 24 February 2014.
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